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we reported a Ioss attrlbutable to owners
of the Company of HK$209.15 million, a 64%
improvement compared with that of 2018. Such
improvement was mainly attributable to (i) a
HK$215.72 million decrease in loss arising on change
in fair value of Hong Kong listed equities held by us,
and (ii) a HK$183.85 million decrease in written-off of
property, plant and equipment.

We reported a segment loss of HK$79.27 million
for our sale of financial assets business in 2019, a
73% improvement as compared to the segment loss
in 2018. This improvement was attributable to the
recognition of a significant gain on change in fair
value of a Hong Kong listed equity in 2019. As the
novel coronavirus outbreak in January 2020 poses
tremendous risks on the global economy and the
exact effect of the novel coronavirus on the global
economy is unknown and unknowable, we will
cautiously monitor Hong Kong equity market and the
fundamentals of each of our Hong Kong listed equities
and adjust our equity portfolio from time to time and
realise the Hong Kong listed equities into cash as and
when appropriate in 2020.

Our money lending business remained our major
income source in 2019 and reported a segment
profit (before taxation) of HK$72.50 million, a 127%
improvement as compared with that of 2018. Such
improvement was resulted from the decreases in
staff costs and allowance for credit losses on loan
receivables. Given that the exact effect of the novel
coronavirus on the global economy is unknown and
unknowable, we will slow down the pace of our
money lending business in 2020. In addition, the
construction of the second and third phases of our
580 Chinese acre land in Beijing, Mainland China (the
“Subject Land”) will commence in 2020, some of our
internal cash resources will allocate to finance the
development of the Subject Land.
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: 1 ducts business reported a
turnaround in |ts segment results in 2019. We reported
a segment profit (before taxation) of HK$74,000 for
our sale of jewelry products business in 2019. Both
revenue and gross profit margin increased significantly
as certain customers in the United States and a
European customer increased their sales orders to us
in 2019. However, the novel coronavirus pandemic will
inevitably affect our sale of jewelry products business
in 2020 due to the severe travel restrictions and/or
lockdowns recently imposed by countries around the
world. Despite of the novel coronavirus pandemic,
we continuously increase our sales and marketing
efforts in expanding customer base to improve the
profitability of our sale of jewelry products business in
2020.

The segment loss of our property investment
business decreased from HK$279.79 million in 2018
to HK$119.01 million in 2019. This 57% improvement
in segment results was mainly attributable to a
HK$183.85 million decrease in written-off of property,
plant and equipment. As disclosed in our inside
information announcement dated 5 November 2019,
we demolished two hotel villas erected on the first
phase of the Subject Land in order to rectify the
issue arising from the excess of the gross floor area
of properties permitted to be erected on the Subject
Land and speed up the development of the Subject
Land. As a result of the demolition of the two hotel
villas, we recognised a HK$49.78 million written-
off of property, plant and equipment. We originally
planned to invite tenders for the construction works
of the second and third phases of the Subject Land
after the 2020 Lunar New Year holiday and commence
the construction in April 2020. Due to the novel
coronavirus outbreak in January 2020, the economic
activities across Mainland China have been disrupted
as companies and factories have been closed for an
extended Lunar New Year holiday. Accordingly, we
have to delay the construction until the pandemic
ends. The novel coronavirus outbreak has also caused
a temporary suspension of the business development
of the first phase of the Subject Land as business
negotiations of the co-operative arrangement for the
provision of wedding ceremony venue, and the setting
up a basketball training school and/or a football
academy have been deferred until the pandemic ends.
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‘whereas we shared a proflt of HK$8 91 million |n
2018. The deterioration was mainly resulted from (i)
the recognition of a loss on change in fair value of a
term loan in the principal amount of US$10.00 million
by Elite Prosperous Investment Limited, and (ii) the
increase in our share of loss from Global Mastermind
Holdings Limited (“Global Mastermind”) due to the
full year effect of share of loss as Global Mastermind
became our associate on 29 June 2018.

As mentioned above, the novel coronavirus pandemic
has disrupted our business operations, such as
causing the delay in our development of the Subject
Land, and affecting the sales activities of our sale
of jewelry products business. Given that the Subject
Land is still at an early stage of development and
the scale of our sale of jewelry products is not large,
the impact of the novel coronavirus pandemic on
our business operations is not significant at this
stage. If the novel coronavirus pandemic continues
for a prolonged period of time, it will definitely have
consequences for our business operations, the extent
of which could not be estimated as of today. We
remain cautious and watchful over the development of
the novel coronavirus pandemic and its impacts. We
are committed to react proactively to the impact of
the novel coronavirus on our business operations and
lead the Group to weather the challenges.

Finally, |1 would like to take this opportunity to extend
our appreciation to all fellow directors and employees
for their invaluable efforts, dedication and commitment
to the Group and to thank all shareholders and
business associates for their continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 May 2020
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Results of operations

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group recorded the revenue of HK$198,796,000, a
6% increase from HK$188,037,000 for the previous
year. Of the total revenue, HK$104,034,000 was
generated from money lending, HK$25,549,000 was
generated from property investment, HK$68,422,000
was generated from sale of jewelry products, and
HK$791,000 was generated from sale of financial
assets.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$209,148,000, a 64% decrease from
HK$586,090,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018. The improvement was mainly attributable to (i) a
HK$215,724,000 decrease in loss arising on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), and (ii) a HK$183,850,000 decrease
in written-off of property, plant and equipment.

Gross profit for sale of jewelry products increased
by 144% from HK$5,027,000 in the year ended 31
December 2018 to HK$12,274,000 in the year ended
31 December 2019. Gross profit margin for sale of
jewelry products increased from 10% in the year
ended 31 December 2018 to 18% in the year ended
31 December 2019. These increases in gross profit
and gross profit margin are discussed in the section
headed “Sale of jewelry products business” under
“Operations Review” below.

Gross profit for property investment decreased
by 36% from HK$16,560,000 in the year ended
31 December 2018 to HK$10,553,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2019. Gross profit margin for
property investment decreased from 46% in the year
ended 31 December 2018 to 41% in the year ended
31 December 2019. These decreases were mainly
attributable to the disposal of the Group’s investment
properties located in Guangzhou, Mainland China on
22 June 2018, which had a minimal cost of sales.

Major items of other gains and losses recorded by the
Group during the year are as follows:

(a) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
measured its investment properties in Hong Kong
at fair value based on a valuation prepared by an
independent qualified valuer and recognised a
loss of HK$16,400,000 arising on change in fair
value of investment properties.
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Results of operations (Continued)

(b)

Following the appointment of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton, an executive director of the Company,
as an executive director of China Healthwise
Holdings Limited (“China Healthwise”) on 28
October 2019, the Group has two executive
board seats in the board of directors of
China Healthwise and is regarded as having
a significant influence over China Healthwise.
As a result, the Group changed the accounting
treatment of its investment in 1,483,728,240
shares in China Healthwise from “financial assets
at FVTPL” to “interests in associates”. Such
change in the accounting treatment resulted in
the recognition of (i) a loss of HK$39,848,000
arising on change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL for transferring the 1,483,728,240
shares in China Healthwise to “interests in
associates” at fair value on 28 October 2019, and
(i) a gain on bargain purchase of an associate of
HK$14,044,000. China Healthwise is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and the issued shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) (stock
code: 348).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
measured its listed equity portfolio at fair value
based on the closing prices as quoted on the
Exchange on 31 December 2019 and a valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer
for a listed equity being suspended for trading.
The Group recognised a loss of HK$40,639,000
arising on change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL. Adding the loss of HK$39,848,000
arising on change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL for transferring the 1,483,728,240
shares in China Healthwise to “interests in
associates” at fair value on 28 October 2019
as discussed above, the total loss arising
on change in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL recognised by the Group amounted to
HK$80,487,000.

In the third quarter of 2019, two hotel villas
erected on the first phase of the Subject Land
(as defined below) were demolished in order to
rectify the issue arising from the excess of the
gross floor area of the development plan for the
second and third phases of the Subject Land and
a HK$49,782,000 written-off of property, plant
and equipment was recognised.
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Results of operations (Continued)

Selling and distribution expenses mainly represent
staff costs and commission of sales team, overseas
travelling expenses, freight charges, and exhibition
expenses incurred by the Group’s sale of jewelry
products business. Selling and distribution expenses
increased by 10% from HK$5,350,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2018 to HK$5,876,000 in the
year ended 31 December 2019. This increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in staff costs and
commission of sales team, and overseas travelling
expenses resulted from the increase in sale of jewelry
products.

Administrative expenses decreased by 34% from
HK$162,812,000 in the year ended 31 December 2018
to HK$107,260,000 in the year ended 31 December
2019. This decrease was mainly attributable to (i) the
absence of the previous year’s equity-settled share-
based payment expenses of HK$9,063,000, (ii) a
HK$20,553,000 decrease in discretionary bonuses,
and (iii) a HK$30,549,000 decrease in allowance for
credit losses on the Group’s receivables due to the
first time application of the new impairment model
based on expected losses in accordance with HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments in the previous year, which
were partially offset by the payment of consultancy
fees of HK$5,355,000 relating to the development of
the second and third phases of the Subject Land (as
defined below).

Share of losses of associates amounted to
HK$32,992,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing (i) the share of loss of HK$25,329,000
from Elite Prosperous Investment Limited (“Elite
Prosperous”), a 49% owned associate of the
Company, (i) the share of loss of HK$5,850,000 from
China Healthwise, a 18.86% owned associate of the
Company, (iii) the share of loss of HK$15,854,000
from Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (“Global
Mastermind”), a 29.04% owned associate of the
Company and the issued shares of which are listed on
GEM operated by the Exchange (stock code: 8063),
and (iv) the share of loss of HK$3,000 from China
Hong Kong Money Limited, a 30% owned associate
of the Company. These shares of losses were
partially offset by the gain on bargain purchase of an
associate of HK$14,044,000 arising from the change
in accounting treatment of the Group’s investment
in 1,483,728,240 shares in China Healthwise as
discussed above.
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Finance costs increased by 13% from HK$43,276,000
in the year ended 31 December 2018 to
HK$48,891,000 in the year ended 31 December 2019.
Such increase was mainly due to (i) an increase in
interest on other borrowings due to the full year effect
of the interest expense on loan of HK$200,000,000
granted by a finance company as the loan was drawn
in November 2018, and (ii) the first year effect of the
recognition of an interest on lease liabilities relating
to the Group’s operating leases recognised upon
application of HKFRS 16 Leases, which were partially
offset by a decrease in interest on bank borrowings
resulted from the release of the Renminbi bank loan
through the disposal of the Group’s investment
properties located in Guangzhou, Mainland China on
22 June 2018.

An income tax expense of HK$1,724,000 was
recorded in the year ended 31 December 2019,
whereas an income tax credit of HK$11,091,000
was recorded in the previous year. The recording of
the income tax expense was mainly attributable to
(i) a HK$3,438,000 increase in the Group’s money
lending business’s current year tax expense, and (ii) a
HK$6,523,000 decrease in deferred tax credit resulted
from the HK$30,549,000 decrease in allowance for
credit losses on the Group’s receivables.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations
through a combination of cash generated from
operations, equity attributable to owners of the
Company, and borrowings. Equity attributable
to owners of the Company decreased from
HK$2,655,704,000 at 31 December 2018 to
HK$2,423,931,000 at 31 December 2019. This
decrease was attributable to the loss incurred by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

At 31 December 2019, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$140,550,000 (2018:
HK$140,628,000).
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BHENMRPERLEMNZREWEMBRA
RERITER  RITERFERDIKEAE -

BE-ZE-NEF+-A=+-BLFEHSMH
S8R 1,724,000 8 5T - M = FRISRBPRE
B % 11,091,0008 7T - REMEHREAXE
ZHRN () NEEEERE 2 A FEH IR
$n3,438,000% T ; K (i) A& EEWHEZ
EEBEBEHERNA 30,549,000 8 T EHIEL
IR R 2 6,523,000 8 JTATEL °

RBEERHBER

FR - AEEZBRKEMBRE A28 HE
ANEEEZRERAHEERMES - XA FH
BEAEAEZEHE-ZE-N\E+=A=+—8
2 2,655,704,000 B TP ZE-_E—AEFE+Z
B=+—H22,423,931,0008 7T o 2R 1E T3
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RIE-AE+ZA=+—H xEEZRS
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qumdlty and financial resources (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding

borrowings of HK$655,561,000

(2018:

HK$706,812,000) representing:

(a)

the carrying amount of the Company’s
HK$300,000,000 8.00% secured notes due 2020
(the “Secured Notes”) of HK$299,841,000, which
are interest bearing at 8.00% per annum, secured
by a share charge over 100% issued shares in
China Jiuhao Health Industry Group Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the principal assets of which are (i) the rights
to construct and operate the club facilities of
a membership golf club and resort (the “Club”)
in Beijing, Mainland China, and (ii) the rights to
develop and operate a piece of 580 Chinese acre
land adjacent to the Club (the “Subject Land”)
and the rights to manage the properties erected
on the Subject Land, and maturing on 25 August
2020;

the banking facilities in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$155,720,000, comprising (i) an
instalment loan of HK$116,897,000, which is
interest bearing at 1.00% per annum over one-
month HIBOR or 3.00% per annum below the
prime rate quoted by the bank, whichever is
lower, secured by a first legal charge over the
Group’s properties located at Unit Nos. 1201,
1202, 12083, 1209, 1210, 1211 & 1212 and the
corridor on 12th Floor, Shun Tak Centre, West
Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong (the “Shun Tak Property”), guaranteed by
the Company and two wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, and maturing on 18 September
2037, (ii) an advance of HK$20,000,000 under a
revolving term loan, which is interest bearing at
HIBOR plus 2.00% per annum, secured by the
first legal charge over the Shun Tak Property,
guaranteed by the Company and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and maturing on
25 April 2020, and (iii) various advances in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$18,823,000
under the account payable financing facilities,
which is interest bearing at 2.00% per annum
over HIBOR, secured by the first legal charge
over the Shun Tak Property, guaranteed by the
Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and maturing within five months
commencing from January 2020; and

RBESRUBERE)

n=

.

—hE+ZA=+—RH ' KE@AZX
% 5 655,561,000/8 T (=& — \F :

706,812,000 ) * 5 :

(@)

Axﬁiﬂﬁﬁfﬁé%zgg,sm,oooa%r‘cz:
F = Z F 3 #§ 300,000,000 7T 8.00%
EREB(EREE ] UEFR=E
8.00% st E » WLLART —BE2EMB
AEFEIOEBREEEXEEER LA (H
FEEEANERRLEMNRPER

it -—BEEHSHRELENRBE
(TR 2SR 2BR 5 K (i) 2%

RAGEMAME 2 —E1G 3 580 A 2 it
R ERBMH ) BN UREE TR
HETEYEZRER)100% E‘E.’*ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
ZROERERBRFRRR-Z_FF
NA=Z+HHEH;

K& #%E 5 155,720,0005% T 2 R 1T @b
g BEGD B & F116,897,0008
T R—EAREBRITEAXEIFREMER
F1.00% HZBITABRREEINZ[HE
FIZE3.00% 5T B (UEBEESE) » BUAK
EENVRAEBTHED168-2005E 52
R 7 E128#1201 ~ 1202 ~ 1203 »
1209~ 1210~ 1211 % 1212%% B8 ¥ &
EER2YE(EEYEDZE—FT
HREEETF AAQATIRALATMEE
EMBATERENZ q_tihﬁ
TNBEH; (\EHRREFRETER
20,000,0008 70 ' EBR/ITEERE
MEFZER200%TE » UEEMEZE

—SEEHERE EEZK’AT&ZIK"T
—BEEMBRARERRR-ZE-_ZEF
OMEZ+HRBRHE ; & (i) ENE IEEW]'%
MEBETAELHEEEA18,823,0008t2
SHEHEFR  BEBRTEERENER
ZT2.00%E  UWEEWEZE—EE
HEERE  AAABRALNT B2
EMBARERRBEZZ S5 — At
STREAREE &
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() a loan of HK$200,000,000 granted by the
finance company, which is interest bearing at
8.00% per annum, secured by (i) the post-dated
cheques drawn in favour of the finance company
for payment of the principal and the interests
stipulated under the loan agreement, and (ii) a
personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
the Chairman of the Board and an executive
director of the Company, and maturing on 29
May 2020.

The decrease in the Group’s outstanding borrowings
was mainly due to the repayment of the cash advance
of HK$50,000,000 made to the Group from Mr. Lei
Hong Wai in January 2019.

Gearing ratio

At 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio calculated
as a percentage of total borrowings over equity
attributable to owners of the Company was 27%
(2018: 27%).

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$210,194,000 (2018:
HK$783,497,000) and 1.24 (2018: 2.19) respectively.

Capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was
no change in the Company’s capital structure.

Material acquisitions of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures

Save and except for the change in accounting
treatment of its investment in 1,483,728,240 shares
in China Healthwise from “financial assets at FVTPL”
to “interests in associates” as discussed above,
the Group did not have any material acquisitions of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Material disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
did not have any material disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.
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Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2019, the following Group’s assets
were pledged:

(a) the Shun Tak Property with a carrying amount
of HK$377,867,000 (2018: HK$402,177,000), of
which HK$218,667,000 (2018: HK$226,577,000) is
classified under “property, plant and equipment”
and HK$159,200,000 (2018: HK$175,600,000)
is classified under “investment properties”, for
securing the banking facilities granted to the
Group; and

(b) the 100% issued shares in China Jiuhao Health
Industry Group Limited with an unaudited
combined net assets of HK$1,041,436,000 (2018:
HK$1,101,487,000) after adjusting for purchase
price allocation for securing the Secured Notes.

Material commitments

At 31 December 2019, the Group had a total
commitment of HK$26,854,000 (2018: HK$25,283,000)
relating to the development costs of the Subject Land,
which were contracted but not provided for.

Exchange risk and hedging

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to exchange risk
with respect mainly to Renminbi which may affect its
performance. The directors closely monitor statement
of financial position and cash flow exchange risk
exposures and where considered appropriate use
financial instruments, such as forward exchange
contracts, foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge this exchange risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, no financial
instruments for hedging purposes were used by the
Group.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2019, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

RZBE-NF+ZHA=1+—H  AEEBECEH
THEE :

(@ FEY¥ZEKMHEIMEAR377,867,0008
(=T — \ 4 :402,177,00058 T ) *
& $1218,667,00058 T(=Z & — N\ & :
226,577,000 B T) n EAINE  BE
% 5% 1% 159,200,0008 T(=ZF— N
% :175,600,000 B L) o EAIKREY
¥ UESREFAEERZRTHE
)53

(b) FEIEREEXEEEERATZ100%
BRITRY SHAZBEEIEEZX
KEREHEEFEE1,041,436,000
B (=& — A\ % :1,101,487,00078
L) UEBEREE -

ERERE

RoE-NF+ZA=+—-B AEEH T
MR 2 ERMACTNELERBEREAER
26,854,00078 T (=& — J\ F : 25,283,000
BIT)
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At 31 December 2019, the headcount of the Group
was 71 (2018: 96). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to HK$53,885,000 (2018: HK$82,959,000).
The decrease in staff costs was mainly attributable
to (i) a HK$20,553,000 decrease in discretionary
bonuses, and (ii) the absence of the previous year’s
equity-settled share-based payment expenses
of HK$9,063,000. In addition to basic salaries,
contributions to retirement benefits scheme and
discretionary bonus, staff benefits include medical
scheme and share options.

Key performance indicators
The Company has defined the following key

performance indicators (“KPIs”) which are closely
aligned with the performance of the Group.

Y

EEER S

B 8NN NNNRE AwS
PO A W D

RZE-hhFE+=A=+—8 XEEZE
EABAETIA(ZE—N\FE 96 A) - HEZ=
E-NFF+_A=+—HBLEFEZEIKXRK
(BFEESME) 5 53,885,0008 T (=ZF—N
F 82,959,000 ) c EIRABPEER
R () BB ALRL 2> 20,553,00058 7T 5 K (ii) iR
DEFURELEE 2 IR X 7B % 9,063,000
BT - REARFS - BREFFEEHAK
%’%Eﬂ%  BIRMEREEETEIREBR

FERBER

ARBEHBATEHARERRET —H2x
EXRBAEE(EERREED -

For the year ended 31 December

BZT-A=t-HLEE
Notes 2019 2018
4 “E-NE —E-N\E
Revenue W& HK$198,796,000 & 7t HK$188,037,00038 T
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the AR FEEABEAEEFE
Company HK$209,148,000 & Tt HK$586,090,000& 7T
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KA R#H AL HK$2,423,931,0008 7T HK$2,655,704,000 % 7T
Return on financial assets at FVTPL BRATEMABRRZEREEY 1
B -18% -41%
Return on loan receivables EhREFH 2 EH 2 9% 9%
Return on capital employed in sale of jewelry HEREERMAERZER 3
products 0% -16%
Return on property investment NEREZEHR 4 -3% 3%
Notes: Kt
1. Return on financial assets at FVTPL includes trading 1. BRAFEFAEZRZEREECZOREEES

gain and losses, gains and losses arising on change
in fair value, and dividend income. It is measured as a
percentage against opening fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL.

2. Return on loan receivables includes interest income and
bad debts written-off. It is measured as a percentage
against average loan receivables (before accumulated
allowance for credit losses and accrued interest
receivables).
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Notes: (Continued)

3. Return on capital employed in sale of jewelry products
represents segment profit or loss from sale of jewelry
products business divided by average capital employed
and is measured as a percentage.

4. Return on property investment includes gains and losses
arising on change in fair value, rental income, gains and
losses on disposal less amortisation of intangible assets
in respect of the Club, depreciation expenses of the
property, plant and equipment of the Club, operating
lease rentals in respect of the Club, depreciation of right-
of-use assets in respect of the Club, and interest on
lease liabilities in respect of the Club. It is measured as
a percentage against opening fair value of investment
properties, opening carrying amounts of intangible assets
in respect of the Club and opening carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment of the Club.

Commentary on the performance of the Group against
each of the KPls is set out above and “Operations
Review” below.

These KPIs are reviewed regularly and amended
occasionally to correspond with the changing mix of
the Group’s principal activities.

OPERATIONS REVIEW
Sale of financial assets business

During the year, the Group’s sale of financial assets
business reported a segment loss (before taxation)
of HK$79,272,000, which mainly included (i) a gain
of HK$791,000 from trading of Hong Kong listed
equities, (ii) a loss of HK$80,487,000 arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL,
and (iii) the dividend income from Hong Kong listed
equities held by the Group of HK$670,000. The
segment loss improved from HK$289,126,000 in the
year ended 31 December 2018 to HK$79,272,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2019, which was due to
a HK$215,724,000 decrease in change in fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL. Accordingly, return on
financial assets at FVTPL improved from -41% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to -18% for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

3 s h
TEXRBIEEE)
Bt : (4&)

3. HERHERMAEACZEREHEKREERE
B2 D EENREEEAFIIAAESR » WitHE
BEDL -

4. YERECZEBREELAFELSDELEZRERE
BHESBRA  HESHZBRERBERUER
B EECBE 2 BERR
BFERY EHEMzKLHERS A6
Sz ERAREEZNEURERS2HEESR
BERE - LREMEZHBAQFE - BREHRZ
BREEHVREEREM2ME  BERR
BeHAREEFESBEIL -

RARERRZBEETRZRBER ZFWEAR L
MR T X[ R ERE] -

ZETEXRBIERE TR L FRERT - B
EAKETEE2B c TREKAS -

EXoE
HETHEERK

FR AEBCHESCRHEELE 2RO E
B (BRBiLAT)79,272,000i8 T TEEBEIHE
EEBLTREWE791,00058 T (iR A
FEFAEBRRZEMEEATFEEHELE
E71880,487,0008 T ; R(i\HAEEEZFAE
2EBIFTREZREWAG670,00087T 2
BEEREE - N\E+=-A=+—HLHE
fE2289,126,000/ 8 tHEERE_Z—N &
+ZA=1+—BLEEEZ79,272,00058 7T *
HIHREAFEFABERZERHEED
P ESE R 4 215,724,00058 T - B I - %
AFEFAEZERZEHEEZRRHAEZE
—E-N\FE+ A=+ —-BHLEFEEZ-41% K
EZHE-E-NEFE+ZBA=+—HLEE
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business (Continued)

e L — -

éale of financial assets

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
acquired four Hong Kong listed equities with the
aggregate acquisition costs of HK$155,910,000 and
made a trading gain of HK$791,000 from selling four
Hong Kong listed equities with the aggregate carrying
amounts of HK$68,496,000 at the aggregate net sale
proceeds of HK$69,287,000.

As Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton has been appointed
as an executive director of China Healthwise on 28
October 2019, the Group has two executive board
seats in the board of directors of China Healthwise
and is regarded as having a significant influence
over China Healthwise. As a result, the Group
changed the accounting treatment of its investment
in 1,483,728,240 shares in China Healthwise
from “financial assets at FVTPL” to “interests in
associates”. Such change in the accounting treatment
resulted in the transfer of the carrying amount of the
investment in China Healthwise of HK$53,414,000 to
“interests in associates”, and the recognition of (i)
the loss of HK$39,848,000 arising on change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL for transferring the
1,488,728,240 shares in China Healthwise to “interests
in associates” at fair value on 28 October 2019, and
(i) the gain on bargain purchase of an associate of
HK$14,044,000.

Movements in the carrying amount of Hong Kong
listed and unlisted equities held by the Group during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as
follows:

BESHEEEE(E)

BE-Z—-—hNE+=ZA=+—HBLEFE &
EEBANERBLTRE  BBEARLES
155,910,000 B Tt R HENEFB EHRE -
HERE 4 {E £ 68,496,000/8 T - MAHEFR
BRIEEEH69,287,0008 T MELES
25 791,00038 7T ©

HRERBEELTER=ZZE-HhLhE+A=+N\H
BEZIATHEEBECHITES  ~5H
RABEEREEESETEEMERNTES
EEN IHEANTREEREEEARY
EhoAM NEEBKERENRDEE R
1,483,728 240 R A 2 5T BB FH &
HIEAFES A ERRCEREE |IFENAE
[REBELNTzERZ ]  ZETEEREEE
SEYNRPESEREIRMEESS3,414,000
BIzREEBZEIREE L IR K
BROR=ZB-LEFEFT+A=-+N\BEFTEHE
BE{EE 1,483,728 240 R D IZ AP EEE S
[REBELNT R | SEAFEFAERR
ZEMEEDNFEE B EEEE 39,848,000
B RNZEBE-—BHEZELATI2KWHE
14,044,000 & 7T °

BE_Z-NER_E-N\E+ZA=+—H
IEFE BAEEFE2EBLLmRIELTR
EZRAEZBOT -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZKREE 287,302 662,943
Add: Acquisitions /- DN 155,910 34,730
(Loss)/gain arising on change in ERENEE AT 2
fair value upon transfer HEATEEDES
to interests in associates 2 (E518) & (39,848) 554
Less: Disposals B HE (68,496) (84,111)
Loss arising on change in fair ATEEBEEZEER
value (40,639) (296,765)
Transfer to interests in EREREENR 2
associates FEZ (53,414) (30,049)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8BzZEEAE 240,815 287,302
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Details of the Hong Kong listed and unlisted equities RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—HHAEEBZFEZ
held by the Group at 31 December 2019 are as ERALITRILTREZFBNOT :
follows:
Fair value as
compared Gain/(loss)
to the arising on
consolidated Dividend change in
total assets of received/ fair value
Number of Fair value the Group  receivable in  recognised in
shares held at 31 at31 the year ended the year ended
at 31 December December 31 December 31 December
Notes  December 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
BZ
“E-NE
T=A
AY{ER =t-H
R ARER BZ LEE
“E-hf R “E-NF ZE-NE 2R
TR “E-NE 128 tZA AVERD
=t+-H e =t+-A =t-At figtz
Name of Hong Kong listed BEZ =1-A BREE EgEl/ s/
equities EALTRESR it RG%E ZAYE BEZLE EhzRE (%)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FEn FEn FEr
Affluent Partners Holdings Ltd. ~ #EERERLF
(stock code: 1466) (RBARE : 1466) f 16,742,000 1,22 0.03% - (18,207)
BC Technology Group Ltd. BCHAEBERAR
(stock code: 863) (RARE  863) 2 18,000,000 144,000 3.76% - 54,000
Brockman Mining Ltd. PRREREERLE
(stock code: 159) (BBRE : 159) 3 40,220,000 5,309 0.14% - (1,931)
Frontier Services Group Ltd. FERRERERLA
(stock code: 500) (RBRE : 500) 4 21,340,000 14,938 0.39% - (11,524)
Heng Tai Consumables Group Ltd. S%EEREEERAF
(stock code: 197) (RS - 197) 5 30,000,000 5,400 0.14% - (336)
Huayi Tencent Entertainment FEEIRYERAT
Company Ltd. (RARS : 419)
(stock code: 419) 6 200,000,000 22,000 0.57% - (16,800)
Kingston Financial Group Ltd. ~ #FESAEEERAR
(stock code: 1031) (R - 1031) 7 33,028,000 26,423 0.69% 195 (35,010)
KuangChi Science Ltd. ERNERRAT
(stock code: 439) (B3fe3 : 439) 8 23,000,000 6,55 0.17% - (4,945)
Lajin Entertainment Network IEPREEERAF
Group Ltd. (stock code: 8172)  (Rffk%: : 8172) 9 53,500,000 5,350 0.14% - (5,189)
Link-Asia International Co. Ltd. ~ BEEREXERAT
(stock code: 1143) (RBARE : 1143) 10 30,000,000 930 0.02% - (1,10)
Town Health International Medical EEEREREEERAF
Group Ltd. (stock code: 3886) (B : 3886) 1 70,000,000 7,103 0.19% 175 892
Yunfeng Financial Group Ltd. ~ EZ4RBEEERAA
(stock code: 376) (RBRE : 376) 2 444,000 1,585 0.04% - #79)
240,815 670 (40,639)
Name of Hong Kong unlisted &% LTRESHE
equity
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Ltd. ~ i 25BERERAT 13 90,000,000 - 0.00% - -
240,815 670 (40,639)
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Notes:

Affluent Partners Holdings Ltd. (“Affluent Partners”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) purchasing,
processing, designing, production and wholesale
distribution of pearls and jewellery products, and (ii) the
operation of strategic investment and financial services,
with the objective to include investments in real estate
agency business, real estate investment funds, and other
potential investment opportunities.

Based on its published financial information, Affluent
Partners had equity attributable to owners of
HK$197,978,000 and HK$347,977,000 at 31 March 2019
and 30 September 2019 respectively. Affluent Partners
recorded a loss attributable to owners of HK$42,816,000
and HK$27,591,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
the six months ended 30 September 2019 respectively.

As disclosed in its 2019 interim report, with the completion
of GBP3.5 million 6% convertible guaranteed redeemable
loan notes issued by Wonderland (UK) Holdings Limited,
its subsequent real estate agency business, the investment
in the Orient Capital Real Estate Fund SP and the co-
working space industry, Affluent Partners expected that its
strategic investment and financial services segment would
diversify its income streams and generate more investment
returns on its available funds from time to time. In view of
the recent market downturns and the uncertainty of Brexit,
Affluent Partners might consider minimising its investments
in the United Kingdom. In light of recent social incidents in
Hong Kong, Affluent Partners expected market sentiment
might take some time to recover. Affluent Partners
foresaw that the co-working space industry and lettings in
Hong Kong would become very tough in the near future.
Affluent Partners expected that the strategic investment
and financial services segment would be one of its growth
drivers in the future and would make continuous efforts
to find appropriate investment projects in other areas.
Meanwhile, Affluent Partners would continue enhancing the
development of the mature pearls and jewellery business,
actively participating in various important jewellery &
gem fairs around the world and optimising operation
efficiency and productivity in a bid to stay competitive.
With the entering into of the collaboration agreement on
26 October 2018 relating to setting up one or more REITs
and the development of its strategic investment and
financial services segment, Affluent Partners would focus
its investments and operations more in the real estate
and investment and asset management sectors especially
in Europe and Asia. Affluent Partners would further use
its resources as a listed company to add value for the
acquisition projects, so as to increase its profitability and
return.
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REHECHRZHEER  BER-_Z—NEF=
B=+t—-HBER=ZZE—AENA=1THZHEEAE
15 D Bl A 197,978,000 % 7Tt )% 347,977,000
B - BERBE-_Z-hE=A=+—HL1L
FERBZE-ZE-hhEAA=+HLXEAR
DRI BHEAE AE(LE 842,816,000 T K
27,591,000 58 7T °

HMOME—_ZE-NFHHEBETREE BEZE
Wonderland (UK) Holdings Limited 52 31T
3,500,000% 82 6% AIRKREERITELER
EZR -ETHREE2EHERBER 8ER
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BC Technology Group Ltd. (“BC Technology”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the advertising
business and the provision of business park area
management services in Mainland China, and the provision
of digital assets trading, brokerage, technologies and
services business in Hong Kong.

Based on its published financial information, BC
Technology had equity attributable to owners of
RMB30,141,000 and RMB22,377,000 at 31 December 2018
and 30 June 2019 respectively. BC Technology recorded
a loss attributable to owners of RMB161,233,000 and
RMB133,292,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the six months ended 30 June 2019 respectively.

As stated in its interim report, BC Technology would
increase its investment in Hong Kong and other key
jurisdictions in Asia, where it was focused on provision of
a digital asset trading platform and related Software as a
services Service (“SaaS”) offerings, in order to diversify
revenue and expand its customer base. Geographic
expansion remained a priority for BC Technology as
the market for its businesses became more global.
BC Technology had opened an office in Singapore in
July 2019. In the first half of 2019, BC Technology had
benefited from the growing acceptance of digital assets
and experienced encouraging signs of institutional
adoption due to increased regulatory clarity. This was
evidenced by large technology and financial services firms
announcing their intent to launch their own digital assets.
In addition, the recent statement by the Financial Action
Task Force had provided meaningful regulatory clarity
to current and future market participants. This clarity,
coupled with BC Technology’s world-class technology,
risk management, and compliance capabilities would
assist it to differentiate from competitors. BC Technology
had already seen increasing interest from institutions
that recognised it as one of the few market participants
that could comply with new and emerging regulations.
As regulation became clearer and the market for BC
Technology’s services became mainstream, large financial
institutions and technology firms would seek to partner
with BC Technology to enter the digital asset ecosystem.
BC Technology would continue to build its capabilities
in technology, security, risk, and compliance systems as
required by regulators who would oversee digital asset
platform operators. BC Technology believed that both
its existing advertising business and business park area
management services businesses, together with the
growing blockchain technology and digital asset trading
platform and SaaS offerings, would continue to be the key
revenue streams in the near future.
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Brockman Mining Ltd. (“Brockman Mining”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the development
and exploration of iron ore mining projects in Australia.

Based on its published financial information,
Brockman Mining had equity attributable to owners of
HK$631,970,000 and HK$617,659,000 at 30 June 2019
and 31 December 2019 respectively. Brockman Mining
recorded a profit attributable to owners of HK$67,588,000
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and a loss attributable
to owners of HK$13,508,000 for the six months ended 31
December 2019.

As disclosed in its 2019/20 interim report, Brockman
Mining and Polaris Metals Pty. Ltd. (“Polaris”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Mineral Resources Limited (“MRL”),
had progressed activities towards satisfaction of their
farm-in obligations in relation to the Farm-In Joint Venture
Agreement dated 26 July 2018 (the “FJV Agreement”)
over Brockman Mining’s Marillana Iron Ore Project. Both
parties had agreed that extra time had been required to
undertake additional drilling and metallurgical testwork to
ensure that there were no fatal flaws in the mine plan and
process plant design. Hence, the parties had agreed on
19 July 2019 to extend certain key dates pertaining to the
FJV Agreement. Under the terms of the FJV Agreement
and following satisfaction of the conditions precedent and
completion of the farm-in obligations, Polaris would earn
a 50% interest in the Marillana Iron Ore Project and MRL
would be responsible for the development of the mine,
construction and operation of the processing plant. MRL
had also committed to the construction and operation of
ore haulage and port infrastructure to facilitate the export
of the Marillana Iron Ore Project’s product. Following the
recent agreed variations to the FJV Agreement, it was
expected that construction of the infrastructure would
commence before the end of 2020 and be operational
before the end of 2022. The establishment of the joint
venture would unlock the value of the Marillana Iron Ore
Project and might assist in the future development of
Brockman Mining’s other iron ore projects in the Pilbara.
Upon the completion of the farm-in obligations, the joint
venture on the Marillana Iron Ore Project should be
established and development and construction of the
project should commence.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Frontier Services Group Ltd. (“Frontier Services”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of aviation logistics security, insurance and infrastructure
related services, and the provision of online financial
market information.

Based on its published financial information, Frontier
Services had equity attributable to owners of
HK$718,738,000 at 31 December 2019. Frontier Services
recorded a loss attributable to owners of HK$354,793,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As disclosed in its annual results announcement, Frontier
Services had entered into another milestone in 2020. With
the view to giving full play of its “four-in-one” advantages,
Frontier Services would consolidate its resources in all
aspects and focus its resources and efforts in expanding
the development of five major logistics channels and
significant projects, so as to vigorously promote its
business through professionalism, internationalisation
and localisation. Among these key markets of Frontier
Services, its businesses in the Democratic Republic of
Congo, Cambodia, Laos and Myanmar had been fully
developed. In the ensuing year, a number of significant
projects were expected to achieve fruitful results for
its principal businesses, including security, insurance,
logistics and infrastructure segments. In addition,
Frontier Services had taken advantage of the compelling
opportunities to cultivate its newly-explored markets, like
Bangladesh, and to move forward with their development.
Meanwhile, on the foundation of the principal businesses,
various comprehensive projects in relation to energy,
mining and airport management had been explored, fully
reflecting Frontier Services’ advantages and capabilities in
developing overseas business and integrating resources,
thereby laying a solid foundation for the growth in Frontier
Services’ overall revenue. Upon the rationalisation of its
principal subsidiaries and associates in 2019, Frontier
Services would further integrate and synergise the
business development of different regions/countries in
2020 to better align its development strategies, capitalise
the respective competitive strengths, provide superior
services for customers, and ultimately deliver greater
returns to its shareholders. Besides, the establishment
of the US$50,000,000 investment fund with an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC Capital Holdings
Limited represented an excellent opportunity for Frontier
Services to promote its diversified development and made
better use of the advantages from the unique business
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model of Frontier Services, maximising its returns with
minimum investment. At the beginning of 2020, Frontier
Services had been exposed to the tremendous impacts of
coronavirus outbreak on the socio-economic environment.
Such stressful environment had presented a daunting
challenge to Frontier Services, as all of its members, from
the leaders at the headquarter to every frontline staff,
had to continue their efforts to find opportunities in such
crisis and unleash the potential under pressure based on
the established strategic layout, thereby realising their
commitment to the board of directors and shareholders.
In this regard, Frontier Services remained optimistic that
with the guidance and support from the board of directors,
its excellent team could meet the challenges, overcome
difficulties and deliver growth amid headwinds by
upholding our unique model and team'’s spirit of struggle.

Heng Tai Consumables Group Ltd. (“Heng Tai”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the trading
of packaged foods, beverages, household consumable
products and cold chain products; (ii) the trading of agri-
products and the upstream farming business; (iii) the
provision of cold chain logistics services and value-added
post-harvest food processing and (iv) other businesses
primarily arising from the securities brokerage business,
the trademark sub-licensing in petrol business and the
tourist retailing business.

Based on its published financial information, Heng Tai
had equity attributable to owners of HK$1,851,992,000
and HK$1,792,249,000 at 30 June 2019 and 31 December
2019 respectively. Heng Tai recorded a loss attributable
to owners of HK$285,081,000 and HK$45,973,000 for the
year ended 30 June 2019 and the six months ended 31
December 2019 respectively.

As disclosed in Heng Tai’s 2019/20 interim report, the
operating environment had substantially worsened during
the period under review. On the global front, the global
economic slowdown and the trade tensions between
Mainland China and the United States had severely
weakened consumer confidence, which had resulted in
weak market demand. In August 2019, Renminbi had
fallen past the important psychological level of 7 against
the United States dollar for the first time since 2008. The
depreciation of Renminbi and increase in sales discount
had put downward pressure on Heng Tai’s gross profit
margin. The fierce competition from domestic brands
and products had remained a major threat to Heng

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Tai’s traditional trading business, especially considering
their price advantage and overwhelming advertisement.
Heng Tai had needed to adopt more aggressive pricing
strategies to maintain its competitiveness during the
period under review. Looking forward, the coronavirus
outbreak was the greatest uncertainty for the global
economy, if the outbreak was a long-lasting one, there
would be substantial consequences for Mainland China
and the global economy. On top of that, there were many
other uncertainties such as the rise on protectionism, the
risk of stagflation, the outcome of Brexit and the trade
disputes among different nations. Heng Tai would take
a more cautious stance for its future development and
continue to implement cost-saving initiatives, as well as
ensure a strong and healthy financial position to weather
any unforeseeable headwinds.

Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Ltd. (“Huayi
Tencent”) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
(i) entertainment and media business, and (ii) provision of
offline healthcare and wellness services.

Based on its published financial information, Huayi
Tencent had equity attributable to owners of
HK$833,210,000 at 31 December 2019. Huayi Tencent
recorded a loss attributable to owners of HK$28,770,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As stated in its annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2019, Huayi Tencent expected
that, given the successive completion of entertainment
and media projects which it had financed and produced,
the season of harvest is now on the horizon. It was
anticipated that five movies of Huayi Tencent would be
screened across the globe and in Mainland China during
the year 2020 and 2021, including productions directed
by famous Hollywood directors and films enthusiastically
talked about in Korea. Huayi Tencent was confident that
these productions would attain success and significantly
boost its revenue generated from the entertainment
and media operations. Against the backdrop of rapid
expansion of Mainland China film market, Huayi Tencent
had long since optimised its market footprint. Through
the collaboration with Huayi Brothers International Ltd. in
producing and distributing more appealing productions
with first-rate content, Huayi Tencent looked forward to
embracing the forthcoming new era in which Mainland
China became the largest film market in the world. With
the domination and supremacy of American films in
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worldwide entertainment, Huayi Tencent had been actively
seeking global opportunities for investing in prime films
and television dramas, and had already confirmed its
investment in several film projects, including “Moonfall”,
the Hollywood science-fiction and disaster epic. Huayi
Tencent would continue developing projects with topnotch
film studios and producers in North America and Europe,
etc., so that different works might be presented to
the audience continuously. As Korean films were well
received in the market and audience both locally and
internationally, including Mainland China, Huayi Tencent
believed that high-quality Korean films and television
dramas would be in strong demand in Korean as well as
in other Asian markets. Therefore, Huayi Tencent would
invest in those prime projects in the future and step
up its efforts in hoarding up quality Korean intellectual
property. As there were signs of the Korean entertainment
and culture staging a comeback in the Mainland China’s
market, Huayi Tencent would seize the chance and
introduce preeminent Korean films and television dramas
into Mainland China. The theatrical release of films in
Mainland China and some other countries/regions was
currently affected by the outbreak of COVID-19. Huayi
Tencent would closely monitor the latest development of
the epidemic and coordinate with the global distributors to
set appropriate theatrical release slots in Mainland China
and other countries/regions. Huayi Tencent did not expect
there would be long-term material adverse impact to its
global production and distribution of films. On the other
hand, the repercussion of the epidemic on Huayi Tencent’s
healthcare and wellness services operation was confined
to the affiliated food and beverage operations thus far, as
the 18-hole golf course in Beijing was closed in the winter
season as it had been in prior years. Subject to the then
development of the epidemic, the 18-hole golf course
in Beijing was set to re-open in phases since the end of
March 2020. Huayi Tencent would continuously monitor
the development of the epidemic, evaluate the potential
impact on its healthcare and wellness services operation,
and formulate corresponding measures.

Kingston Financial Group Ltd. (“Kingston Financial”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
a wide range of financial services which include securities
brokerage, underwriting and placements, margin and
initial public offering financing, corporate finance advisory
services, futures brokerage and asset management
services. The group also provides gaming and hospitality
services in Macau.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Based on its published financial information, Kingston
Financial had equity attributable to owners of
HK$21,522,041,000 and HK$22,042,895,000 at 31 March
2019 and 30 September 2019 respectively. Kingston
Financial recorded a profit attributable to owners of
HK$1,001,927,000 and HK$477,604,000 for the year ended
31 March 2019 and the six months ended 30 September
2019 respectively.

As disclosed in its 2019 interim report, Mainland China
and the United States had preliminarily agreed to remove
some tariffs, showing that they might be moving closer to
reach a trade war truce. The Federal Reserve cut interest
rates for the third time in November 2019, reversing nearly
all of 2018’s rate increases as uncertainty from trade war
and slowing global economic growth continued to pose
risks to the United States economy. It had been convinced
that China government would continue to exert its strength
in overall development and growth. China revised the
rules to allow onshore investors to buy companies with
weighted voting rights in Hong Kong and effective on 28
October 2019, that brought positive effect to the stock
market. These acts might provide some insurance against
ongoing risks. The Securities and Futures Commission (the
“SFC”) had issued a new regulatory framework for granting
licenses to centralised virtual asset trading platforms.
Besides, the investment sentiment was expected to
recover upon the positive progress of development of the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (“GBA”).
The growth of new business in the GBA region would offer
ample opportunities for financial services industry. Looking
forward, Kingston Financial would adopt a responsive
approach, to prudently deploy and implement development
plans that were in line with the market situation. With
its strong visibility across the region, Kingston Financial
was well-poised to grasp the opportunities arising
from the existing mature Hong Kong market, as well as
the emerging capital market in the GBA. The opening
of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, new resorts
and entertainment facilities would support a healthy
development of Macau’s economy. Kingston Financial
would regularly review its policy to respond timely to the
changing environment and sustain its growth in its hotel
and gaming segments.
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KuangChi Science Ltd. (“KuangChi Science”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the research and
development and manufacture of innovative products for
future technology businesses, and the provision of other
innovative technology service solutions.

Based on its published financial information,
KuangChi Science had equity attributable to owners of
HK$1,390,051,000 and HK$1,264,447,000 at 31 December
2018 and 30 June 2019 respectively. KuangChi Science
recorded a loss attributable to owners of HK$457,609,000
and HK$91,659,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the six months 30 June 2019 respectively.

As stated in its interim report, KuangChi Science had
achieved certain breakthroughs in the “Al overlay”
technology and its application during the six months
ended 30 June 2019. Its “Matrix Intelligent Engine” had
stood the concurrent testing of maximum 70,000 visits
per second with its powerful computing capacity. The
“Al Overlay Network” had showed its considerable merits
in real scenarios in the Bund, Shanghai, which had
provided a main test field for the constant optimising
of the technology, and had been well recognised by
the police. Besides, the promotion of technology had
achieved remarkable results in Chongging market with
purchase orders from relevant customers. During the
six months ended 30 June 2019, KuangChi Science had
actively developed the “Al Overlay Network” in various
demonstration regions such as Shanghai, Chongqing,
Shunde, Shenzhen and Xiong’an, and had continued to
promote “Al Overlay Network” nationwide. As for the
“future space” technology business, KuangChi Science
had gradually reduced the R&D investment in “future
space” technology during the six months ended 30
June 2019. KuangChi Science had mainly leveraged
existing research and development results of aerospace
products like “Cloud” and drones (“KC” series and “H”
series) to collect multi-source information such as visible
light and infrared radiation to provide basic data for “Al
Overlay Network”. The management believed that, with
the development of 5G network, KuangChi Science’s “Al
Overlay” technology would gradually be applied to more
vertical industries in combination with its own development
goals and industrial needs, especially in accelerating the
construction of smart cities. “Al Overlay Network” would
become a new driving force for economic and social
development, with huge application demand and market
prospects in smart cities.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Lajin Entertainment Network Group Ltd. (“Lajin
Entertainment”) and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the business of investment and production of
movies and media contents, and the provision of artists
management services.

Based on its published financial information, Lajin
Entertainment had equity attributable to owners of
HK$620,824,000 and HK$602,087,000 at 31 December
2018 and 30 June 2019 respectively. Lajin Entertainment
recorded a loss attributable to owners of HK$236,071,000
and HK$18,661,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the six months ended 30 June 2019 respectively.

As disclosed in its interim report, Lajin Entertainment was
the lead investor and producer in “Faithful Dog Hachiko”
(CERNAY), “The Tibet Code” ((E i ZH)), and “Legend
of the Galactic Heroes” ({#R i %& # & 3% )), These were
the main focus of its investments in the coming two to
three years which would receive Lajin Entertainment’s
full support and plan to release or distribute in or after
2020. Furthermore, the previously invested cinematic
projects like “The Dynasty Warriors” ((H e =ZEE#)),
“Theory of Ambition” ((EBEE)), “I'm Livin’ It” ((Z
A)), “Ori Princess, the Elf is Coming” ((FHUERZHEE
RTH), and “In Winter” ((EE@%IE)) were either under
post-production or scheduled for release while “Fagara
in Mara” ({(FEMZ¥)), and “If You are Happy” ((EE
E72 /M) had been confirmed to be released during
2019. Amongst all artists under the management of Lajin
Entertainment, Chen Xinzhe (BR{fS%%) showed enormous
potential and had been put in the limelight quickly. In
addition, other artists of Lajin Entertainment, Xu Junjie (&
#%#) and Ye Zicheng (EF3), demonstrated remarkable
performance. Lajin Entertainment would strive to secure
more commercial advertisement jobs for its artists and
leverage on the facilities available in its Lajin Base, located
in Yi Zhuang (7F#) comprising two 6-storey buildings of
approximately 5,600 square metres in total and houses
various facilities and functionalities, to provide them with
necessary trainings and shooting/production environment,
enabling these future stars to shine. Lajin Music (FIf&
#) had augmented the copyright of a large number of
high quality original music compositions, through the past
two-year efforts, covering a variety of mainstream and
non-mainstream music in styles of pop, rock, classical,
folk, electronic, rap, etc. Lajin Music had developed a
comprehensive music promotion and distribution network
and commenced copyright operation in full swing: Lajin
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Music collaborated with various domestic mainstream
music platforms, such as QQ Music, KuGou Music, Kuwo
Music, NetEase Cloud Music, Xiami Music as well as
TikTok and gradually opened overseas issuance channels.
Lajin Music also established strategic partnerships with
nearly 100 radio stations and internet radio channels in
Mainland China. Lajin Base supplied both front stage
and backstage talents for the domestic movie, television,
music and performing arts industries. It also produced
high-quality cultural and entertainment content of
positive energy and values for the market. Lajin Base had
discussed cooperation with several production houses
in relation to the provision of its venue and facilities and
the advanced programmes productions technology for the
production of some specific variety shows. In addition,
Lajin Base also cooperated with various platforms,
such as providing venues and professional services to
artist management companies for nurturing artist and
“internet celebrity” anchor. Lajin Entertainment would
continue to promote Lajin Base’s competitive edge and
strive to secure cooperation of similar nature so as to
deepen the co-operative relationship with the leading
streaming platforms in the industry through quality
content production in forms of livestreaming, short videos,
music, artists and variety entertainment, to increase the
stable income stream, as well as to ensure the maximum
utilisation of its facilities. The management of Lajin
Entertainment would regularly evaluate the utilisation and
positioning of Lajin Base and formulate the best strategy
for its deployment, together with optimising the operational
model and human resources management for Lajin Base
in order to maximise the return for Lajin Entertainment and
its shareholders.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd. (“Link-Asia”, formerly
known as China Healthcare Enterprise Group Ltd.) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) electronic
manufacturing services; (i) marketing and distribution of
communication products; and (iii) the securities and other
assets investment.

Based on its published financial information, Link-Asia
had equity attributable to owners of HK$572,804,000 and
HK$526,405,000 at 31 December 2018 and 30 June 2019
respectively. Link-Asia recorded a loss attributable to
owners of HK$57,984,000 and HK$56,169,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the six months ended 30
June 2019 respectively.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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As stated in its interim report, Link-Asia would seek to
bolster ties with its business partners in order to seize
new opportunities for its electronic manufacturing services
(“EMS”) and marketing and distribution of communications
products businesses, as well as to work together in
overcoming whatever challenges that might arise. For its
EMS business in particular, Link-Asia would direct still
greater effort towards the research and development of
loT, Wi-Fi and Bluetooth enabled products. With regard to
its securities and other assets investment business, Link-
Asia would continue to look for business opportunities
that could further enhance its growth and facilitate value
creation for its investors. Though the global business
climate was becoming increasingly unpredictable, with
downside risk a growing concern, Link-Asia remained
cautiously optimistic about its fortunes in the longer term
due to the strategies in place for bolstering its existing
operations, while at the same time expanding its business
influence.

Town Health International Medical Group Ltd. (“Town
Health”) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in healthcare business in Hong Kong, which comprises
managed care, medical and dental clinics operation and
provision of beauty and cosmetic medical services. The
other major business segment of Town Health is healthcare
business in Mainland China, which includes provision of
hospital and clinic management services. Town Health is
also involved in direct investment in healthcare sector, and
investment in securities and properties.

Based on its published financial information, Town Health
had equity attributable to owners of HK$4,015,547,000
at 31 December 2019. Town Health recorded a loss
attributable to owners of HK$8,414,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.

As disclosed in its annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 December 2019, the outbreak of the
coronavirus (COVID-19) had imposed tremendous impact
on the economy and social well-being in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and worldwide since the beginning of January
2020. Business of Town Health was anticipated to be
adversely impacted in the short-term, and the results for
the first half of the year had been dragged down by this
sudden epidemic. However, after the outbreak was over,
medical demand would be gradually released, health and
hygiene awareness of the citizens would generally be
enhanced, and the demand for quality medical services
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was always with high rigidity. Town Health expected to
maintain a steady development. Town Health had always
been confident in the medium to long-term development
of the medical and health industry. Apart from responding
flexibly to market changes, Town Health would adopt more
forward-looking measures as a long-term development
plan. While striving to maintain its development in the
Hong Kong healthcare business, Town Health would
continue to devote to the healthcare market in Mainland
China. The healthcare services market in Mainland China
was expected to have a bright future because of the
acceleration of population aging, growing gross national
income (GNI), heightened public awareness of health, and
a growing demand for high-end healthcare services. As the
first Hong Kong healthcare enterprise to manage a large
3A-grade hospital in Mainland China, Town Health would
leverage its medical operation management prowess,
rich practical experience gained over years and excellent
medical team to further expand its business operations
in the healthcare market in Mainland China. Also, with
the backing of China Life Group’s robust strength, and
vast management experience and resources of the new
management from China Life Group, Town Health had
every confidence in its business sustainability and ability
to continue to stay at the forefront of the industry. Town
Health would explore Mainland China market with a focus
on the Greater Bay Area. The favourable medical policies
of the Greater Bay Area would open new avenues for Hong
Kong specialists of different medical disciplines to develop
Mainland China market and provide high-end customers
with premium healthcare services in line with international
standards and facilitate Mainland China customers to seek
medical consultations or diagnoses. Town Health was also
capable of arranging the Mainland China customers to visit
Hong Kong for further treatment if they required surgeries.
In the future, Town Health would launch more indepth
cooperation with China Life Group’s Mainland China
companies, and develop medical tourism services aiming
at high-end Mainland China customers, and achieve mutual
access of medical resources between Mainland China
and Hong Kong. As an active response to Mainland China
government’s favourable policies of encouraging Hong
Kong-funded healthcare institutions to establish medical
practices in Mainland China, Town Health would seize the
opportunity, and, by making good use of its experience
and strengths, introduce Hong Kong’s comprehensive
triage system into China, aiming to become a benchmark
for Mainland China’s healthcare industry.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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On 27 November 2017, the SFC issued a direction under
Section 8(1) of the Securities and Futures (Stock Market
Listing) Rules to suspend the trading in the shares of Town
Health with effect from 9:00 a.m. on that date. Immediate
prior to the suspension, the price of Town Health’s shares
closed at HK$0.69 per share on 24 November 2017.

On 10 January 2020, Town Health issued an
announcement relating to the Exchange’s decision
on withholding of delisting deadline. As stated in the
announcement, Town Health received a letter from the
Exchange on 7 January 2020 stating the Exchange
confirmed that the Exchange would, until further notice,
withhold exercising its right to delist Town Health under
Rule 6.01A(2)(b)(i) of the Listing Rules should trading in
the securities of Town Health remain suspended on 31
January 2020. Town Health had been communicating with
the SFC on the resumption application made by Town
Health. Town Health would continue to communicate with
the SFC and seek to resume the trading of its shares on
the Exchange as soon as practicable.

The fair value of the shares in Town Health held by the
Group of HK$7,103,000 at 31 December 2019 was based
on the valuation report prepared by the independent
professional valuer appointed by the Group.

Yunfeng Financial Group Ltd. (“Yunfeng Financial”)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in wealth
management, securities broking, employee stock
ownership plan administration, investment research,
insurance brokerage and principal investment.

Based on its published financial information, Yunfeng
Financial had equity attributable to owners of
HK$10,102,698,000 at 31 December 2019. Yunfeng
Financial recorded a profit attributable to owners of
HK$255,619,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As disclosed in Yunfeng Financial’s annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2019,
with the “Outline Development Plan for Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area” announced by the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and
the State Council of the People’s Republic of China on 18
February 2019, Hong Kong would take opportunities to
fully leverage its advantages as the global offshore RMB
business hub and the international asset management
center. “Shanghai Connect” and “Shenzhen Connect” were
actively enhancing the interconnection mechanism with
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the domestic financial markets. The Mainland China and
Hong Kong governments were discussing the “Insurance
Connect”, which was believed that it could further promote
the activities of the financial markets and insurance
businesses in Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau.
Looking forward, the volatility of the financial market
in the 2020 would continue. A number of uncertainties,
including the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19), low
interest rate environment, crude oil price dispute, Sino-
US trade tension, impact and development of Brexit, and
the recent social events in Hong Kong, had intensified
market negative sentiment, and Yunfeng Financial would
carefully respond to challenges. In particular, the outbreak
of COVID-19 was expected to slow down the agency
sales effort in 2020. It was expected to have a short
term impact but it also depended on the duration and
whether the spread could be contained due to both local
and worldwide effort. For the long term prospect, with a
foothold in Hong Kong, Yunfeng Financial would grasp the
opportunities emerging in the Greater Bay Area, connect
Mainland China with foreign countries, empower financial
institutions with technologies and continue to forge a one-
stop professional financial platform.

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Ltd. (“Hsin Chong”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in building
construction, civil engineering, electrical and mechanical
installation, property development and investment.

Based on its published financial information, Hsin Chong
had equity attributable to owners of HK$10,873,051,000
and HK$9,990,782,000 at 31 December 2017 and 30 June
2018 respectively. Hsin Chong recorded a loss attributable
to owners of HK$774,382,000 and HK$704,973,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and the six months ended
30 June 2018 respectively.

Trading in the shares of Hsin Chong was suspended on
3 April 2017. The entire carrying amount of the shares in
Hsin Chong held by the Group of HK$31,500,000 was fully
impaired in the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 20 December 2019, Hsin Chong issued an
announcement relating to the decision of the Listing
Review Committee on cancellation of its listing. As stated
in the announcement, the Listing Review Committee
had decided to uphold the decision of cancelling Hsin
Chong’s listing under Rule 6.01A of the Listing Rules on
17 December 2019. Hsin Chong was obtaining legal and
professional advice and would decide what the appropriate
step(s) to be taken including but not limited to apply for
review against the Listing Review Committee’s decision.
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On 30 December 2019, Hsin Chong issued an
announcement relating to the cancellation of its listing. As
stated in the announcement, the Exchange would cancel
Hsin Chong’s listing with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 17
December 2019. Hsin Chong was still seeking advice from
professional parties and considering available options.
The share certificates of the shares in Hsin Chong should
remain valid. The shares in Hsin Chong would not be listed
and tradeable on the Exchange.

The directors believe that the future performance of
the Hong Kong listed and unlisted equities held by
the Group is largely affected by economic factors,
investor sentiment, demand and supply balance of an
investee company’s shares and fundamentals of an
investee company, such as investee company’s news,
business fundamentals and development, financial
performance and future prospects. Accordingly,
the directors closely monitor the above factors,
particularly the fundamentals of each individual
investee company in the Group’s equity portfolio, and
proactively adjust the Group’s equity portfolio mix in
order to improve its performance.

Money lending business

During the year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans amounting to
HK$104,034,000, an 8% increase from HK$96,274,000
for the previous year, and reported a segment profit
(oefore taxation) of HK$72,496,000, a 127% increase
from HK$31,978,000 for the previous year. The
increase in segment profit was mainly attributable
to a HK$19,670,000 decrease in staff costs and a
HK$13,073,000 decrease in allowance for credit
losses on loan receivables.
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\g business (Continued)

The average monthly outstanding balance of loan
receivables (before accumulated allowance for
credit losses and accrued interest receivables)
increased from HK$1,055,373,000 in the year ended
31 December 2018 to HK$1,118,341,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2019. During the year, the Group
granted new loans in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$144,000,000 to four customers and extended
the final repayment dates of the existing loans in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$555,000,000. The
Group’s customers made drawings in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$173,000,000 from the existing
and new loans and repaid HK$256,280,000 to the
Group. In June 2019, the outstanding principal amount
of HK$100,000,000 of a loan granted to a customer
was utilised by the Group to subscribe for the new
shares of this customer.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed an impairment assessment on the Group’s
loan receivables with reference to a valuation prepared
by an independent professional valuer. Based on the
valuation, a HK$4,474,000 allowance for credit losses
on loan receivables was made. At 31 December 2019,
the Group’s loan receivables together with accrued
interest receivables (before accumulated allowance
for credit losses) amounted to HK$1,000,071,000 (31
December 2018: HK$1,186,286,000). Return on loan
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
9%, which is same as the previous year.
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Sale of jewelry products business

During the year, the Group’s sale of jewelry products
business generated revenue of HK$68,422,000, a 40%
increase from HK$48,779,000 for the previous year,
and reported a segment profit (before taxation) of
HK$74,000, whereas a segment loss of HK$6,473,000
was recorded in the previous year. The turnaround in
segment results was attributable to the increase in
sale and gross profit margin as discussed below.

After years of efforts in business development,
certain customers in the United States increased
their sales orders to the Group. On the other hand,
a European customer also increased its sales orders
to the Group. Accordingly, the Group reported a 40%
increase in revenue of its sale of jewelry products
business. The gross profit margin on the Group’s
sale of jewelry products business improved from
10% to 18%, which was attributable to a decrease
in moulding and production costs in producing
samples for business development and the successful
negotiations with sub-contractors in reducing product
costs. However, the Group saw a slowdown in sales
orders from the United States in the fourth quarter
of 2019 as the United States has imposed extra tariff
on jewelry products imported from Mainland China
since September 2019. Despite the escalating trade
tension between the United States and Mainland
China and uncertainty about Brexit, the Group made
sales and marketing efforts in expanding its customer
base in order to improve the profitability of its sale
of jewelry products business during the year. At the
end of the reporting period, the directors performed
an impairment assessment on the Group’s trade
receivables with reference to a valuation prepared
by the independent professional valuer. Based on
the valuation, an allowance for credit losses on trade
receivables of HK$56,000 was recognised. Return on
capital employed in sale of jewelry products for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is 0% (2018: -16%).

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s inventories of
jewelry products, including raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished goods, amounted to
HK$32,000,000 (31 December 2018: HK$33,222,000)
and the Group’s sale of jewelry products business had
undelivered sales orders amounting to HK$800,000 (31
December 2018: HK$709,000).
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Property investment business

During the year, the Group’s property investment
business generated rental income of HK$25,549,000,
a 30% decrease from HK$36,286,000 for the previous
year, and recorded a segment loss (before taxation)
of HK$119,006,000, a 57% improvement from
HK$279,788,000 for the previous year. The decrease
in rental income was mainly due to the absence of the
rental income generated from the Group’s investment
properties located in Guangzhou, Mainland China
as such investment properties were disposed of on
22 June 2018. The improvement in segment results
was attributable to the absence of the previous
year’'s written-off of property, plant and equipment
of HK$233,622,000, which was partially offset by
the recognition of the HK$49,782,000 written-off of
property, plant and equipment as discussed below. Of
the total rental income, HK$20,454,000 was generated
from the assets of the Club and HK$5,095,000 was
generated from the investment property portion of the
Shun Tak Property.

In late October 2019, the Group was informed
the gross floor area of the development plan for
the second and third phases of the Subject Land
submitted to the relevant governmental authorities
exceeded the gross floor area of properties permitted
to be erected. In view of the lengthy approval
process and the Group’s intention of speeding up
the development of the Subject Land, the directors
decided to allocate the gross floor area of the two
hotel villas erected on the first phase of the Subject
Land to the second and third phases of the Subject
Land by demolishing the two hotel villas in order
to rectify the issue arising from the excess of the
gross floor area. Following the demolition of the two
hotel villas erected on the first phase of the Subject
Land in November 2019, the Group recognised the
HK$49,782,000 written-off of property, plant and
equipment. It was originally planned to invite tenders
for the construction works of the second and third
phases of the Subject Land after the 2020 Lunar New
Year holiday and commence the construction in April
2020. However, the outbreak of novel coronavirus
in Mainland China in January 2020 has disrupted
the economic activities across Mainland China as
companies and factories have been closed for an
extended Lunar New Year holiday. As such, the Group
has delayed the construction until the pandemic
ends. It is expected that the delay in the construction
does not have any material impacts on the Group’s
property investment business as the pandemic will not
last too long.
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Property investment business (Continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s 2019 interim report,
the development of a new business, namely cultural
business, on the first phase of the Subject Land has
been temporarily suspended pending for the outcome
of the discussions with two Mainland China wedding
planners relating to the co-operative arrangement
for the provision of the open garden square and the
buildings erected on the Subject Land as venue for
wedding ceremony. Given that the two hotel villas
erected on the first phase of the Subject Land were
demolished in November 2019, the Group and the two
Mainland China wedding planners are in discussions
for revising the business plans for the co-operative
arrangement for the provision of wedding ceremony
venue. However, discussions are held over due to the
novel coronavirus outbreak and will resume after the
pandemic ends. In addition to the cultural business
and the wedding ceremony business, the Group
is exploring the development of sports business
on the Subject Land as it is believed that sport is
more appealing to general public. The Group has
commenced discussions with two independent third
parties for setting up (i) a basketball training school
to be operated by a renowned Taiwanese player from
the Chinese Basketball Association, and (ii) a football
academy to be operated by a first-tier European
football club in December 2019. As the discussions
with the two independent third parties are at a
preliminary stage and no terms have been reached
for the development of sports business at the end
of the reporting period. Due to the novel coronavirus
outbreak, discussions with the two independent third
parties have been deferred until the pandemic ends.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed impairment tests for the goodwill arising
from the acquisition of Smart Title Limited and the
intangible assets relating to (i) the rights to construct
and operate the club facilities of the Club, and (ii)
the rights to develop and operate the Subject Land
and the rights to manage the properties erected on
the Subject Land with reference to the two valuation
reports, which adopted discounted cash flow
projections to assess the value in use of the property
investment business in Beijing, Mainland China,
prepared by an independent professional valuer. As
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
of the Group’s property investment operations under
Smart Title Limited exceeded its carrying amount,
no impairment of goodwill and intangible assets was
required.
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Property investment business (Continued)

In view of the delay in the construction of the
second and third phases of the Subject Land and
the temporary suspension of the development of
the cultural business, the relevant discounted cash
flow projections used to measure value in use for
determining the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit of Smart Title Limited have been
adjusted in order to reflect the impacts on the
expected cash inflows and outflows resulted from
the delay and the suspension. In addition, the
discount rate for the relevant discounted cash flow
projections was reduced by 1% reflecting the change
in market premium. Other than the above, there are
no significant changes in the value of the inputs
and key assumptions from the discounted cash flow
projections previously adopted.

Prior to 1 January 2019, the Group entered into
two lease agreements relating to (i) the rights to
construct and operate the Club up to 31 December
2051, and (ii) the rights to develop and operate the
Subject Land and the rights to manage the properties
erected on the Subject Land up to 30 January 2062.
On the date of application of HKFRS 16 Leases,
the Group recognised HK$82,912,000 right-of-use
asset and HK$89,025,000 lease liability relating to
the Club, and HK$153,869,000 right-of-use asset
and HK$175,942,000 lease liability relating to the
Subject Land in its consolidated statement of financial
position. At the end of the reporting period, the
directors tested the right-of-use assets for impairment
with reference to the two valuation reports prepared
by the independent professional valuer and concluded
that no impairment for the Group’s right-of-use assets
was required.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
measured the investment property portion of the
Shun Tak Property at fair value. Based on the
property valuation report prepared by the independent
qualified valuer, the fair value of the investment
property portion of the Shun Tak Property decreased
from HK$175,600,000 at 31 December 2018 to
HK$159,200,000 at 31 December 2019. Accordingly,
the Group recognised the loss of HK$16,400,000
arising on change in fair value of investment
properties.
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Propérty investment business (Continued)

Return on property investment for the year ended 31
December 2019 is -3% (2018: 3%). The deterioration
in return was attributable to the absence of the
previous year’s gain of HK$14,500,000 arising from
change in fair value of investment properties and the
recognition of the loss of HK$16,400,000 arising on
change in fair value of investment properties in this
year.

Investments in associates

Elite Prosperous is an investment holding company
and the principal asset of which is the term loan
of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,410,000)
advanced to an unlisted investment holding company.
The principal subsidiaries of the unlisted investment
holding company are engaged in (i) agency payment
services, (ii) currency exchange services, and (iii)
provision of online, mobile and cross-border payment
services. Pursuant to the loan instrument, Elite
Prosperous is entitled to convert the term loan into
(i) such number of preferred shares in the capital
of the unlisted investment holding company, or (ii)
such number of preferred shares in the capital of
one of the wholly-owned subsidiary of the unlisted
investment holding company, which is engaged in
provision of online, mobile and cross-border payment
services. In May 2019, a subsidiary of the unlisted
investment holding company has been awarded
a stored value facilities licence by Hong Kong
Monetary Authority. During the year, no conversion
of the term loan was taken place as the unlisted
investment holding company has been doing a fund
raising exercise. At the end of the reporting period,
Elite Prosperous measured the term loan at fair
value. Based on a valuation report prepared by the
independent professional valuer, the fair value of
the term loan decreased from HK$114,553,000 at 31
December 2018 to HK$62,861,000 at 31 December
2019 and Elite Prosperous recognised a loss of
HK$51,692,000 arising on change in fair value of
the term loan in profit or loss. During the year, Elite
Prosperous reported a loss of HK$51,692,000 and
the Group shared a loss of HK$25,329,000 from Elite
Prosperous.
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Global Mastermind is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision and operation of travel business, treasury
management business, money lending business and
provision of securities, futures, corporate finance
advisory and asset management services. During
the year, Global Mastermind reported a loss of
HK$54,593,000 and the Group shared a loss of
HK$15,854,000 from Global Mastermind. Global
Mastermind reported a 16% improvement in its
results in the year ended 31 December 2019, which
was mainly due to a decrease in impairment losses
recognised on trade and loan receivables.

Following the appointment of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton as an executive director of China Healthwise
on 28 October 2019, the Group has two executive
board seats in the board of directors of China
Healthwise and is regarded as having a significant
influence over China Healthwise. As a result,
the Group changed the accounting treatment of
its investment in 1,483,728,240 shares in China
Healthwise from “financial assets at FVTPL” to
“interests in associates”. In recognising China
Healthwise as an associate, the Group recorded the
loss of HK$39,848,000 arising on change in fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL and the gain on bargain
purchase of an associate of HK$14,044,000. China
Healthwise is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in sales of toys
and Chinese health products, money lending business,
and investment in financial instruments. During the
period from 28 October 2019 to 31 December 2019,
China Healthwise reported a loss of HK$31,017,000
and the Group shared a loss of HK$5,850,000 from
China Healthwise.
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As the novel coronavirus is spreading around the
world and the new confirmed cases of the novel
coronavirus continue to surge, the economic
disruptions caused by the novel coronavirus and
the increased uncertainty are being reflected in
lower valuations and increased volatility in the
financial markets. While the exact effect of the novel
coronavirus on the global economy is unknown and
unknowable, it is clear that it poses tremendous risks.
Accordingly, the directors will cautiously monitor Hong
Kong equity market and the fundamentals of each of
the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group. The
directors will adjust the Group’s equity portfolio from
time to time and realise the Hong Kong listed equities
held by the Group into cash as and when appropriate
in 2020.

Given that the exact effect of the novel coronavirus
on the global economy is unknown and unknowable,
the Group will slow down the pace of its money
lending business in 2020. In addition, the construction
of the second and third phases of the Subject Land
will commence in 2020, some of the internal cash
resources of the Group will allocate to finance the
development of the Subject Land. The directors
expect the interest income on loans generated from
the Group’s money lending business in 2020 will be
slightly less than that in 2019.

Following years of efforts in business development,
the Group’s sale of jewelry products business has
successfully established business relationships
with jewelry retail chain stores and wholesalers in
Europe and the United States and the performance
of the Group’s sale of jewelry products business
has gradually improved in recent years. Due to
the introduction of extra tariff on jewelry products
imported from Mainland China to the United States on
1 September 2019 and the novel coronavirus outbreak
in January 2020, the directors expect the performance
of the Group’s sale of jewelry products business will
be inevitably affected in 2020 due to the severe travel
restrictions and/or lockdowns recently imposed by
countries around the world for stemming the spread
of the novel coronavirus.
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oup is in discussions with various parties
for the business development on the first phase of
the Subject Land and the second and third phases of
the Subject Land are still in development stage, the
directors expect that the performance of the Group’s
property investment business before non-recurring
items, such as written-off of property, plant and
equipment, in 2020 will be almost the same as 2019.

Due to economic and market uncertainty, the directors
remain cautious and watchful over the development
of the novel coronavirus pandemic and its impacts.
The directors are committed to lead the Group to
weather the challenges and continue to cautiously
monitor the business environment and strengthen the
Group’s business foundation by focusing its existing
businesses.

IMPACT OF THE NOVEL CORONAVIRUS ON
THE GROUP’S BUSINESS OPERATIONS

It has been mentioned in the section headed
“Operations Review” above that the novel coronavirus
pandemic has already caused the delay in the
construction of the second and third phases of the
Subject Land and the temporary suspension of the
business development of the first phase of the Subject
Land. Due to the severe travel restrictions and/or
lockdowns recently imposed by countries around the
world, the Group’s sale of jewelry products business
has been inevitably affected.

If the novel coronavirus pandemic continues for
a prolonged period of time, it will definitely have
consequences for the Group’s business operations,
the extent of which could not be estimated as at the
date of the annual report. The directors will cautiously
monitor the development of the novel coronavirus
pandemic and react proactively to its impact on the
Group’s business operations.
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A summary of the pr|nC|paI risks and uncertalntles
which may impact the Group’s financial conditions,
results of operations or future performance and how
the Group to mitigate these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete
and comprehensive statement of all potential risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group, but rather those
risks which the Group currently believes may have a
significant impact on the Group’s performance and
future prospects.

Principal risks Description

FEmEE AE

Strategic risk Strategic risk is the risk that medium and
REE MR long-term profitability and/or reputation

of the Group could be adversely
impacted by the failure either to identify
or implement the correct strategy, or to
react appropriately to changes in the
business environment.

REMERASERERRNE R ERRBR
HEXRBGLFELHBEREMHYAEES
HREBHEFEIR SBBERTATE

2R -
Economic risk Economic risk is the risk of any downturn
& b in economic conditions could impact the

Group’s performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers’ inability
to repay loans and lower asset values.

RERBAEAKSERRE 2 TTRR RS
EBEFENEEERMEBIEREMRE

EEEREMTEREERRE -
Credit risk Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
SEER the Group if a customer or counterparty

to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations.
%E@@%ﬁéﬁlﬂZ%ﬁﬁ&%%?%
I REBTHENER  AEEAZH
%@Eza@o

%%%ﬁ%lZMﬁ#R EEEED,
iﬁZEE@@&T%%I%HE&¢%Iw
RBZERARERTI

HHE R EERES AN EEEER 2 A EER
Rk ARREE T EFSRM - ERAEER
BREZSER T RN ARl 2 RIRARKA
SBREARE -

Mitigating actions

AT

e Extensive investment management
experience of the Board.
EZENREEECEELR -

e Regularly review on strategy and
performance of each business unit.
EHRTEEBEN 2 RBEREKR o

e Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
potential acquisitions.

RAEEEEBRERETEESHEL -

e Regularly review forward looking indicators
to identify economic conditions.

EH R AR R LR SRS -

e Fully understand customers and carry out
credit quality assessment on customers
before granting loans.
RELHENA2ATREFEIHEFETREE
EESRR

e Regularly monitor loan receivables and
assess for their recoverability

ERERRRERKIRHETEREE -

e Limit credit risk exposure by granting loan
to any single customer of not more than
8% of the consolidated total assets of the
Group.
EBOAENE-FFRETENAKERSE
ERE8% 2BERURHEERRE -

e Make rental contracts with tenants with an
appropriate credit history.

REAEEEETAZAEATIEL -
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Principal risks Description

FEmEE AE
Liquidity risk Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
REBEELRR will not be able to meet its financial

obligations as they fall due.

RBETRRAAKREREEBTHIBN <M

BEEZRAR -
Price risk Price risk is the risk that changes in
BiERERE equity prices will affect the Group’s
income and the value of its holdings of
equities.
EREBAKZERAEERAREAERE
BEZREZB 2R -
Exchange risk Exchange risk is the risk that changes
R in foreign exchange rates will affect the

Group’s income and the value of its
holdings of assets.
EXERBASTELAEBRARIMBEE
BEZIEEZZH @R -

People risk People risk is the risk of loss of the
AERKE services of any directors, senior

management and other key personnel
which could have a material adverse
effect on the Group’s businesses.
ASEBRAETNES SREEAERHM
TEABRUERBURHASEXEBENRE
RAFEE 2R o
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Mitigating actions

T

Regularly monitor liquidity and statement of
financial position.
EREERDESRUBRRE

Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments.

REBERDEE HBRAGH o

Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing
only in securities listed on stock
exchanges.
E%@E?&‘ﬁﬁé?&%Fﬁtﬁ:‘?ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬂiﬁ@‘ﬁﬁﬁl
Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance
in place, or believed to be available before
committing investment projects.

Efﬁﬁlﬁ BRRRCASAKENEIREE

Regularly monitor equity portfolio to
address any portfolio issues promptly.
EHERREREAGUNKEREMRESA
SR o

Spread price risk exposure by investing a
number of equities.

RESEREUAD BERRR -

Closely monitor statement of financial
position and cashflow exchange risk
exposures and where considered
appropriate use financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge this exchange risk.

EYERPBRRRRRSRELRER  XE
HARBANBERTEAERIA(MEHINE
FéA,%'\J C NEHREREBRIEGE) B ZELR

Provide competitive reward and benefit
packages that ensure our ability to attract
and retain the employees the Group needs.
RUEBBRFHIZRBREANGBURREAER
BREARSIRBBEREZATL ©

Ensure that the staff of the Group has the
right working environment to enable them
to do the best job possible and maximise
their satisfaction at work.
BRAKEZEIFABZIFRENSET
BREAVREBHFIERSTHERZERAL
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Legal and
regulatory risk

FEEREERR

ﬁfﬂ.g‘.
&
’,r"."- Lo
ription :

Legal and regulatory risk is the risk that a
breach of laws and regulations could lead
to litigation, investigations or disputes,
resulting in additional costs being
incurred, civil and/or criminal proceedings
and reputational damage.
FRREERRAEREERER TSR
FEh o BEIMG BEEBIRE - RER
/RNERFREABEE AR -

S 8 » 8
Mitigating actions

T

Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that
sufficient resources being made available
to implement any required changes.
EERERBEINBRIBRABZER
RUBHREFMREZES -

Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.

BERSREAIHMERALER -

KERBEIREFRAF
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The board of

e
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directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in line with the principles of
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Exchange”).

-

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019, except for:

(a) the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual; and

(b) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties. The Board
periodically reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company
with a view to continuously improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices by assessing their
effectiveness with evolving standards to meet
changing circumstances and needs.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance practices and
standards on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the code of business conduct and
ethics applicable to the directors and employees, and
the training and continuous professional development
of directors. The Board has also reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. Having made specific
enquiry, all directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

- L ]
<20 in Il

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The directors also ensure that
the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as its auditors for the year ended 31
December 2019. The statement by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 94 to 103 of the annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other executives, is
delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to four committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, to assist the Board
in discharging its duties and to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s activities.
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atters are specmcally
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Biographical information of the directors as at the
date of this report are set out in the Biographical
Details of Directors on pages 91 to 93 of the annual
report.
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Save and except for (a) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan are brothers, and (b) each
of Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan beneficially owns 50%, 25%,
and 25% respectively in the issued share capital of
Twin Success International Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, there
is no relationship between the members of the Board.

The Company Secretary of the Company is
responsible to keep minutes of all Board and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

The directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The
Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the directors to
assist the relevant directors to discharge their duties.

The Company prepares a monthly update on the
Group’s performance and position to all directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
at all times met the requirements set out in Rules
3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing not less than one-
third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

For a director to be considered independent, that
director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of directors, the Board follows the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the year ended 31 December
2019. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent. Other than
Mr. Wan Shing Chi, no independent non-executive
director has served the Company for more than nine
years. Mr. Wan Shing Chi’s further appointment shall
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
the shareholders of the Company in accordance with
code provision A.4.3 of the Code.
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offlcers’ liability insurance policy for |ndemn|f|cat|on
against costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
that may be incurred by them in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

The directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code on directors’ training. All
directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they
received for the year ended 31 Decebmer 2019 to the
Company.

A summary of training received by the directors during
the year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Executive directors: ITES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai THERE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REIMERE
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy BRAEEE 4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REEELE
Independent non-executive directors: BIAEHITES
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRELEE
Mr. Ng Heung Yan REMCEE
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EEREE
Note 1:

1: Television programmes or webcasts

2: Courses, seminars or workships
Note 2:

A: Corporate governance and regulatory
B:  Audit and assurance, and financial reporting

On 19 December 2019, the Chairman of the Board
held a meeting with the independent non-executive
directors, without the presence of the executive
directors.
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Type of Subject of
training training
b ki) I ERE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hiat 1) (K1az2)
1 A

1 A

1&2 A&B

1 A

1 A

1 A

1&2 A&B
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Code provision A.2.1 of the Code requires that the
role of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
has taken up the roles of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Lei possesses essential leadership skills and has
extensive experience in corporate management and
business development. The Board is of the view that
currently vesting the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long-
term business strategies.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but are subject to retirement from office
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time
being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company considers diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of
a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by
the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on websites of the Company
and the Exchange. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Heung Yan and Mr. Wan Shing Chi, and one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Ng Heung Yan
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and ensuring that
no director or any of his associates will involve in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, of
individual executive directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Committee (Contmued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
and discuss the remuneration structure and packages
of each executive directors and the discretionary
bonuses of the executive directors for making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wan
Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Nomination Committee leads the process and
makes recommendations for appointments to the
Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill up
the casual vacancy of directorship as and when they
arise, in light of challenges and opportunities facing
the Company, as well as business development and
requirements of the Company.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy
aiming to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee will evaluate,
select and recommend candidate(s) for directorships
to the Board by giving due consideration to selection
criteria including but not limited to:

(a) diversity in aspects including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge and length of service;

(b) commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

(c) qualifications, including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries the
Company’s business is involved in;

(d) independence;
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(e) reputation for integrity;

(f) potential contributions that the individual(s) can
bring to the Board; and

(g) plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and
recommend retiring director(s) to the Board for re-
appointment by giving due consideration to the
selection criteria including but not limited to:

(a) the overall contribution and service of the retiring
director(s) to the Company, including but not
limited to the attendance of the meetings of
the Board and/or its committees and general
meetings where applicable, in addition to the
level of participation and performance on the
Board and/or its committees; and

(b) whether the retiring director(s) continue(s) to
satisfy the selection criteria.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and
recommend candidate(s) for the position(s) of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
by giving due consideration to the factors including
but not limited to those set out in Rules 3.10(2) and
3.13 of the Listing Rules in addition to the selection
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the
Board for the appointment of a director in accordance
with the following procedures and process:

(@) the Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and size
of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to
focus the search effort;

(o) the Nomination Committee may consult any
source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing directors, advertising,
recommendations from a third party agency firm
and proposals from shareholders of the Company
with due consideration given to the selection
criteria;
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Nomination Commlttee (Contmued)

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2019,

the Nomination Committee may adopt any
process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions
to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to
the Board for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter
make the recommendation to the Board in
relation to the proposed appointment, and
where a non-executive director is considered,
the Remuneration Committee will make the
recommendation to the Board on the proposed
remuneration package;

the Board may arrange for the selected candidate
to be interviewed by the members of the
Board who are not members of the Nomination
Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

all appointment of directors will be confirmed
by the filing of the consent to act as director of
the relevant director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as director, as the case
may be) to be filed with the relevant Companies
Registry.

the

Nomination Committee held two meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and
evaluate and recommend the retiring directors to
the Board for re-appointment at the annual general
meeting in 2019.
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The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen. Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy is the chairman of
the Finance Committee.

The Finance Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and approving banking facilities and
financial instruments to be granted or issued by the
Company for the Group’s needs and the provision
of corporate guarantees by the Company for its
subsidiaries and associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Wan Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to monitor the financial reporting process of the
Company and to review the Company’s financial
control, and risk management and internal control
systems. It also governs the engagement of external
auditors and their performance. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with at least two meetings annually.
Prior to the commencement of an audit, the Audit
Committee meets the Company’s external auditors
to review and discuss the audit plan and key audit
matters of the Group. It also has separate meeting
with the Company’s external auditors at least once a
year with the absence of the management to discuss
any issues arising from the audit and any other
matters the external auditors may wish to raise.
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" Audit Committee (t ontmued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee reviewed and discussed with the external
auditors the audit plan and key audit matters of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Audit Committee reviewed with the external auditors
the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, the
annual report for 2018, the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2019, and the interim
report for 2019 before their submission to the Board
for approval. It also reviewed the review report on
risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and discussed the findings on the review
report with Infinity Concept Ripple Limited, which
is an independent firm of professional accountants
appointed by the Board to carry out an annual
independent review. The Audit Committee also
discussed the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems with the executive directors to ensure
the executive directors had performed their duties to
have effective systems properly in place. The Audit
Committee also discussed with the management and
the external auditors the accounting policies and
practices which might affect the Group and financial
reporting matters.

At the meeting held on 6 May 2020, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors at the annual general meeting in 2020.
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meetings of the Company during the year ended 31

BESRALAZEERZHELEERS W

December 2019 are set out as below: T
Meetings Attended/Held
BiR/BEAEE
Annual
general Remuneration Nomination Audit Finance
meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
RREF
rg gz¢ iMzEE R#ZE8E BhZE8E HHEEE
Number of meetings EE 1 25 1 2 3 0
Executive directors: UirEs:
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Y {h:d 1/1 21/25 1/1 22 NATER NATER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REBEE 1/1 23/25 NATER NATER NATER NATER
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Rzt 11 24/25 NATER N/AFER NATER 010
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan FEBLE 11 23/25 NATER N/ATER NATER NATER
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTES:
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRFLE n 24125 N 212 33 NATER
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RELCEE 1 2225 11 22 33 NATER
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EERLE 11 24125 NATER NATER 33 010
COMPANY SECRETARY DRIME

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 31 January 2005.
He is also an executive director of the Company. The
biographical information of Mr. Chan are set out in the
Biographical Details of Directors on page 92 of the
annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited to perform audit services
and non-audit services and incurred audit services
fees of HK$969,000 and non-audit services fees
of HK$204,000. The non-audit services consist of
taxation services and reviewing the Group’s interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2019. The Company also engaged two audit firms
to perform audit services and non-audit services for
certain subsidiaries established in Mainland China
and incurred audit services fees of HK$7,000 and
non-audit services fees of HK$3,000. The non-audit
services consist of taxation and annual inspection
services.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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As with all businesses, the Group is exposed to
risks and uncertainties in pursuit of its strategic
and business objectives. The Board acknowledges
that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and for
reviewing their effectiveness.

However, due to inherent limitations of any system
of risk management and internal control, it should
be noted that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
its strategic and business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

In view of each business units being actively managed
by the executive directors, all the executive directors
are responsible for monitoring that appropriate
process and controls are in place to effectively and
efficiently manage risks, so that the strategic and
business objectives of the Group can be met. Principal
risks are identified by assessing the possible effects
on the Group’s reputation, stakeholders, earnings,
capital and liquidity, and the future sustainability of
the Group’s businesses. They are closely monitored
and overseen by the executive directors on a
regular basis. Risk information is communicated to
employees, who have a responsibility to co-operate
with the executive directors’ initiatives and to carry
out their duties avoiding excessive risk.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems include the following:

(@) A code of business conduct and ethics that
requires all directors and employees of the Group
to maintain the basic standards of ethical and
legal behavior in conducting business.

(b) A risk management process which enables
identification and assessment of risks that could
impact on the achievement of agreed strategic
and business objectives, and ensures that
appropriate mitigating measures and controls are
put in place.

(c) Clearly defined organisational structure, with
defined authority limits and reporting mechanisms
to the Board.
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(d) A comprehensive set of policies and procedures
relating to operational and financial controls,
including capital expenditure.

() A comprehensive system of financial reporting.

(fy An annual review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

As the Company does not have an internal audit
function, the Audit Committee engaged Infinity
Concept Ripple Limited to carry out the annual
independent review on the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2019. The annual independent review
covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions of the Group. The review
report from Infinity Concept Ripple Limited was
presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
and the Board. No material internal control defects
were found. Accordingly, the Board, in conjunction
with the Audit Committee, considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems were
adequate and effective.

The Board reviewed the need for internal audit
function, but has decided that because of the size of
the Group it cannot be justified at present. The Board
will review this decision annually.

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.

The Company has adopted the Policy and Procedures
on Disclosure of Inside Information which contains
the guidelines to the directors and all the relevant
employees of the Group to ensure that the inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated
to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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ompany reports to
year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the shareholders and the
Board. Shareholders are welcomed to raise any
query in relation to the Group’s businesses at
the general meetings. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent Board Committee,
are available to answer questions at the general
meetings. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders can put forward any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at general meetings
of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The requisition must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s).
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z - send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 1211, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower
168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2268 8236

Fax: (852) 2369 0981

Email: billy@eternityinv.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy adopted on 31 December
2018, the Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. The declaration, payment,
and amount of dividends are subject to the Board’s
discretion having regard to the following factors:

(@) the earnings, financial conditions, capital
requirements and future plans of the Group;

(b) the shareholders’ interests of the Company;
(c) the economic outlook;

(d) the contractual restrictions on the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders;

(e) the statutory and regulatory restrictions on the
payment of dividends by the Company; and

() any other factors the Board may consider
relevant.
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on the websites of the Company and the Exchange.

This report was approved by the Board on 6 May ABER-ZE-ZEFERANHEESZHE

2020 and signed on its behalf by: WHUTATREREE :
Lei Hong Wai *E
Chairman FEE
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environmental, social and governance performance of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019.

This report has been prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Group is principally engaged in sale of financial
assets, property investment, money lending, and
design and sale of jewelry products. The design
and sale of jewelry products business does not
involve manufacturing of jewelry products. The
manufacturing of the jewelry products is outsourced
to subcontractors, who are third parties independent
of the Company and its connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules).

ENVIRONMENTAL
Environmental Policy

The Group recognises that it has a responsibility to
manage the impact of its business on the environment
both now and in the future. The Group will use its
best endeavours to conduct its operations in a manner
that is environmentally responsible and sustainable.

The Group commits to:

(@) meet or exceed all legal and regulatory
requirements for environmental protection;

(b) maintain awareness within the Group of the
responsibility of the Group and its employees to
ensure protection of the environment;

(c) reuse, recycle and responsibly dispose of all
electronic waste; and

(d) purchase environmental preferable products and
favoring products with reputable certifications or
labels.
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Resources

As the Group is principally engaged in sale of
financial assets, property investment, money lending,
and design and sale of jewelry products, the Group
requires limited natural resources to operate and
does not produce any hazardous or non-hazardous
wastes. Therefore, the Group has a relatively low
environmental impact.

Emissions

The Group’s direct environmental impact comes from
its office premises, air travel and fuel consumed by
owned motor vehicles. The Group continuously seeks
ways to minimise the Group’s environmental footprint
and improve its energy saving, as well as reducing
emissions.

HAAEEIENEHETHMEE WER
B8 URRIREEREER  £5H
RECEBIFE2ZARERABR - BAEEE
ABEEREE 2B - Bt - AREHREE
288D -

235 8]

FEECEEREZERBHERAIZNE - Ml
EERREEAEEFE 2 o AR TE
SRFERBAEE 2EERZNRAEHE
e AR BERA ©

For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
CO, emissions in kg

UAFstEz—S b E

Source of greenhouse gas emissions BT R B RYIRIR
— electricity (office premises) — BN (MRAEWE) 75,565 65,874
— air travel — MZEEKR 74,813 82,302
— fuel consumed by owned motor — BREAREMEEZRA
vehicles 111,383 90,775
Total Wt 261,761 238,951

7 52 B EREUSA T 48 e BURL D BE R

The following measures are taken by the Group to
reduce emissions:

(@) Communicating the importance of environmental (@) MAEEEEEEREZECEEM -
issues to the Group’s employees.

(b) Purchasing environmental preferable products by BERREZEER URFEERER
and favoring products with reputable HREBZER-
certifications or labels.

(c) Encouraging the use of public transportation (c) ERFERAERBIR  UBLAEE
to reduce the Group’s employees’ local travel EENEMER2SE o

impact.

AERBREERLT g5
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Employment and Labour Practlces
Employment and Remuneration

The Group has a strong commitment to ensure that
all its employees are treated fairly and that the Group
provides equal opportunity both to existing employees
and in its recruitment process. Merit is the primary
basis for employment with the Group. All employees
and applicants for employment should be treated
and evaluated according to their job related skills,
qualifications, abilities and aptitudes only.

The Group is committed to ensure that no employees
or applicants are subjected to unlawful discrimination,
either directly or indirectly, on grounds of a protected
characteristic. This commitment applies to all
aspects of employment, including recruitment and
selection, training, promotion and career development
opportunities, terms and conditions of employment,
grievance handling and the application of disciplinary
procedures, and selection for redundancy.

The Group seeks to consider employees from
a wide range of backgrounds in its recruitment
processes, and the Group does not tolerate any
form of harassment or discrimination of employees
with regards to race, gender, age, disability,
sexual orientation or religion. Active harassment
and discrimination in the workplace in any form is
unacceptable. The Group regards any actions by an
employee that constitute harassment or discrimination
as serious misconduct.

The Group has developed and implemented a
competitive remuneration structure which is key for
the Group to attract, motivate and retain the best
talent. In addition to basic salaries, the Mandatory
Provident Fund and discretionary bonus, staff benefits
include medical scheme and share options. The Group
continually reviews its remuneration structure to
ensure it remains attractive and competitive.

The Group has remained diverse, with 44% (2018:
40%) of its employees being women. The Group also
employs a broad age range, with 21% (2018: 19%)
of its employees under 30 years old and 18% (2018:
14%) above 50 years old.
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Health and Safety

The Group is committed to the health and safety
of all employees. The Group will work to eliminate
hazardous practices and behaviour, which could cause
accidents, injuries or illness to employees, visitors
and the general public. The Group strives to have
injury free workplaces. The primary goal is to assist in
providing a safe and healthy workplace environment
for the Group’s employees and visitors.

The objectives of the Group in ensuring health and
safety are to:

(a) comply with all relevant statutory obligations;

(b) provide adequate resources to establish and
maintain safe systems of work;

, -
- He\elaE/

LY

RERZE

AEEFIRFEREZREZER/CE X
SEBENERTEENES TERARE
W BERRBZERBERTR - AKREND
RESETHFSH FTEERRHPR/ETEE
BERSERH-—ERZEREEREZ THFRE -

FEBRREERZZZBEES

(a) BIREMEBEEER

b) REZTEZER UBYREFI2Z2R
BERS

(c) maintain health and safety competency and (c) RERERZZEN UEEBZME
integrate health and safety requirements in all FEHANARBERZZER ;

aspects of business;

(d) ensure all incidents are reported and thoroughly
investigated with a view to preventing a similar
injury occurring; and

(e) promote a positive health and safety culture that
is based on the principle that all incidents can be
prevented.

All managers and contractors are accountable for
health and safety performance in their areas. All
employees are required to follow rules for safe and
healthy operations, report hazards to their managers
and must always report any injuries that occur to
either themselves or others.

During the year, there was no reportable hazardous
incident (2018: Nil).

(d) BRABEBHEURELBERFE LR
HEUZEEFRE R
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ZRERZEXI -
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Training and Development

The training and development of the Group’s
employees is key to employee retention, and
ensuring that employees continue to have the
skills and expertise that is core to the Group’s
sustainable business success and growth. Employees
are encouraged to attend courses, seminars and
workshops that are relevant to their jobs and the
Group reimburses for related expenses in full.

During the year, the Group paid staff training
expenses amounting to HK$83,000 (2018:
HK$136,000).

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to be an employer of choice.
The Group values its employees and recognises their
contribution towards achieving sustainable business
success and growth for the Group and creating value
for its stakeholders.

The Group does not tolerate unethical labour
standards and complies with local labour legislations
and minimum wage laws in the countries where it
operates.

The labour standards of the Group are:
(a) Child labour

The Group shall not engage in or support the use
of child labour.

(b) Forced and compulsory labour

The Group shall not engage in or support the use
of forced or compulsory labour, or bonded or
involuntary prison labour. Employees are free to
leave upon reasonable notice.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Labour Standards (Continued)

(c)

Health and safety

The Group shall provide a safe and healthy
workplace environment and shall take effective
steps to prevent potential accidents and injuries
to employees’ health by minimising, so far as is
reasonably practicable, and in co-operation with
its employees, the causes of hazards inherent in
the workplace.

Freedom of association

The freedom of association is respected and
the Group will comply with the relevant labour
relations legislation in the countries where it
operates.

Discrimination

The Group shall not engage in or support any
discriminatory practices in hiring, remuneration,
access to training, promotion, termination or
retirement based on race, gender, age, disability,
sexual orientation, religion or other conditions
that could give rise to discrimination.

Working hours

The Group shall comply with applicable laws and
industry standards on working hours andholiday
entitlements. Overtime shall be voluntary and
shall not be demanded on a regular basis.

Remuneration

The Group shall comply with the local labour
legislations and minimum wage laws in the
countries where it operates. All work related
activities are carried out on the basis of a
recognised employment relationship established
according to the local labour legislations.

During the year, no non-compliance of Hong Kong
labour legislations or Mainland China’s labour laws
was reported or noted (2018: Nil).
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kiperatig Practices

Supplier Relations

The Group views its suppliers as partners who make
an important contribution to the Group’s sustainable
business success and growth. Employees of the
Group are expected to be honest and fair in all
business interactions with suppliers, which include
contractors, consultants and other agents.

The choice of suppliers of goods and services must
be made based on the best value received by the
Group. In addition, the Group believes in doing
business with those suppliers who demonstrate high
standards of ethical behavior. The Group will not
knowingly engage suppliers who operate in violation
of applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.

All agreements with suppliers that are important for
the conduct of the Group’s business should be in
writing and must specify the goods and services to be
provided and the fees to be paid. Such agreements
must be in line with reasonable competitive and
market practices, and the relevant Group’s policies
and procedures.

Customer Relations

The Group believes that customers are vitally
important to its sustainable business success and
growth. Employees of the Group have a paramount
duty to act with integrity, respect, diligence and
competence in their dealings with the Group’s
customers.

To preserve its customer relationships:

(a) the Group does not misrepresent its services or
products in any sales or promotional efforts;

(b) the Group communicates clearly so that
customers understand the terms of the business
relationships, including contracts, performance
criteria, schedules, prices and responsibilities;
and

(c) the Group protects its customers’ confidential
information pursuant to contracts with its
customers and all applicable privacy laws in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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Product and Service Responsibility

(a)

Design and sale of jewelry products

The Group shall not make any untruthful,
misleading or deceptive representation or make
any material omission in selling or marketing of
any jewelry products.

All supplies of raw materials used in the Group’s
jewelry products shall be acquired from legitimate
sources which, to the best knowledge of the
Group, have no involvement in funding conflicts.
The Group prohibits knowingly buying or selling
conflict precious stones or assisting others to do
so.

The Group will not knowingly engage
subcontractors who operate in violation of
applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.

Money lending

In addition to compliance with the Money Lenders
Ordinance, the Money Lenders Regulations and
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance, the Group strictly prohibits
abusive, misleading or fraudulent lending
practices. In providing money lending services
to its customers, the Group adopts the following
responsible lending practices:

(i) The Group provides its customers with the
information they need to make fully informed
decisions about its money lending services.

(i) The Group prices its money lending services
based on appropriate factors, including the
risk and cost of extending loans, competition
and marketplace strategy and conditions,
and soundness consideration.

(iii) The Group only approves applications where

it believes the customer has the ability to

repay the loan according to its terms.

(iv) The Group provides timely responses to

customers’ questions and complaints, and

takes prompt corrective action if it has made
an error.
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Operating Practices (Contmued)

Personal Data Privacy

The Group will only collect personal data from its
employees and customers ethically and lawfully. It
also seeks to collect personal data in a fair manner,
and in a way that is not unreasonably intrusive. If an
employee is collecting personal data on behalf of the
Group, he or she must inform the person involved of
(i) the purpose for which personal data is collected
and, unless consented by the person involved, the
personal data collected cannot be used for any new
or additional purpose, (ii) the personal data collected
cannot be transferred to any third party unless
required by law or upon informed consent from the
person involved, and (iii) subject to the requirements
of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the person
involved has the right to request assess to and correct
the personal data collected by the Group. Steps must
be taken to ensure that the use of personal data is
complying with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

Employees must ensure that the confidentiality of
personal data contained in the Group’s records is
strictly maintained.

During the year, no non-compliance of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance was reported or noted (2018:
Nil).

Anti-corruption and Ethics

The Group commits to maintain confidence in the
integrity of the Company. All directors and employees
are responsible for the Company achieving the
highest levels of business and accountable for acting
in line with the policies and standards outlined in the
Group’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which
serves to (i) emphasise the Company’s commitment
to ethics and compliance with the letter and the spirit
of all laws and regulations, and (ii) set forth the basic
standards of ethical and legal behavior. The Group’s
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics clearly states
that:

(a) All directors and employees are prohibited
from soliciting, accepting or offering any bribe
in conducting the Group’s business or affairs,
whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere.
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Anti-corruption and Ethics (Continued)

(b)

All directors and employees should not engage in
activities or hold or trade assets that involve, or
could appear to involve, a conflict between their
personal interests and the interests of the Group.

No gift or entertainment should ever be offered
or accepted by a director, an employee or any
family member of a director or an employee
unless it (i) is consistent with customary business
practices, (ii) is not excessive in value, (iii) cannot
be construed as a bribe or payoff, and (iv) does
not violate any laws or regulations.

Directors and employees are advised not to
engage in frequent gambling activities, e.g.
mahjong, with persons having business dealings
with the Group.

Directors and employees should not accept
any loan from, or through the assistance of,
any individual or organisation having business
dealings with the Group. There is however no
restriction on borrowing from licensed banks or
financial institutions.

Directors and employees are required to protect
proprietary, commercial and other information
that is confidential to the Group. These
obligations of confidentiality continue after an
individual’s employment has ceased with the
Group.

During the year, no instance of non-compliance
relating to bribery, extortion or fraud was reported or
noted (2018: Nil).
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While the Group is accountable to its key
stakeholders, the Group also takes into account of the
communities in which it operates. The Group commits
to make a positive impact on its neighbourhoods by
being a good neighbour to the communities. In view
of the current Hong Kong’s political and economic
landscape, the directors believe that compliance with
laws, integrity and fair dealing are the prime interests
of the communities. As such, the Group is committed
to make the communities in which it operates, better
places to do business by managing its business in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations of
the countries in which it operates and in accordance
with the highest level of business ethics and personal
integrity in all types of transactions and interactions.

The Company Secretary has been designated by
the board of directors to monitor changes and
developments in the regulatory environment and
ensure that sufficient resources being made available
to implement any required changes. The Company
Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Group
complying with all applicable laws and regulations of
the countries in which it operates.

All directors and employees are responsible for the
Company achieving the highest levels of business and
accountable for acting in line with the policies and
standards outlined in the Group’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics. They are required to comply
with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which
serves to (i) emphasise the Company’s commitment
to ethics and compliance with the letter and the spirit
of all laws and regulations, (ii) set forth the basic
standards of ethical and legal behavior, (iii) provide a
mechanism for reporting instances non-compliance,
and (iv) help prevent and detect wrongdoing.

During the year, no non-compliance of the laws and
regulations in Hong Kong or the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics was reported or noted (2018: Nil).
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compllance of the environmental laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

This report was approved by the Board on 6 May
2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 47 and 24 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes to the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, comprising an
analysis using financial key performance indicators,
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year, if any, and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business can be
found in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 7 to 45 of the annual report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance and the Group’s compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, and an account of
the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders
that have a significant impact on the Group and on
which the Group’s success depends can be found in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 64 to 75 of the annual report.

The Management Discussion and Analysis, and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report form
part of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the Group’s financial position
at that date are set out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements on pages 104 to 287 of the
annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 288 of the annual report.
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the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
HK$453,123,000 (2018: HK$447,033,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, Mr. Chan
Kin Wah Billy, and Mr. Wan Shing Chi will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ompany during

BE BElHEEXAQRAZzETmES

FR - AXAIEEAMBELRLERBE - &
Bl 5 H E A D EMEM EHEE S o

KRR 27k E

ARAARZZB-NFE+ZA=+—HTHDSIK
FRE 21 5 453,123,000 T (ZE— N\
£ : 447,033,000587T) °
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{ Sompany’s subsidiaries mcluded
in the consolidated financial statements (other than
those listed above) were:

Mr. Guan Jialin
Mr. Guo Xiaopeng

(appointed on 31 October 2019)
Ms. Han Fang
Mr. Yuan Huixia

(resigned on 31 October 2019)
Ms. Wong Siu Yan

Biographical information of the directors of the
Company are set out on pages 91 to 93 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-
laws, the directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices or trusts, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
them. Such permitted indemnity provision is currently
in force and was in force throughout the year.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy
throughout the year, which indemnifies against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities that may
be incurred by the directors in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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mation of directors as requwed to

be dlsclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Rules

m;ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁ“AﬁaﬁﬁﬁrﬁEﬂ (B3 FF |) 22
EmHBRAT ETRE ] E 3. 51Bﬁ;§$;ﬁ§

Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing ZESER2ESFHEINAT

Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Exchange”) is set out below:

On 28 October 2019, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, an R-ZB—HAE+AZ+NB HITEEEREER

BAEEZERTHEEREERER AT
(—ERBXFER LT ZAE RO
BB)NEEERTERYITES -

executive director, has been appointed as the vice-
chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of China Healthwise Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Exchange
(stock code: 348).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BEERFTETHRAERRG - HEKRH
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING EESzER

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the N-ZZB—-—HNE+ZA=+—80  BREQAFR

BESRBERAGIE 52K FE 2 B MATE
8% REAQARBRARE EHRTAES
ETESRXZNEESTAMERAN - AQFE
ERERITBAEBRBES2HBEALTRA QT
REMREEEzRG - HERORESTHES

directors and the chief executive and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company ZREFRWMT :
and the Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,

were as follows:

Long positions "a

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company KA AFKREEO.01 8 T2 ZER

Number of ordinary shares held and Percentage

capacity of the issued

BEZERAREE RS 7 share capital

Held by of the

controlled Company

Beneficial corporations LR NN

Name of director Notes owner FEE AT Total ERITRAE

EEHA Krat BERERA BEzER st Aok

Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1and 2 401,540,000 583,832,803 985,372,803 25.80%
TR EE 1R2

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 1 and 2 — 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REIESLEE 1R2

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1and 2 — 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
SRE] B4 1R2

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy 6,319,500 — 6,319,500 0.17%

PRIZEE 4
KIEREIREBRAF
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Long positions (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Twin Success International Limited (“Twin Success”)
beneficially owns 583,832,803 ordinary shares of the
Company.

Twin Success is owned as to 50% by Silver Pacific
International Limited and as to 50% by Silver Pacific
Development Limited. Silver Pacific International Limited
is wholly owned by Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Silver Pacific
Development Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wai Elton and as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

2. On 5 June 2018, Twin Success pledged its 583,832,803
ordinary shares of the Company in favour of Kingston
Finance Limited as security for a loan facility.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors,
chief executive nor their associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2019.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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statements.

The following table discloses movements in the THRIFEARTNRFAZEREZE .
Company’s share options during the year:

Number of share options
EhREz¥A
Outstanding
Outstanding at
at 1 January 31 December
Share 2019 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2019
options RZB-hE during during during duing RZE-fE

type -E-H the year the year the year theyear TZA=1-H
BRESR HATE RERRIE RERTTE RERGE RERZH HR{TE

Directors and chief executive

ESRITAHAR

Mr. Lei Hong Wai 2018 3,800,000 - - - (3,800,000) -
FREE

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 2018 3,800,000 - - - (3,800,000) -
REFLE

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 2018 3,800,000 - - - (3,800,000) -
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy 2018 38,190,000 - - - (38,190,000) -
Ripzrs

Total directors and chief executive 49,590,000 - - - (49,590,000) -
ESRIEAHASA

Employees 2018 267,330,000 - - - (267,330,000) -
&8

Total employees

E-rh 267,330,000 - - - (267,330,000 -
Total

@ 316,920,000 - - - (316,920,000) -

KERBERERRAT 81
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Other than as disclosed in the section headed
“SHARE OPTIONS”, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company
as disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above and in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

(@ On 29 November 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
provided a personal guarantee to secure the
Company’s repayment obligations under a loan of
HK$200,000,000 granted by a finance company.
No consideration was paid by the Company to
Mr. Lei Hong Wai for the provision of personal
guarantee. No security over the assets of the
Group was provided for the personal guarantee
given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

As at 31 December 2019, the provision of
personal guarantee by Mr. Lei Hong Wai remains
in full force and effect.

(b) On 24 December 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai made a
cash advance of HK$50,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 4 January 2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

(c) On 30 January 2019, Mr. Lei Hong Wai made a
cash advance of HK$25,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 7 March 2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(d) On 15 February 2019, Twin Success made a
cash advance of HK$7,200,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 28 February 2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Twin Success.

(e) On 17 October 2019, Mr. Lei Hong Wai made a
cash advance of HK$20,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 29 October 2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

Other than as disclosed above, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director or a connected entity of a director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 20 August 2018, It R MAFE K BEER A
7] (Beijing Bayhood No. 9 Business Hotel Company
Limited, “Bayhood No. 9 Co.”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as lender entered into the
loan agreement between Mr. Guan Jialin, a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, as borrower
and Ms. Hao Yuhui, the spouse of Mr. Guan Jialin, as
guarantor in relation to the granting of a loan in the
principal amount of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$28,532,000) for a term of 24 months commencing
from 24 August 2018. The loan is interest bearing at
9% per annum, secured by a real estate mortgage
over a residential property located in Beijing, Mainland
China (the “Property”) owned by Ms. Hao Yuhui, and
maturing on 23 August 2020. The terms of the loan
agreement were negotiated on an arm’s length basis
between Bayhood No. 9 Co. and Mr. Guan Jialin
with reference to terms and conditions of the loan
agreements entered into between the Group and its
money lending customers.

d R=ZFE—-—NAE=AH+ & H: Twin
Success MAEB e EHELETEIRM
E&mmEE/ES7,200,0008 TIHRES B
RoBEBRARERERF R=Z=
—hEZA=Z+N\H ' AEBEC [ Twin
SuccessfBEH LB -
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BZthB AEBEOZFHEELLEE
BHRESBN
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On 20 September 2018, Bayhood

Jialin, and Ms. Hao Yuhui entered into a supplemental
agreement relating to the amendment of the condition
precedent of the loan agreement dated 20 August
2018. Pursuant to which, the loan agreement is
conditional upon the real estate mortgage over the
Property having been duly registered with dt =T E
#ZEREZEHEF (Real Estate Bureau of Beijing Shunyi
District, the “Real Estate Bureau”) by Mr. Yuan
Huixia (as an agent of Bayhood No. 9 Co.) and Ms.
Hao Yuhui. Mr. Yuan Huixia is a then director and
legal representative of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

Concurrently, on 20 September 2018, Mr. Yuan Huixia
executed an irrevocable undertaking in favour of
Bayhood No. 9 Co., pursuant to which:

(@) Mr. Yuan Huixia shall, on behalf of Bayhood No.
9 Co. and together with Ms. Hao Yuhui, register
the real estate mortgage over the Property with
the Real Estate Bureau;

(b) in the event that Mr. Guan Jialin does not repay
the loan in accordance with the loan agreement,
Mr. Yuan Huixia shall sell the Property on the
instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co. and transfer the
proceeds in full to Bayhood No. 9 Co.;

(c) in the event that Bayhood No. 9 Co. proposes to
change the mortgagee of the mortgage over the
Property or terminate the mortgage, Mr. Yuan
Huixia shall execute all necessary documents on
the instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co. to effect
such change or termination; and

(d) unless on the instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co.,
Mr. Yuan Huixia shall not change the mortgagee
of the mortgage over the Property, terminate the
mortgage, or sell the Property.

As each of Mr. Guan Jialin, Ms. Hao Yuhui and Mr.
Yuan Huixia was a connected person at the subsidiary
level of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules as at the date of the loan agreement, the
entering into of the loan agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement with the undertaking)
constituted a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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S | the i Epena'ent non-
executlve dlrectors) conflrmed that the terms of the
loan agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement with the undertaking) were fair and
reasonable, the transactions contemplated thereunder
were on normal commercial terms and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Announcements in respect of the loan agreement and
the supplemental agreement with the undertaking
were published on 20 August 2018 and 20 September
2018 respectively in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The loan agreement (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement with the undertaking)
became unconditional on 26 September 2018 and the
drawndown of the loan was made on 29 September
2018. As at 31 December 2019, the loan remains
outstanding.

Other than as disclosed above, the Group had no
connected transactions during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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shareholders malntamed by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
shows that the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

e I e U e ik e

BT TIHIRREHREEARQRACHTRAZ
EREZAERLT -

"R

A REEKEEO0.01 BT EER

Number of ordinary shares held and capacity

BEZERREARSH Percentage
Person of the issued
having share capital
a security Held by of the
interest controlled Company
Name of Beneficial in shares  corporation(s) HALT
shareholder Notes owner RRGES ZEHAF Total BERITRA
BRESE/ %8 i EREEA BEEZzAL BERE @t ARl
Twin Success 1and 4 583,832,803 - - 583,832,803 15.29%
1K4
Silver Pacific International Limited 1,2and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
12Kk4
Silver Pacific Development Limited 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
123Kk4
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1,2and4 401,540,000 - 583,832,803 985,372,803 25.80%
SERE 122K4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REBEE 1+3K4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REIELE 13K 4
Kingston Finance Limited 4and 5 - 583,832,803 - 583,832,803 15.28%
EHEHBERAA 4R5
Ample Cheer Limited 4and 5 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.28%
4K 5
Best Forth Limited 4and 5 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.28%
4K5
Ms. Chu Yuet Wah 4,5and 6 - - 583,832,815 583,832,815 15.28%
TRELt 4°5Kk6

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Twin Success is owned as to 50% by Silver Pacific
International Limited and as to 50% by Silver Pacific
Development Limited.

2. Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai.

3. Silver Pacific Development Limited is owned as to 50% by
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and as to 50% by Mr. Cheung
Kwok Fan.

4. On 5 June 2018, Twin Success pledged its 583,832,803
ordinary shares of the Company in favour of Kingston
Finance Limited as security for a loan facility.

5. Kingston Finance Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Ample Cheer Limited, which is owned as to 80% by Best
Forth Limited and as to 20% by Insight Glory Limited. Ms.
Chu Yuet Wah owns 100% interest in Best Forth Limited
and Insight Glory Limited.

6. Out of the 583,832,815 ordinary shares of the Company,
12 ordinary shares are interested by Kingston Securities
Limited. Kingston Securities Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Galaxy Sky Investments Limited, which is
wholly owned by Kingston Capital Asia Limited. Kingston
Capital Asia Limited is wholly owned by Kingston Financial
Group Limited. Active Dynamic Limited owns 49.19%
interest in Kingston Financial Group Limited. Ms. Chu Yuet
Wah owns 100% interest in Active Dynamic Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2019.

AR AGKREEO.01 BT EER (&)

EE

Twin Success 7 5l H Silver Pacific International
Limited #8 50% #4= & Silver Pacific Development
Limited #5 50% 1z ©

Silver Pacific International Limited
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583,832,815 RANAEBRRMHES » &7 &
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ompany has recelved from each of the

independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

(@)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is the chairman
of the board of directors and an executive
director of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited,
a company listed on GEM operated by the
Exchange (stock code: 8063) and engaged in
the provision and operation of travel business,
treasury management business, money lending
business, and provision of securities, futures,
asset management and financial advisory
services. Therefore, Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited competes or is likely to competer, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s sale of
financial assets and money lending businesses.

Mr. Lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the board
of directors and an executive director of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Exchange (stock code:
348) and engaged in sales of toys and Chinese
health products, money lending business, and
investment in financial instruments. Therefore,
China Healthwise Holdings Limited competes or
is likely to competer, either directly or indirectly,
with the Group’s sale of financial assets and
money lending businesses.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is the vice-chairman
of the board of directors and an executive
director of China Healthwise Holdings Limited.
Therefore, China Healthwise Holdings Limited
competes or is likely to competer, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s sale of financial
assets and money lending businesses.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Details of the Group s retlrement beneflts scheme
are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group
is set up by the directors of the Company on the
basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2019, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 12.27% (2018: 11.31%) and
49.97% (2018: 46.62%) of its revenue from sales of
goods or rendering of services respectively.

In 2019, the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 64.22% (2018: 46.65%) and
93.00% (2018: 84.96%) of its purchases respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, a close
associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of
the Company owns more than 5% of the number of
issued shares of Company) have an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any
charitable donations (2018: Nil).
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This report was approved by the Board on 6 May
2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman
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Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 52, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. He has over 18 years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was
a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China,
in 2002. Mr. Lei is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and associates
of the Company. Mr. Lei is also a director of Twin
Success International Limited and Silver Pacific
International Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lei is
currently the chairman of the board of directors and
an executive director of China Healthwise Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”) (stock code: 348) and an associate of
the Company. Mr. Lei was the chairman of board
of directors and an executive director of Man Sang
International Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Exchange (stock code: 938), during the
period from 31 March 2016 to 3 April 2018 and 26
June 2015 to 3 April 2018 respectively.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 54, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 30
years of experience in the area of corporate finance
and securities industries. He holds a Master Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and an associate
of the Company. Mr. Cheung is also a director of
Twin Success International Limited and Silver Pacific
Development Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Cheung
is the elder brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Cheung is
currently the chairman of the board of directors and
an executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited, a company listed on GEM operated by the
Exchange (stock code: 8063) and an associate of the
Company. Mr. Cheung is also the vice-chairman of
the board of directors and an executive director of
China Healthwise Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Exchange (stock code: 348)
and an associate of the Company. Mr. Cheung was an
executive director of Man Sang International Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Exchange
(stock code: 938), during the period from 26 June
2015 to 3 April 2018.
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Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, aged 57, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 18
January 2010. He has over 31 years of experience
in accounting and financial control. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA member of CPA Australia and
a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of
Administration Degree from the University of Ottawa
in Canada and a Master of Commerce Degree in
Professional Accounting from the University of New
South Wales in Australia. Mr. Chan is the chairman
of the Finance Committee of the Board. Mr. Chan
also holds directorships in five subsidiaries of the
Company. He is the Company Secretary of the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chan was an executive director of SkyNet Group
Limited (now known as SuperRobotics Limited), a
company listed on GEM operated by the Exchange
(stock code: 8176), during the period from 5 August
2014 to 25 May 2017.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, aged 52, was appointed as
the non-executive director on 31 August 2011 and
redesignated as an executive director of the Company
on 18 September 2014. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall management of the Group’s design
and sale of jewelry business. He holds directorships
in three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
has over 28 years’ working experience in the field
of architecture. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a member of The Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, Registered Architect
in Hong Kong and an Authorised Person in the List of
Architects. He obtained his Bachelor Degree of Arts
in Architectural Studies from The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and a Bachelor Degree in Architecture
from The University of Hong Kong in 1991. He was
selected as an awardee of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Selection organised by Junior Chamber
of International Hong Kong in 2005. He has been
teaching as a part-time position in the Architecture
Subject Group of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education since September 2009 and
has been appointed as an Adjunct Lecturer since 1
January 2014. Mr. Cheung has been the director of
his own architectural practice, Oritecture Limited,
since 10 December 2009. He is the younger brother of
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, an executive director of
the Company.
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Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 50, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since 25
May 2010. Mr. Wan is a member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Board. He has over 26 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member of
the Asia Institute of Building.

Mr. Ng Heung Yan, aged 49, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since
31 August 2011. Mr. Ng is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board and a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Board. He has over 22 years of
experience in metal work engineering design and
currently works as a project director in a private
engineering company in Hong Kong. He was
graduated from Monash University in Australia with
a Bachelor Degree of Engineering (Industrial and
Computing) in 1993.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 55, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since 7
November 2011. Mr. Wong is the chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Board and a member of
the Finance Committee of the Board. He is a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
respectively. He has over 30 years of experience
in auditing, financial management, mergers and
acquisitions gained from certain senior finance related
positions in an international accounting firm in Hong
Kong, companies listed in Hong Kong and a company
listed in the United States of America. He is currently
a practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-
executive director of Huanxi Media Group Limited
(stock code: 1003) and China Healthwise Holdings
Limited (stock code: 348), both of the companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Exchange. Mr. Wong
was an independent non-executive director of Man
Sang International Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Exchange (stock code: 938), during
the period from 12 July 2016 to 5 November 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group”)
set out on pages 104 to 287, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group at 31 December 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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accordance with Hong '

Kong Standards on Aud|t|ng (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter

HEEXER

Valuation of investment properties
REYEZ1GE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FEH G AR BEHENL19

At 31 December 2019, the Group has investment
properties with carrying amounts of HK$159,200,000
and loss arising on change in fair value with an amount
of HK$16,400,000 recognised in profit or loss.
R-ZZB-NF+ZA=+—H8 > BREZREVEKREE
#5159,200,000/8 T ' WHREHREIA A TFTELHELEZE
1816,400,00038 7T °

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties is
determined by adopting the valuation techniques with
assumptions of market conditions and judgement.
The Group also engaged an independent qualified
professional firm of valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques.
BEEREYE 2 ATFEDRMAEATRBRE R HE 2 hE
BEE - BEETZER-—RBIYSERZXEMGER N
FIEREEEE 2 HERM

Due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and the
significant assumptions and judgement involved in the
valuation, valuation of investment properties is identified
as a key audit matter.

MR TREE T ERRREEIR 2EXRBREH
i - REVEMLERRHBEAREZSE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EENELEHERELRERANEE

Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s determination of the
valuation of investment properties included:
E%ﬁ%ﬁ@%i&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁZ%&ﬁﬁ@

e evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent
external valuers;
iﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%\%bﬁﬁﬁ

e assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation methodologies, key
assumptions and estimates used,
based on our knowledge of the relevant
industry and using our valuation experts;
REZSHHEBTX2RBRDAES 2
HEEXR FERAGERLE BRERER
RIGAREEHE

e challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of
the business and industry; and
REESHEBRITEZRH  BEREERE
BREARE I R

e checking, on a sampling basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.

MARERTER AR A BE 2 ERn R AR

We found the management judgement and
estimates used to assess the fair value of
investment properties were supportable by
available evidence.

EERREEBHE RETANTEREDE
ZRFEDHASEER X -
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key audit matter (Continued) e
BREZSHEE)

Impairment assessment on loan receivables, trade
receivables and other receivables

KRB - B5ERSEREMERNEZBEFE

Refer to notes 25, 27 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

ED BB E A RN F25 27 R 28 °

At 31 December 2019, the Group had loan receivables,
trade receivables and other receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, of HK$978,050,000,
HK$39,864,000 and HK$69,450,000 respectively.
Management judgement was required in assessing and
determining the recoverability of loan receivables, trade
receivables and other receivables, and adequacy of
allowance made.

R=-ZB-IFE+=ZA=+—H BEXKEZEWER -ES
FEWREREMERRE(HREERAZEEHEERER) D
Bl 978,050,000 % Jt ~ 39,864,000 & jT & 69,450,000 &
T ReFEREERWER - B 5 FE WA K& H ith B UK
gzmu&@1@1&?&1’?&#&1&2%%’&!&%  BEEEAELH

In determining whether there was objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group took into consideration the
credit history of the customers and the current market
condition which may require management judgement.
REEREARERE-2RBRER  BSEEZREFZ
FERERRIFHR - EF A RAEEERF LG -

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of loan receivables, trade receivables, and
other receivables under the expected credit losses
model involved the use of significant judgement and
estimates.
FEEEINZERTERARGEEBEERETRKRER
%ﬁ%ﬂ&?ﬂlﬁ&ﬁ@%H&%klﬁZifaﬂE%WE*}bF&EFﬁEk%ﬂb‘?ﬁ
RAkE

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter (Continued)

ESNERHBRELSENEE (&)

Our audit procedures in relation to the
management’s impairment assessment of
loan receivables, trade receivables and
other receivables included:
EENEEEBREWEN EZRBARERHE
fFER R IE Z R ER G 2 B

discussing the Group’s procedures on
credit period given to customers with
the management;

HEREFN®R BEEEOEFRUGED
ZREF

checking, on a sample basis, the aging
profile of the loan receivables, trade
receivables and other receivables at
31 December 2019 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;
RMBEEREHBVBLHEIR-Z
—hWF+ZA=+—BRKER - BEFE
WHREREMERRE 2 RERFERE
ZIRITHREE

inquiring management for the status of
each of the material trade receivables
past due at 31 December 2019 and
corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence,
such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers
based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

MEEEEANR_-ZE-NF+-A=+—
R BRBEERESGRBRFREBEZBER
LURERERBEXHF2ME  SINMRER
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Impairment assessment on loan receivables, trade
receivables and other receivables (Continued)

KRB - B5EKHEREMERNEZEEFE(E)

Refer to notes 25, 27 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. (Continued)

B BB B E BIFIR AT 25 27K 28 ° ()

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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matter (Cntlhued)
EENERHARELSENEE (&)

e assessing the appropriateness of
the expected credit loss provisioning
methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess
their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking
information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.
FEEHEREERBERERENES
M RMREEESTEHAKE  UF
MZEHB cERERTEM - WEAE
ETHEMCEEBEcBRRELNER B85
BERABMEER -

We found the management judgement and
estimates used to assess the recoverability
of the loan receivables, trade receivables
and other receivables and determine the
impairment provision were supportable by
available evidence.

Eé%ﬁ BREHERETARTEEKE
M~ B 5 R WERIE K H b FE W IE AT B Ui R
EERERBIIHRASEEBAXE -
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Impairment assessment on the Group’s intangible
assets and goodwill

BREEREERBEZBEN

Refer to notes 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

B FIZ iR E IR EN 21 22K 23 °

The Group has intangible assets and goodwill of
HK$829,696,000 and HK$272,324,000 respectively
relating to the property investment segment at 31
December 2019. Management performed impairment
assessment on intangible assets and goodwill and
concluded that no impairment loss on intangible assets
and goodwill was recognised. This conclusion was
based on value in use model that required significant
management judgement with respect to the discount
rate and the underlying cash flows, in particular future
revenue growth and capital expenditure. Independent
external valuations were obtained in respect of the
impairment assessment on intangible assets and
goodwill in order to support management’s estimates.

ERER-E-NF+ZA=Z+-HZEFEERBEES A
# 829,696,000 /& jt & 272,324,000 8 5T JIEEYIERE D
HEHE - EEEMRENEERBMEETRENL - LEHE
W BREERBEYEBEFEATER - 2ERIER
ERAEERN  ZEAERIRUREZREERERE - L
HEARRKSERREAZH2EREREHE - BXIFE
E§E§:Zﬁ£§+  ERMEBREERBE ZRENEESE /M

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of intangible assets and goodwill involved
the use of significant judgement and estimates.
EEEINZES AN ERLEERBE CREB B RE
FREXRHE R G e

matter (Continued)

EENERHHERERERNEE(F)

Our audit procedures in relation to the
management’s impairment assessment of
intangible assets and goodwill included:
EENEEENERLEERBE ZREMNEZ
ERREFERE

e evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objective of the independent
external valuers;
iﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%Zﬁ%‘%ﬂﬁgﬁ

e assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation methodologies, key
assumptions and estimates used based
on our knowledge of the relevant
industry and using our valuation experts;
BREESHHEBTEZRBRIAESEZ
HERR FERAMGERLE  BRRR
RIGFTRERE

e challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of
the business and industry; and
REESHEBRITE AR BREERE

BREAEE R

e checking, on sampling basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.
ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁl%%Zﬁﬁﬁ&m@

We found the management judgement and
estimates used to assess the recoverability
of cash-generating unit and determine the
impairment provision were supportable by
available evidence.

EERRNEEBHERMETANTLERESEE
iﬁﬂ@%ﬁ&ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%%ﬁ
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The directors are responsible for the other information.

- 2
S ””"’J.
- T

The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the content of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

5 4 8 8nw

nns s

ELENERRCERERRGSUBRR]RD
A AR RTFRIER M EHNEMERERR
o WHAREESZERNWRBMES - BF
BERAREQNAELEOFRED BTZER
HER  RUEZINIEAMBEN - EETEH
RI|E AT AEMEMALE ESREEM
B - SEBREBSEAKE  HEEERR
BREBENENETHERTFRARERIRME
TFAERE REERIRAL o $55R[R L AR R ERFF
$BER - AN RBERSEAMBRTILE
ERERBEARGS W BRERELNEERE
> RIAR B E REEERIRAL

RIEFRBETHEAETELR  FZEREX
Y REEBZERTREERRREE -

EET

o HEAIRF RS MBHRERFRER
MEHNERHERRL AR BELE
BEEERGARATERRESF ESEER
HEERRERESNERREHER -
HREFIRERRE RE - MEE
B REMBASIERERNRES - Bt
R B8 3% 35 | b 3 AR B9 BB K8 SRR AL B
EORREBRINANE RN B A E NI R
PULEMRES -

e THEELEBHORNIES - LIRS
ENELER BUFEEY BEEE
NEBEHNAEREEERER -

o FMETAENEERERE  URES
FEEfthERERKERAEHE

KEHHREERAT
B hEES

101



102

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 6 May 2020
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2019
Notes HK$’000

Bt FET FET
Revenue Uz 6 198,796 188,037
Cost of sales SHERAK (71,145) (63,478)
Gross profit EF) 127,651 124,559
Investment and other income BREREMUWA 7 3,583 2,970
Other gains and losses Hiblh R R EE 8 (146,597) (524,816)
Selling and distribution expenses  $HER S #HHAX (5,876) (5,350)
Administrative expenses THAX (107,260) (162,812)
Share of results of associates FE(REE AR EE (32,992) 8,909
Loss from operations REEE (161,491) (556,540)
Finance costs MEER 9 (48,891) (43,276)
Loss before taxation R AIE 1S (210,382) (599,816)
Income tax (expense)/credit FER(BAx) K% 10 (1,724) 11,091
Loss for the year EEEEE 11 (212,106) (588,725)
Loss for the year attributable to: LT ATEEERFEEESIE :
Owners of the Company BATEBA (209,148) (586,090)
Non-controlling interests IR ER (2,958) (2,635)

(212,106) (588,725)

Loss per share BRER 15
Basic (Hong Kong cents) EARCGEM) (5.48) (15.34)
Diluted (Hong Kong cents) s OE) (5.48) (15.34)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the BEF 2 MY ERB R AR S M Rz —

consolidated financial statements.
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L2 g HK$000 @ HK$00C

S 5

7 - 7 P -
FET FET
Loss for the year AEEEE (212,106) (588,725)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ZNEEHMEEKE (BX) -
for the year, net of income tax HIBRFTEH &
Item that will not be reclassified to profit FTFEEH T EZIEHFKZ
or loss: EH
Share of other comprehensive income of FE{LEE N T2 Hitt 2 E UK
associates - 19,945
Items that may be reclassified HEGREEN R Bk 2
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
Exchange differences arising on BREBNEBEECENERE
translating foreign operations (22,861) (65,089)
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign HEEBMEB 2EHF O ERAE
operation disposed of - 10,651
Share of other comprehensive income/ EihBgE AR 2 HM2E
(expense) of associates Wz, (BASZ) 345 (265)
(22,516) (54,703)
Other comprehensive expense for the AEEHMEEAS > MK
year, net of income tax Frie%ie (22,516) (34,758)
Total comprehensive expense for the ZAFE2XEEARX
year (234,622) (623,483)
Total comprehensive expense for the UTATEEXRFEZEA
year attributable to: Bx:
Owners of the Company RABEBA (231,773) (620,941)
Non-controlling interests IR ER (2,849) (2,542)
(234,622) (623,483)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the BEMf 2 BN R e M ERR 22— D -

consolidated financial statements.
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ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE 17 496,171 535,761
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 18 226,164 —
Investment properties REYZE 19 159,200 175,600
Intangible assets mEEE 21 829,696 868,411
Goodwill mE 22 272,324 278,407
Interests in associates REEE QB 2 s 24 272,151 251,383
Deferred tax assets BIERIBEE 40 15,974 15,083
Prepayments and other receivables FE{ 7B K H b FEUFIE 28 201 50,104
Loan receivables EWER 25 480,534 353,021
2,752,415 2,527,770

Current assets REBEE
Inventories EFE 26 36,515 37,471
Loan receivables ERER 25 497,516 815,718
Trade receivables B 5 EWFIE 27 39,864 32,974
Deposits, prepayments and other & - A FRE R EthFEK

receivables FIE 28 126,738 129,087
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRERZEH

through profit or loss EE 29 240,815 287,302
Tax recoverable ] g 2 i 18 243 243
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRESEEY 30 140,550 140,628

1,082,241 1,443,423

Total assets EE#E 3,834,656 3,971,193
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 31 38,196 38,196
Reserves & 2,385,735 2,617,508
Equity attributable to owners of AL FEA AEGER

the Company 2,423,931 2,655,704
Non-controlling interests IR ER (5,475) (2,626)
Total equity eyt 2,418,456 2,653,078

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables g 5 EIFIE 32 5,510 3,593
Deposits received, accruals and BiEE - B BRAREAM

other payables FEfFFRIE 33 98,548 121,233
Receipts in advance FEURFRIE 21,024 41,235
Tax payables EEEH*FEIE 88,695 86,664
Bank borrowings RITIERX =% 34 155,720 157,201
Other borrowings HE 35 200,000 200,000
Lease liabilities HEaesd 36 742 -
Secured notes ERERE 37 299,841 -
Amount due to an associate FE{S — BB & ’Z\\Tfi’\ 38 1,967 -
Amount due to a director Ef—BEER 39 - 50,000

872,047 659,926

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deposits received and other Bl E R EM

payables FE{FFR1E 33 53,561 102,535
Receipts in advance FEW R IE - 16,200
Lease liabilities HEERE 36 258,509 —
Secured notes EREE 37 - 299,611
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 40 232,083 239,843

544,153 658,189

Total liabilities =Rt to| 1,416,200 1,318,115
Total equity and liabilities EakaEHE 3,834,656 3,971,193
Net current assets RBEEFE 210,194 783,497
Total assets less current EEMBERTBERE

liabilities 2,962,609 3,311,267

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104
to 287 were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 6 May 2020 and are signed on

its behalf by:

GEHBRREI04E287TEC R _ZE-F
TAANBEESSHERTENR  XHETY

ATHREE

Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah Billy
FiRE PR 2
Director Director
EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the
consolidated financial statements.
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iniere ”

resere Tesere Substotal Total
NEREE 0
PLustt iTARRRE
Bh  BfEE  EABE EERR  AMER fff  EXRE  WEREE  RERA N FEREE 3
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000
i b2 i3 0 i1 i i1 i1 i3 i 74 23
(Note g (Note b) (Note ¢)
() (i) (Hie)
At 1 January 2018 HoE-NE-F-R 38,196 1,807,051 11,761 404,663 - 10523 23,806) o0 101291 3,266,389 84 3266305
Loss for the year KEERE - - - - - - - - (586,090 (586,090) (2,63) (588,725)
Other comprefiensive expense for the year TERER2TER
Share of fher comprehensive income/ BERENT 22T
(expense) of associates it/ (8%) - - - - 10,035 - (265) o - 10,680 - 10,680
Exchange diferences arising on BERIERELZEYEE
Hranslating foreign operations - - - - - - (65,182) - - (65,182) 9% (65,089)
Reclassficaton adustment for a foreign LEBNEH BB
operafion disposed of - - - - - - 10,651 - - 10,651 - 10,851
Total comprehensive income)[expense) KEEMENE/ (BR)4%
for the year - - - - 19,035 - (64,796 910 (686,090) (620,941) (2,542) (623.483)
Recognition of equty-setted share-besed BIRRLEZREEER
payment - - - - - 9,063 - - - 9,063 - 9,063
Release on lapse of equty-setted share-based  WRBEEZRAHKHERE
payment - - - - - (10523) - - 10,523 - - -
Recognition of equty component of converble  B51-BREARfE 2 TRRER L
Joan held by an associae ERif - - - - 1193 - - - - 1,193 - 1,193
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 HoF-NETZRZT-BR
“E-nE-E-R 38,196 1,807,051 11,761 404,663 2028 9,063 (78,602) - 437,34 2,655,704 (2,626) 2,653,078
Loss for the year 1EEER - - - - - - - - (oot (94 [958 (110
Other comprehensive expense for the year KERANAERR
Share of other comprehensive income of FEEEN 2 ENRENE
associates - - - - - - 345 - - 5 - 35
Exchange diferences arsing on BEENsREL2ENER
translating foreign operations - - - - - - (22970) - - (22910) 109 (22861)
Total comprehensive expense for the year KERAEERAE - - - - - - (22,628) - (00048 (8179 (2849 (2462
Release on lapse of equity-setled share-based M RBEEZBARANERE
payment - - - - - (6,063) - - 9,068 - - -
At 31 December 2019 HoE-1ET2AZ1-R 38,196 1,807,051 11,761 404,663 20,28 - to1,221) - 281,259 2428931 (5478 2418456

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(c)

and share premlum of the sub3|d|ar|es and the nominal
value of the 880 shares issued by Riche (BVI) Limited
(formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to
the allotment of 120 shares to Classical Statue Limited and
the amount arising from issue of share by a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the net amount transferred
from share capital and share premium to retained profits
pursuant to the special resolutions passed at the special
general meetings held on 22 August 2003, 30 April 2008
and 12 December 2011.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot make a distribution out
of the contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than its liabilities.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant share options over the
relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the
fair value of the share options at grant date. The amount
for each reporting period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in equity-
settled share-based payment reserve.

(b)

()

Classical Statue lelted EE %120}3& B’ % Al
Riche (BVI) Limited (A7 Ocean Shores (BVI)
Limited) PTE 17 2 880 IR B 3 < EIE K i /& A &
BITROPAIBRIBZEEE °

BABBERBR-_ZZ=FNA=-+=H "
ZENFNA=+RAR=Z——51t=A -I——El
B ZRREIAELEBZEIRBRBARE
KRB ESREREEFNZFE -

REBRE-NAN-FLRDERER)  BAR
BRA DK o A RUTHER - ARRTEE
BABSBRPELDIK : () A0 FERFHA IR
REHEERINPMEEEZEE  RMHA LT
EEZUEREZEAMEREAE -

REEE 2RO AHEERAERBRAR
HH AR B A AR AR LU BN ST S B IR 3 2 A P ME
HBBEDREBRERREABZAFEHNE -
EREP2ERENEBHEBRELTENEER
BH(MAE)NEIEE  IRIABETRARAAE
BABSE - MUARIEREH 2 R0 X R B ER R
hn e
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HK$’000 1K$’00C
Mzt FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loss before taxation BREIAIE B (210,382) (599,816)
Adjustments for: BUTEEEL % :
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESN 11, 21 20,092 20,887
Allowance for credit losses on loan BRERZEEBERE
receivables 11 4,474 17,547
Allowance for credit losses on other HittEWRIBZ EEEE
receivables e 11 3,842 21,285
Allowance for credit losses on trade BESRURIBZEERFR
receivables B 11 56 89
Depreciation of property, plant and M RERZEZFE
equipment 11,17 22,994 22,897
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAREEZNE 11, 18 2,586 -
Dividend income B2 A 7 (670) (661)
Equity-settled share-based payment DREEZE 2RO I
expenses X 11 - 9,063
Loss/(gain) arising on change in fair RENEXNTFESBEE
value of investment properties ZEB/ () 8, 19 16,400 (14,500)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BEE ATz WG , 24 - (1,520)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HENE BERREZ
and equipment s 8 (72) -
Interest expenses MEREX 9 48,891 43,276
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZFIE WA 7 (43) (175)
Interest income on other receivables Hith U IE 2 R 2 WA 7 (2,554) (1,684)
Loss arising on change in fair value of R AFEFABHER
financial assets at fair value through ZERMEEATE
profit or loss SEEECZER 8 80,487 296,211
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AT ZEIE 8 - 10,993
Share of results of associates L= AR ¥R 32,992 (8,909)
Written-off of property, plant and WM - BB RRE
equipment 8 49,782 233,632

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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2019
S S0 “ZE-hE
Notes HK$’000

Mzt FET FET

Operating cash inflows before EEELRPH2KERS

movements in working capital A 68,875 48,615
Decrease in inventories FERD 857 771
Decrease in loan receivables FERE TR D 186,215 14,344
Increase in trade receivables g 5 FEWRFIEE M (6,946) (15,122)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and &€ - BN FER EMEK

other receivables RIER A 48,923 6,624
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at A FEF ABHR

fair value through profit or loss ZEMEEGEM HD (87,415) 49,380
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S EAFEEMm (RD) 1,992 (4,719)
Decrease in deposits received, accruals EUiEE - B ER

and other payables R H b S FRIE R A (41,735) (1,027)
Decrease in receipts in advance BB (36,239) (22,430)
Cash generated from operations EERECZRAS 134,527 76,436
Tax paid EIFE - (2,790)
Net cash generated from operating RETEEECRSFE

activities 134,527 73,646
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Dividend received 2lRiRE 7 670 661
Bank interest received EWRITRIE 7 43 175
Interest on other receivables received SR EMERREZFE 2,026 631
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMBAREE

subsidiaries ZEERNFE 42 - 162,286
Advance to an associate o) — R B 1\ B K - (16)
Payments for acquisition of interest in an FUWER—EBE A7z

associate REEAR - (153,142)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate ~ H&—E#E A 7 EHE - 3,000
Proceed from disposal from property, HENE MERZERS

plant and Equipment M 97 -
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BERZE

equipment and investment properties RIREME (27,021) (70,913)
Prepayment for property, plant and NE - BENEREZ

equipment BEfFIE - (3,318)
Net cash used in investing activites REZBFAZRLETE (24,185) (60,636)
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2019
. . Zg—ﬂﬁ
Notes HK$’000

Mzt FET FET

FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
Proceeds from bank borrowings RATIERFTERIE 81,766 68,723
Proceeds from other borrowings HitERERE - 200,000
Advance from an associate — BB E AR ER 1,967 =
Advance from a director —BEZBHN 45,000 60,000
Repayment to a director BT —RES (95,000) (10,000)
Advance from a shareholder —%Hﬁiﬂ 7,200 133,000
Repayment to a shareholder ERF-—BRER (7,200) (133,000)
Repayment of bank borrowings RITETER (83,247) (70,939)
Repayment of other borrowings Hn g ER - (300,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities HESEEN (510) -
Interest paid 2HFE (56,195) (44,109)
Net cash used in financing activites BEFBMAELFE (106,219) (96,325)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBREZSENEM

cash equivalents (ORD) B8 4,123 (83,315)
Cash and cash equivalents at the BEHUzRERAE

beginning of the reporting period £EY 140,628 225,010
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exgnove

changes (4,201) (1,067)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end HEHRZEHERES

of the reporting period 4EY 140,550 140,628
Analysis of the balances of cash and B&RESZSEBYERIT

cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 30 140,550 140,628
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the BEM 2 M sE B AR S IEHRR 2 — 2D °

consolidated financial statements.
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exempted company with limited liability and its
issued shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office, and head office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual
report.

The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries (together with the
Company referred to as the “Group”) are sale
of financial assets, property investment, money
lending, and design and sale of jewelry products.

Details of the substantial shareholders of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Substantial Shareholders” in the Directors’
Report of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollar (HK$’000), which is same as the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in the consolidated financial statements.
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NANCIAL REPORTING |
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 Leases
for the first time in the current year. HKFRS
16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases, and the
related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore,
the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of
initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on
or after 1 January 2019, the Group applies
the definition of a lease in accordance with
the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16
retrospectively with the cumulative effect
recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2019.

At 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets at the amounts equal to the related
lease liabilities adjusted by accrued lease
payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)
(ii) transition. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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“PORTING STANARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective
approach under HKFRS 16 at transition,
the Group applied the following practical
expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts:

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for leases
with lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application; and

(iii) used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial
application in determining the lease
term for the Group’s leases with
extension and termination option.

On transition, the Group has made the
following adjustments upon application of
HKFRS 16:

The Group recognised lease liabilities of
HK$264,967,000 and right-of-use assets of
HK$236,781,000 in respect of (i) the rights to
construct and operate the club facilities of a
membership golf club and resort in Beijing,
Mainland China, (the “Club”), and (ii) the
rights to develop and operate a piece of 580
Chinese acre land adjacent to the Club (the
“Subject Land”) and the rights to manage
the properties erected on the Subject Land
at 1 January 2019.
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(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 21 BRUBREENFE16RHEE(E)
As a lessee (Continued) ERARHA (4E)
When recognising the lease liabilities for ERRE o BEAREHREAHE
leases previously classified as operating HNEEEERN AEECEARE
leases, the Group has applied incremental RERBHERESEEERNIEERE
borrowing rates of the relevant group RAEX - REGHAEXEEMA49% -

entities at the date of initial application. The
incremental borrowing rate applied is 4.9%.

The lease liabilities as at 1 January RZE-NEF-A—HZHEERE
2019 reconciled to the operating lease H-_FE-N\FF+A=1+—HzZE
commitments as at 31 December 2018 is as EHEAEHROT @
follows:
At
1 January
2019
iy
—ZE-hEF
—HA—H
HK$’000
FHETT
Operating lease commitments disclosed at R=ZZB-NF+=A=+—-HE
31 December 2018 HENKERERIE 701,449
Less: recognition exemption — short-term leases & - HERE#%E — EHEESE (4,829)
Undiscounted lease liabilities relating to REREBVEHRELEAE 165
operating leases recognised upon application #HEREESLHEEZRER
of HKFRS 16 HERE 696,620
Less: total future finance costs JB RIRBLE R4S 42 RE (431,653)
Lease liabilities discounted at incremental R-ZZE—-hF—-A—HREERE
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 RAEBXRMBRCHEAE 264,967
Analysed as: DR
Current TE 441
Non-current FERB 264,526
264,967
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(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 21 ERMBHREERNE16REE(HF)
As a lessee (Continued) ERERHA (4E)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets R-E-NEF-B—HEAEEE
at 1 January 2019 comprises the following: BEEEEESUT :
Right-of-
use assets
EREEE
HK$’000
FET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases R IERE B i 3R &2 Al
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 F16ERAEELERE
ZIEREEE 264,967
Less: accrued lease liabilities relating to B R=E-NFE—-A—BF
operating rights in respect of the Club BERkEBithRCEE
and the Subject Land at 1 January 2019 HETHEAE
(Note) (Btat) (28,186)
236,781
By class: RERN&ED
Golf club Bl ESEE T 82,912
Leasehold land HE LT 153,869
236,781
Note: Bra -
These relate to accrued lease liabilities of operating ZEEAEEEEMRERBMIRCEEDN
leases for operating rights in respect of the Club KREHENETHESERER  ERHEE
and the Subject Land in which the lease payments RRREEBDLEL - R-F—NF—
increase progressively by fixed percentage. The BE—BHECWEZESRAEMENREBEBETZ
carrying amount of the accrued lease liabilities B EaERMECHBERAREF
under deposits received and other payables as at 1 AEEE -
January 2019 was adjusted to right-of-use assets at
transition.
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(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provision
in HKFRS 16, the Group is not required
to make any adjustment on transition for
leases in which the Group is a lessor but
account for these leases in accordance with
HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application
and comparative information has not been
restated.

Impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position

The following adjustments were made to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated

21 BRMBBEENF16REE(H)

ERHEA

REFBMBHREZNE 1657218
BRI ARERBERBAGAE
SEAHEHBAANEEFELEMAE
. ERZSHERBEETBHBR
HEAFE16FEEEREABHA
RMLEBER T EREED -

HEEHBRREZZE

R-ZZE-NF-A-BHESHHBMN
MERPEINTECFHUT A

statement of financial position at 1 January B XEZLHEECHATERRE
2019. Line items that were not affected by A o
the changes have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
RZZB-N\F RZZB-NF
+=A -A—H
=t-H REFBHHK
2§z REERE165
HREE ik ZERE{E
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets CREEE - 236,781 236,781
Current liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE - (441) (441)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deposit received and other Bz E REMEN A
payables (102,535) 28,186 (74,349)
Lease liabilities HEER - (264,526) (264,526)
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(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1

2.2

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continued)

Note:

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from
operating activities under indirect method for the
year ended 31 December 2019, movements in
working capital have been computed based on
opening consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that the Group
applies HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments,
including the impairment requirements, to
long-term interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity methods is not
applied that form part of the net investment
in the investee. Furthermore, in applying
HKFRS 9 to long-term interests, the Group
does not take into account adjustments to
their carrying amount required by HKAS
28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures (i.e. adjustments to the carrying
amount of long-term interests arising from
the allocation of losses of the investee or
assessment of impairment in accordance
with HKAS 28).

At 1 January 2019, an amount due from an
associate of HK$38,437,000 is considered
as long-term interests that, in substance
forms part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate. However, the application
has had no impact as the Group’s existing
accounting policies are consistent with the
requirements clarified by the amendments.
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(“HKFRSS”) (Contmued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following

new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors anticipate that the application of
the above new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position in the foreseeable
future.
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The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or
HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16),
and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

U Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-
use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable
or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries with change of control

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) (or groups of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of the gain or loss
on disposal.
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Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.
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Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and a
contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Revenue and other income recognition policies

The Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sales of jewelry products

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion
of the total transaction price under the
contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.
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Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition policies
(Continued)

(iii) Dividend

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset.

(v) Sale of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Sale of financial assets at FVTPL is
accounted for on a trade date basis.

Impairment of tangible assets, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
assets, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual CGUs, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.
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Impairment of tangible assets, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the
other assets of the CGU or a group of CGUs.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or
a group of CGUs) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from “loss before taxation” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
investment properties are depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-
of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in
net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is
probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities
in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income
tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is
reflected by using either the most likely amount
or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purpose are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-
use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16)
in the consolidated statement of financial
position except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are
as follows:

Golf courses 3.33%
Buildings 3.33%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%-33.33%
Office equipment 10%-33.33%
Motor vehicles 10%-25%
Furniture and fixtures 15%-33.33%
Plant and machineries 10%-33.33%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with
finite useful lives are reported at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined using the first-in, first-out or weighted
average method as appropriate. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as cost of sales in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is offset against the cost of sales in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend incomes which are derived
from the Group’s ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue or investment and other
income.
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Financial instruments (Contmued) ﬁmﬂIE(.‘E)

Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of THEECHERERTE

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following BEUTHRESREEHBIREERK

conditions are subsequently measured at A EREEEE -

amortised cost:

e  the financial asset is held within a business e HEMEEATEUSBEEENUKE
model whose objective is to collect EHNEERELBEENEBELT
contractual cash flows; and ¥ R

e the contractual terms give rise on specified e EHKRRERE EIHHEEE]’JE%m
dates to cash flows that are solely payments EAZARERAEREHIE

of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following WMELTHRENEREEEBRATE
conditions are subsequently measured at fair AR EEKRE(RAFEF AL
value through other comprehensive income ZEWKEMETE :

(“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business e ZEREBEEAEULERKEEN
model whose objective is achieved by both ReRELBEENEBELTH
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; B R
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified s EBHBRREBTHHELEMNRS
dates to cash flows that are solely payments E?%iﬁzliéﬁﬂifﬁzlxéﬂﬁﬂﬁ 0

of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently FEHtEmMEERL BRI UIRAFES
measured at FVTPL. ABHRFTE
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOC| as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the
“Investment and other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including loan receivables, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of each reporting period to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the end of the reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables without significant financing
component. The ECL on these assets are
assessed on an individual basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting period
with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Financial instruments (Continued) ERMITEE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEEZHE(E
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () EERBAEBEME)
In particular, the following information is RER  RIEEERBREEX
taken into account when assessing whether TEIEMEFEFTATHER
credit risk has increased significantly:
e an actual or expected significant e TMIEMMI(INE)RAI
deterioration in the financial EEFTENERIEHEEE
instrument’s external (if available) or =

internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external e FERBMIIBHESEERE
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a HE(WEBKANGEERER
significant increase in the credit spread, FEENEHRERKIBEM)
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes s FEHEHEBAREHEKSE
in business, financial or economic EMRE D KRR D I ZER - Bt
conditions that are expected to cause 2R A AR R 09 3R 8 = FE ORI R
a significant decrease in the debtor’s FIEE ;
ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant o BRANKEXEERNTAR
deterioration in the operating results of BEBE
the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant o BEAMENEE  KESF
adverse change in the regulatory, FRENEBRRFEHEKRTF
economic, or technological environment 28 BHEEAREHEHER
of the debtor that results in a significant EENBEADRIBERD ©

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above T LT ENER  EENMAR
assessment, the Group presumes that EEAEE180H AEBERE
the credit risk has increased significantly EERKR B HERERFIEM
since initial recognition when contractual BREAEFBEFSERITXEFER
payments are more than 180 days past RRERER °

due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the
date that the Group becomes a party to
the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
(i) a trade receivable is more than 240 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate, and (ii) the credit
quality of a loan receivable is classified
as underperforming or non-performing in
accordance with the Group’s credit rating
system.
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Finanbial instruments éébntinue.d)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of (i) trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
270 days past due, (ii) loan receivables,
when the credit quality are classified as
non-performing in accordance with the
Group’s credit rating system, and (iii) other
receivables, when the other receivables
become credit-impaired financial assets,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

. N
AR

T by
DO iy

e To Sl

n

2 Chr £ 4=

- = ol 1B = (A5 s

A e S
) . ~ i o

eWMITAE)
EHEE(E)
EHEEZHE(E)

(iv)

s B R

EREMBETRRZEFRAREY
- B3 EERWE R A G2
(BN EHFEBTEREARE
RRFE - 65 () B2 EERRE
ZELHEHBB2708 - (i) BK
EX REAEEEFEFRAGH
FEEZ2ERTET  Rii)H
fb EULFRIR - M H A B URIE RS
FERETHMERE  URERLE
RE) AEBEMHETRMEE -
EHMENEREENTREAEH
MKREIRFEREHNT EEE
BRTEEEEER - MEBHA
RSB - FAMAERRERIES
RIESR PR -

FHFEEERNTEBRER

RHMEEFENTERENHRE
BHUBAR(MENENBRAEE)
REANRRBBENRE - FFEHED
BMERENBRENREBEZBER
B WRAEMER AR - FHIE
B B8 2 fh 5t R MR f BB N == hn
BB HDRBENEZEEE
HERMEE

—BmE  BHAEEBEMGT AR
BENIABINTFAEENRES
IR SR B B 5 (B TR B W B P
EREREZHMNER » WIRRNAD
TR EE N BRI RTH -

KEHHREERAT
B hEES

149



150

.
3 - e
\
L Ver v oo 0000
CIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;
o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the
amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of loan
receivables, and trade and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or equity instruments according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables,
accruals and other payables, amount due to an
associate, bank borrowings, other borrowings,
amount due to a director, lease liabilities, and
secured notes are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuers to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance; and
° the amount initially recognised less, where

appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
Group’s obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

LI

EEERERE =
b Y
TR

oSl -~
D% St
a1t

Ak WRAN
o == al lE ;2
Z ‘\\\\‘-

SRMIAEE)
P12 14

HREEWNREREZSNEFT I
B HEeMEECERAAREEKA
REMEEREAEZBRENARED
BERES—BHE  USBMEESEN
HER - EAEE Y EEERNREHE
BB AR R b & O - 3 AR
FHeBHE2EE  AIXEESEIAERN
EENREERZRTEEENHEEE
BERE - HEAEERECEZSH
EERARZERSHERE DR - A
REBEHEEITHEETRKRFE
W R R IR (R TR o

RELBRAUBEEAFENETRHERE
i EEREEECKUEEREERZ
EENBERER -

FEEREBEEN R EEERRR
BUHS 2R BUE R SMEE - BUH
BRAEHMEERAEECSIRNELK
B2ZBNERRPER -

RERBEEEY

RERETRERPHNERESRASEEY
BREFERE RTEBHNEXR REIH
AR=EAUT 2EMEHRSRE M
RERBITEX °



Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of “exchange reserve”
(attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in
a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception
or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.
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Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exception to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases, the Group recognises
right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the
lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.
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Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market
rent review, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.
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Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease incentives from lessor
by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January
2019)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

The Group as lessor (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.
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Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group
applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease
components on the basis of their relative stand-
alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Employee benefits
Bonuses
The Group recognises a liability for bonuses

when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred. 5% of relevant income vests
immediately upon the completion of service in
the relevant service period, while the remaining
portion vests in accordance with the MPF
Scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the government of the PRC
is to make the specified contributions under the
schemes.
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Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (equity-settled share-based payment
reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled share-based
payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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Related parties transactions (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(1)

@)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a related party, regardless of whether
a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations (see below),
that the directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors
have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.
The Group has not recognised any deferred tax
on changes in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is not subject to any income taxes
on the fair value changes of the investment
properties on disposal.
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Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Principal versus agent consideration
(principal)

The Group engages in trading of jewelry
products. The Group concluded that the Group
acts as the principal for such transactions
as it controls the specified good before it is
transferred to the customer after taking into
consideration indicators such as the Group is
primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to
provide the goods and the Group has inventory
risk. When the Group satisfies the performance
obligation, the Group recognises trading revenue
in the gross amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled as specified in
the contracts.

Significant influence over China Healthwise
Holdings Limited (“China Healthwise”)

China Healthwise, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Island with limited liability and the
issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Exchange (stock code: 348), is
an associate of the Group although the Group
only owns 18.86% ownership interest in China
Healthwise, the Group has significant influence
over China Healthwise by virtue of appointing two
out of nine directors to the board of directors of
China Healthwise. Details of China Healthwise
are set out in note 24.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Assessment of economic useful lives of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives other than goodwill are depreciated or
amortised over their economic useful lives.
The assessment of estimated useful lives is a
matter of judgement based on the experience
of the Group, taking into account factors such
as technological progress, changes in market
demand, expected usage and physical wear and
tear. Useful lives are periodically reviewed for
continued appropriateness. Due to long lives of
assets, changes to the estimates used can result
in variations in their carrying amounts.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the end
of each reporting period or whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the CGU is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. An estimation of
the value in use of the CGU involves estimating
the future cash flows expected to arise from
its continuing use and applying the appropriate
discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the CGU.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments under Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

At 31 December 2019, one of the listed equity
securities in Hong Kong held by the Group have
been suspended from trading on the Exchange
since 27 November 2017 and no unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets are available.
The fair value measurement of the suspended
listed equity securities is classified under Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy and uses a valuation
technique based on significant unobservable
inputs. Judgement and estimation are required
in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of these listed equity
securities. See note 50 for further discussion.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value
based on the market values, being the estimated
amount for which properties could be exchanged
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer
and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
or the valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the valuer
has based on method of valuation which involves
certain estimates and assumptions. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has
exercised their judgements and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Should there be any
changes in assumptions due to change of market
conditions, the fair value of the investment
properties will be adjusted accordingly.

. N
EERERR]

T Sy

T~ il

~
> N

s

KT =

A TREREZEBRIR(E)

EIRAFEERERT M ITRAZAF
Eit 2

RZB-NFE+=ZB=+—0 X~&EE
BEEP-EFBLTRAZSEE-Z
—tE+-A=-t+tE BRI
BE MNERTHELTERKSHR SR
B ZOEELTRAZS 2 AFER
EEDEAFEINATFEER  EHR
BERTAB @ BB G ERME
E-AEEHBEERMTRERERN
R A SIS RF B e H H BT R ET o B2
ZERNZMEENBRREUREEEZSE
EARABENEZHRATFE - E—H5T
EEE A ETE

REWHEZ L FilE

REMERBHEAXIFEAR HE
DYERGEREEEEEESES
BEBXZBRARGNMEATERN—F
BYAEMETHMEE  HEAREE
DVPERDBREESE TAFRER

HELLAET EEBEHHHAEHLE
MEERERRBITHR - HEMHMEE
B o fil 2 B 5| R E - AlIR
BYR D FESBREREE -

KEHHREERAT
B hEES

169



170

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

ECL for financial assets

The Group makes loss allowance on receivables
based on various factors including the
aging of the receivables, historical write-off
experience and forward looking information.
The identification of impairment of receivables
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying amounts of receivables and the
allowance for credit losses on receivables is
recognised in the years in which such estimates
have been changed. See note 50 for further
discussion.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customers’ taste and competitors’
actions in response to severe industry cycle. The
directors reassess the estimations at the end of
reporting period.
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e information reported to
the Chairman of the board of directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other operating segments.
The Group currently has four operating segments:

(a) Property
investment

Leasing of rental properties

(b) Sale of financial Sale of financial assets at
assets FVTPL

(c) Money lending Money lending

(d) Sale of jewelry
products

Design and sale of jewelry
products
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revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other
selected financial information for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 by operating
segments are as follows:

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 31 December 2019

St RLEE AEEECES B
P TS HNG XA EE 8
BREEESHEAR DATMT :

PRI E S
BE_F-NF+-A=1—HIFE

Sale of Sale of

Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products Consolidated

HE HE
NERE SREE {E) KEER )
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FiEx FET FET
Segment revenue 2BWE 25,549 791 104,034 68,422 198,796
Segment (loss)/profit 2B (HR) /&7 (119,006) (79,272) 72,496 74 (125,708)
Interest income on bank deposits /T2 FEKA 43
Unallocated corporate expenses KRB E¥EX (2,834)
Finance costs MEER (48,891)
Share of results of associates ~ FEfREENFIEE (32,992)
Loss before taxation BB AIEE (210,382)
Income tax expense FrigBimX (1,724)
Loss for the year TEERB (212,106)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_F-\F+-A=+—HIFE
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products  Consolidated
#HE HE
NERE SREE &g KEEm &8

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Segment revenue AEE 36,286 6,698 96,274 48,779 188,037
Segment (loss)/profit AB(FR),/%F (079788)  (289,126) 31978 (6,473 (543,409)
Interest income on bank deposits  $R4TEHZFEKA 175
Unallocated corporate income 5?%73 BLZERA 502
Unallocated corporate expenses k2B A £M % (13,244)
Gain on disposal of an associate  HE—EKE AT 2k 1,520
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAR 2 K1 (10,993)
Finance costs BMEEF (43,276)
Share of results of associates EiEBEN%E 8,909
Loss before taxation BB AIEE (699,816)
Income tax credit FERER 11,001

Loss for the year rEEFE (688,725)
Segment revenue reported above represents FYER2ABRSEIEREHIIEFE
revenue generated from external customers. FoWm e MEFEL RS EEHE -

There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

Segment results represent (loss incurred)/profit PTHEBEZIB(EEZEE) B
earned by each segment without allocation MzEF LB E PR _BZFaﬁE
of central administrative expenses including BRESHS - F?EH?‘%’L‘T% k3
directors’ emoluments, share of results of FTREREMBA - :Fﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬁﬁ}i&s
associates, certain investment and other income, B BEBERANE ﬁ(l’;ﬁi)/}fﬁﬁ °
certain other gains and losses, finance costs and Wy BEERRFEDERRMmM@EE
income tax (expense)/credit. This is the measure ERERARAZRoEERE -

reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

AERBREERAT g
—EAEER
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At 31 December 2019 R-E-AF+=ZA=+—H

Sale of Sale of

Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products Consolidated

HE HE
NERE SREE E) KEER )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FEx FET FEx

Segment assets AHE
— Hong Kong -5 389,477 255,696 1,098,870 73,927 1,817,970
— The PRC - HE 1,742,041 - - - 1,742,041
2,131,518 255,696 1,098,870 73,927 3,560,011
Unallocated corporate assets FOBLEEE 274,645
Consolidated total assets GREESE 3,834,656
Segment liabilities PHEE
— Hong Kong - 5B (119,300) (12,11) (9,766) (43,734) (184,911)
— The PRC ~ (700,605) - - - (700,605)
(819,905) (12,111) (9,766) (43,734) (885,516)
Unallocated corporate liabilites ~ RABEEEEE (530,684)
Consolidated total liabilities GREReE (1,416,200)
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At 31 December 2018
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Sale of Sale of

Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products  Consolidated

e e
NERE TREE Z& HEEM &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FEr Fér TE7n FEn T#r

Segment assets PEE

— Hong Kong ) 416,066 569,728 1,188,093 68,647 2,242,534

— The PRC — e 1,646,961 - - - 1,646,961

2,063,027 569,728 1,188,093 68,647 3,889,495

Unallocated corporate assets RABMGCEEE 81,698

Consolidated total assets GREESE 3,971,193

Segment liabilities PHEE

— Hong Kong - &% (126,477) (12,112) (73,952) (37,006)  (249,547)

— The PRC - HE (545,473) - - - (545,473)

(671,950) (12,112) (73,959) (37,006 (795,020)

Unallocated corporate liabilities ~ k2 EE%EE (523,095)

Consolidated total liabilities GRBEEE (1,318,115)

For the purposes of monitoring segment REERSBRARNDEBESEER

performance and allocating resources between

segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating e KBRREELNTAzEZ BHTERE-
segments other than interests in associates, BN RIER E A BRRIE LR B &
certain deposits, prepayments, other RREEEM AT AER DI
receivables and cash and cash equivalents FFEEEYIBMELE DI - @5
that are not attributable to individual DEWHREEA 2 EERE R 5 IR
segments. Assets used jointly by individual EYZLBIE%?J‘EE 3
segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual segments;
and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating e PBREMMER - EBREE - & TES

segments other than other borrowings,
secured notes, certain accruals and other
payables, certain tax payables, and amount
due to an associate that are not attributable
to individual segments. Liabilities for which
segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—F-NAF+-A=1—-HIFE

Sale of Sale of
Property  financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending  products Unallocated Consolidated
B #E
NERE  SHEE BE  HEER #AE ge
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS'000
-2 A1 A1 A1 FAT 2
Amount included in the measure of segment HEAS(ER)/ AR
(loss)/profit and segment assets ABEEMTAZEE
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE  BERRE 39,168 - - 17 - 39,185
Allowance for credit losses on loan receivables EUER GEFERE - - (4474) - - (4474)
Allowance for credit losses on other receivables HbEURE FAEERE (3842 - - - - (3,842)
Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables BARNHE ERRRE - - - (%6) - (%6)
Amortisation of intangble assets BREERY (20,092 - - - - 0w
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% RERRENE (22,036) - - (%) - (2%
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZIE (6,058) - - (64 - (6,142
Dividend income RahA - 670 - - - 670
Gain on disposal o property, plant and equipment &4 BERGEUE 2 10 - - - 7
Interest income on other receivables RAERFEZHENA 2,554 - - - - 2,55
Loss arising on change i fai value of financial assets ~ RATER \BRZ 2 EHERLTELD
at FVTPL 2] - (s048n) - - - (4
Loss arising on change in fair value of investment ~~ REHEATESBEL 2R
properties (16,400) - - - - (16,400)
Written-of of property, plant and equipment fiEng BERRE (49,762) - - - - (47e)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—FE—-NF+-A=1+—HILFE

Sale of Sale of

Property  financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending  products  Unallocated  Consolidated

e e

NZRE  GEEE k& HEER AR h&
HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOO  HKSO00
Tér  7ET fEn TEr TET T

Amount included in the measure of segment HEAS(ER)/ AR

(loss)/profit and segment assets ABEEMTAZEE
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE  BERRE 70,888 - - % - 70913
Allowance on credit losses on loan receivables EUER EEFERR - - (17540) - - (1754
Allowance on credit losses on other receivables EbENE FEFERR (21,285) - - - - 28y
Allowance on credit losses on trade receivables EARUEL RERERE - - - (89) - (69)
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEEAY (20,887) - - - - (088
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% BERRELNE (22,83%) - - (61) - (28
Dividend income REWA - 661 - - - 661
Gain arising on change in far value of investment RENFATEZDE: 2

properties 14,500 - - - - 14,500
Inerest income on other receivables EfRUSRZAERA 1,053 129 - - 502 1,684
Loss arising on change in fair value of financial assets ~ RAFEF AERF 2 SREENTE

at FVTPL 2HELZER - [se21) - - - 1)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment ftiEng  BERRE (233,632) - - - - (28363
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The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and AEEBFEREBRTEILE - K5KH

the PRC. The Group’s revenue from external RitBUBESREEIEFZRER
customers and information about its non-current ERHEIRHEE2EREIWMNT -
assets by geographical location are detailed

below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REHIEFzRH FRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018

“E-hE ZE-NE ZE-IE ZE-N\E
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FBT FHT FiET

Australia B 254 21 - —
Europe BUM 14,940 10,437 - -
Hong Kong g 158,978 144,595 661,311 665,778
The PRC FE 20,454 32,777 1,594,596 1,465,511
The United States of America  EFIEBAERE 4,170 207 - —

198,796 188,037 2,255,907 2,131,289

Note: WE ;
Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, other FEHEETERELHEELEE  HtEWRE
receivables and loan receivables. REWRER -
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Revenue from customers of the corresponding REEE v WEANEEEOAERA
years contributing over 10% of the total revenue WHESRI10% L EMT :

of the Group are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Customer 1° EF1 24,393 N/ATEAA?
Customer 21 BEFE 2 23,806 19,901
Customer 32 =F32 20,454 21,264
1 Revenue from sale of jewelry products. ! REHEKBEER2ZWE -
2 Revenue from property investment. 2 REYEREZNE °
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 8 RS RO AL L WRBRER10% K

10% of the total revenue of the Group. Eo
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31 Decémber

BE+-HA=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Disaggregation of revenue from ERNBHREERNE 155
contracts with customers within BEERARBEFEHNZ
the scope of HKFRS 15 U 2% B 4
Disaggregated by types of goods and & RKREEESIF
services
— sale of jewelry products — HEKREEM 68,422 48,779
Revenue from other sources R E HARERE 2 WS
— sale of financial assets at — HERAFEFTABER
FVTPL, net ZEMEE FHE 791 6,698
— interest income on loans — BERFBEWA 104,034 96,274
— rental income AL ON 25,549 36,286
Total revenue 2 = 198,796 188,037
Timing of revenue recognition =T e =
— a point in time — RE R 68,422 48,779
— over time — R—EREER - -
Revenue from contracts with REEFEHZWE
customers 68,422 48,779
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e S customers W|th the amounts E’Jﬁ%ﬁﬂ’]%ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ? °
disclosed in the segment information.

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2019 2018
—E-AEF —Z-N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sale of jewelry products HEREEM 68,422 48,779
Revenue from contracts with REEFEHzWE
customers 68,422 48,779
Sale of financial assets at FVTPL, net $EERAFEFABREZZ
TREE  FH 791 6,698
Interest income on loans BEXRFEUWA 104,034 96,274
Rental income HEWA 25,549 36,286
Total revenue FAl g 198,796 188,037
Revenue from sale of financial assets at FVTPL is REBEERLAFEFAEEZERZEME
recorded on a net basis, details of which are as EZWEEFHEEENR FB0T

follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-ZA=+—BLHFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Proceeds from sale of financial assets RE#EERNFPETAES
at FVTPL RZTRMEEZFIBRIE 69,451 91,046
Carrying amounts of financial assets at BERAFEIABREY
FVTPL sold plus transaction costs TREEZIREESM
RXEBEHR (68,660) (84,348)
791 6,698
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or the year ¢
31 December

BE+-HA=+—HLEE

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Dividend income BREWA 670 661
Interest income on bank deposits IRITFERZFEWA 43 175
Interest income on other receivables ~ HEUNFIE 2RI B WA 2,554 1,684
Sundry income HIFUA 316 450
3,583 2,970

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HitWzmREE

For the year ended
31 December
BZE+t-A=+—HALEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BEE ARzl - 1,520
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEVE BERSREZ
and equipment g 72 -
Loss arising on change in fair value BRAFEFABRRZ
of financial assets at FVTPL TREEATEEHEL
ZEE (80,487) (296,211)
(Loss)/gain arising on change in fair REVELATEEZBEEZ
value of investment properties (F518) W= (16,400) 14,500
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZEE - (10,993)
Written-off of property, plant and WEEE - BMEREE
equipment (49,782) (233,632)
(146,597) (524,816

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BE+-HA=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEFRZHE 4,321 9,266
Interest on other borrowings HERZFE 16,000 9,797
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBZFE 12,947 —
Imputed interest on secured notes BEREBZMAEFNS 24,231 24,213
57,499 43,276
Less: interest on lease liabilities B ETABREREERLAZ
capitalised in the cost of BEERELEEEEFE
qualifying assets (8,608) -
48,891 43,276
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 10. FRE38i(BEX) &
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBREHR
— current tax — ZRHEABIE (5,721) (2,283)
— over provision in prior years — BAFEBERE 20 123
(5,701) (2,160)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI S
— current tax — ZRHEABIE (914) (1,883)
Deferred taxation credit EERIEIK & 4,891 15,134
(1,724) 11,001
KERBRERRAT
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Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”’) which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2,000,000 for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The income ax (expes)/credit for the year
can be reconciled to the loss before taxation

per consolidated statement of profit or loss as

follows:

Y

N F E A

BR(ER) ES
ERTBRBEABBYENT -

\\-u,.
BERE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FiET

Loss before taxation FREL A& 1B (210,382) (599,816)

Taxation at domestic income tax rate  LAE i Fr5H8 =5t (42,229) (114,383)
Tax effect of income not taxable for B L BARBWRA 2B

tax purpose b2 (769) (14,700)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible % £ A/ 1850 % 2 Bi 15

for tax purpose 24 33,305 107,487
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not RER(LETHIIEE B 2B

recognised 24 11,602 10,793

Tax concession (Note) MK EEHF) (165) (1695)

Over-provision in prior years BEIFEBZRE (20) (123)

Income tax expense/(credit) FIEHiBx(ER) 1,724 (11,091)
Note: BiEt -

It represents the tax concession from the enactment of
the two-tiered Profits Tax rates by the Inland Revenue

Department.

BIEERERERMABNEREHNERES
ZHIEEE -
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charging/(rediti.ng):

B/

For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-—A=+—-HLHEE
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Allowance for credit losses on loan EWERZEEBERE
receivables 4,474 17,547
Allowance for credit losses on other HEWFIE 2= EEERE
receivables 3,842 21,285
Allowance for credit losses on trade BZEWRIEZEEEHEBEE
receivables 56 89
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEE#EGTATBAX)
(included in administrative
expenses) 20,092 20,887
Auditors’ remuneration: REMME
— audit services — 2R 976 1,088
— non-audit services — FRBRK 207 353
1,183 1,441
Cost of inventories sold EEFEZHA 56,149 43,752
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ - BERREZITE
equipment 22,994 22,897
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZIFE 6,142 —
Less: depreciation capitalised in the & - st AREREERAZE
cost of qualifying assets BERFE (3,556) -
2,586 —
Net foreign exchange loss & 5 &R 77 67
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEYE - ELHEEHS
rental premises - 3,259
Operating lease rentals in respect of K& ZKEHERS
operating rights - 16,831
Less: operating lease rentals B ETAREREERAZE
capitalised in the cost of ERREHERS
qualifying assets - (11,134)
- 5,697

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Rental expenses in respect of short- EHHEEZHERX
term leases 290 -
Staff costs (including directors’ ETIRK(BREEEME) :
emoluments):
— salaries and allowances — HeRER 46,621 46,905
— discretionary bonuses — BYBTEAL 4,910 25,463
— contributions to retirement — RRBERIEH B
benefits scheme 2,354 1,528
— equity-settled share-based — UREEE 2RH R
payment expenses 53 - 9,063
53,885 82,959
Gross rental income from investment REREMERLLEECHE
properties and operating rights U (25,549) (36,286)
Less: direct operating expenses B FEREEHERAZRE
incurred for investment MERKEREEZE
properties and operating ERERE
rights that generated rental
income during the year 14,996 19,726
Less: direct operating expenses B FRTEELEESBRAZ
incurred for investment REVERKEREEE
properties and operating CHELERX
rights that did not generate
rental income during the year 617 382
(9,936) (16,178)
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payable to the directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company during the year was
HK$26,692,000 (2018: HK$47,741,000) and
was included in “administrative expenses”.
The emoluments of each director and the
chief executive officer for the years ended 31

FRENSEFALAESRITHA
HoME 4% 526,692,0008 T(==
— N\ : 47,741,000 5 ) W 5t Al 1T
X - BE-Z-—hhER-ZF-N\HF
TZA=+—HLEE FEERTH
HECHERBEBEALHTRAREBLQ
ARFIHENT ¢

December 2019 and 2018 disclosed pursuant to
the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Company Ordinance are as follows:

Contributions Equity-settied
Salaries and Discretionary to retirement share-based
Fees allowances bonuses benefit schemes payment expenses Total
e LRGN ERA BENHEER  REEEZRARIER it
2019 2018 2019 218 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 018 2019 2018
ZE-0E ZE-NE ZE-nF ZE-NE ZE-RF CE-NE CE-RE CE-NE ZR-nF ZE-NE ZR-AF CE-NE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS'000  HK$000
e TR TR B FEn FEn TE TR B FE FEL TEL
Executive directors Ufres
M. Lei Hong Wai, 3
the chief executive officer (fiB48) - - 8,400 8,400 1,400 10,000 18 18 - 109 9,818 18527
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton FERRE - - 8,400 8,400 1,400 10,000 18 18 - 109 9,618 18527
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy RegsE - - 4,800 4510 800 3,500 18 18 - 1,092 5618 9,180
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan FEgRE 120 120 840 810 100 90 18 18 - 109 1,078 1147
Independent non-executive BUdnES
directors
Mr. Wan Shing Chi oy 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RELRE 120 10 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EERLE 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Total emoluments et 480 480 2440 2,180 3,700 23590 n n - 1419 26,692 474

LERRZBTESRITRARZHE
ARERERARARSTEEEHREHR
BRBMNE - LHBIFUTESHE
RREERESEHBHE2ME -

The executive directors’ and the chief executive
officer’'s emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors.

REBEEZZ-NAF+-RA=t—HLHF
B WERQAAESHTHREAHBESR
A ERERAME 2L H(ZE-NF
#B®) -

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive officer of the Company
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any
of the directors and the chief executive officer as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
as compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).

The executive directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined based on their
duties and responsibilities in the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
executive directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
executive directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company. The
number of share options granted was determined
based on the directors’ duties and responsibilities
in the Group.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS IN WHICH DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY HAVE MATERIAL
INTERESTS

Save as disclosed in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in
which a director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the reporting period or at any time during the
reporting period.

13.
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during the year mcluded three directors (2018:
three directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining two (2018: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor the chief executive officer of the
Company are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances e ROER 2,518 2,369

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 422 611

Contributions to retirement benefits ERERGTEIHX

scheme 36 36
Equity-settled share-based payment DR EEE 2RO

expenses - 2,184

2,976 5,200

MENTFUTEBZRESFIFAQITE
EEEAHWMT :

The number of the highest paid employees who
are not the directors of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

Number of employees

EEAH"
2019 2018
—2-AEFE ZE-N\F
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 =72 1,000,000 8T - -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 87T
%1,500,000 & T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T
% 2,000,000 87T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T
% 2,500,000 87T - 1
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T
% 3,000,000 87T - 1
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, none
of the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employee was granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group
under the share options scheme of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company. The number of
share options granted was determined based on
the duties and responsibilities of the non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in
the Group.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per AABBEBEAEAEREARAREBEEE
share attributable to the owners of the Company TR U T BB E -
is based on the following data:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=t—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-AEF —ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the purpose of basic and Rt EESRERAREBEEE
diluted loss per share BFFTAZ B8
Loss for the year attributable to KAREEANEBEEREE
owners of the Company 518 (209,148) (586,090)
KIBRIEIREBRAT
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BE+-HA=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
’000 000
FK FIE
Number of ordinary shares EBEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary RitEESRELRR #EEE
shares for the purpose of basic and W P A 2 & 98 IR
diluted loss per share FE9E 3,819,606 3,819,606
The computation of diluted loss per share for SAER=T-NER=F-NE2ER
2019 and 2018 does not assume the exercise B8 & 18 s X0 AR R AT LA D R) 2 8 R
of the Company’s outstanding share options ITEERBARFE UL Ty B R AR B B AT 2§
since their assumed exercise would result in a SEYEREBRD °
decrease in loss per share.
16. DIVIDENDS 16. R E
The directors do not recommend the payment ESUTAEBNRBEE-_Z-—NEF+=
of any final dividend for the year ended 31 B=+t—-HBLEFEZEARBRE(=ZZF
December 2019 (2018: Nil). —N\FE  8\&) -

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Plantand  Leasehold

Offce

Motor

and

Buildings courses inprogress  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BF FBANS  HEIE  HERER HENERE  BOERG RE GHREE it
HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 1000 HKS 000 HK8 1000 HKS 000
-2 -4 787 72 747 V22 fén 28 Tér
Cost A
At 1 January 2018 HE-NE-R-H 332,303 66,719 258,669 1,905 3,828 1,856 4,083 3172 704,495
Additions during the year ~ AEERE - - 57,530 - 9976 842 - 2,565 70913
Transfer from investment ~ EREFENE A 19
properties (note 19) 72,900 - - - - - - - 72,900
Written-off fiss - ) 2) - - - (126)  (23,769)
Exchange alignment E] (7.837) (3,088) (5,527) 87 (1,527) (66) (138) %) (18,343)
At31 December 2018and ~ R=E-NE
1 January 2019 t2B=1-AR
“%-nE-A-4 397,366 63,651 77,051 1,796 uam 2632 3905 5518 596,196
Addtions during the year ~ AEEFE - - 3,513 674 2,687 305 - § 39,185
Disposals HE - - - (34 - - (1,050) (565) (1,649
Written-off s - - (49,782) - 2,381) - - - (52,163)
Exchange alignment ] (3,353) (1412 (1,348) 39) (134 3) (62 3) 1215)
At 31 December 2019 HZ%-1%
t2h=1-H 303,813 62,239 61,434 2307 43,849 2902 2793 4927 574,354
Accumulated depreciation ~ E3FHERHAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2018 H_E-NF-A-R 18,488 6,560 - 886 10,016 49 1,09 2,165 39,700
Charge for the year KEERH 14,092 2920 - 193 4,005 637 554 49 2,897
Eliminated upon writen-off ~ HIEHS - - - (16) - - - 121) (137)
Exchange alignment E (1,081) (do1) - 1] (451) (20 (20 (59) (2,025)
At31 December 2018and ~ R=E-NE
1 January 2019 tZB=t-8R
“5-nE-A-4 31,549 9,079 - 1,016 13,570 1,110 1,626 2,485 60435
Charge for the year REERH 15,066 2408 - 3 3219 675 5% 37 2,99
Eliminated upon disposals ~ HEEE - - - 26) - - (1,050) 548) (1,624)
Eliminated upon wrtten-off ~ HisHEF¥# - - - - (2,381) - - - (2,381)
Exchange alignment R (636) (248) - (3) (263) 20) ) (19 (1,241)
At 31 December 2019 R-g-1%
t2B=1-H 45979 11,639 - 1,200 14,205 1,765 1,080 2315 78,183
Carrying amounts g
At 31 December 2019 RZg-1E
t2B=1-H 347,834 50,600 61,434 1,197 29,644 1,137 1,713 2612 496,171
At 31 December 2018 RoE-N
+2B=1-H 365,817 54,572 77,051 780 30,707 1,522 2219 3,033 535,761
KIERBIREBRAR
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Group capitalised depreciation of right-of-use
assets and incurred interest expense on lease
liabilities of HK$3,556,000 and HK$8,608,000
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group capitalised operating lease rentals of
HK$11,134,000.

All of the Group’s buildings, golf courses and
construction in progress located in the PRC
are held on medium-term lease. The Group’s
buildings located in Hong Kong are also held on
medium-term lease.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group recognised a written-off of
construction in progress of HK$49,782,000
(2018:HK$233,621,000) as a result of the
demolishment of two (2018: seven) hotel villas
erected on the Subject Land. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 5 November
2019 for details.

The Group has pledged its buildings located in
Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$218,667,000 (2018: HK$226,577,000) to
secure the Group’s bank borrowings.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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BE-_Z-NE+=-A=+—-BL#EF
B A&EECE#K 25 A3,556,000% 5T
58,608,000 B Tt FABEENER
HEEBEEEZRERMIEREL -

BE_Z-N\F+-A=1T—-HLF
E > AEBEEH 11,134,000 8 T 2 K&
HEEETEARL -

REBURPEZAERT SWKIR
SREZIRUTHENER  A&E
NREBZBFRUATFPEIESE -

BE-_Z-—-AWE+ZBA=+—HLE
B BAFIFTEHHBE o mE(ZE
—N\E R BIEBE  NEBEEIK
SHIEE T 7249,782,0008 T (=& — N
£ 1 233,621,000587T)  H1BHZHEA
AAIBHRA=ZZE-NFE+—BEBZA
ﬁﬁo

AEBEKAEVNAETBEREAE
£218,667,0008 (= & — )\ F:
226,577,000/ B ) 2 FH B AREE
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The
Subject Office
The Club Land premises Total
N
2R T YES @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FE FEx
At 1 January 2019 R=—Z-N%—A—H
Carrying amount IREE 82,912 153,869 — 236,781
Additions nE - - 592 592
Depreciation charge TERX (2,502) (3,556) (84) (6,142)
Exchange alignment EHAE (1,767) (3,300) — (5,067)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-I%F
+=ZA=+—-H
Carrying amount BREE 78,643 147,013 508 226,164
Expense relating to short-term ARG HHE R H iR
leases and other leases with ERBBMKERELE
lease terms end within 12 BIZE 165X ERA
months of the date of initial BHEA 1218 B A&
application of HKFRS 16 Rz 290
Total cash outflow for leases  HEZREHHHELE 12,638
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and BEZ-_E2—-—hEr=ZEE—-—NE+=A1
2018, the Group leases (i) an office, (ii) the rights =t+—-BLEEE XREEHEE@HHRL

to construct and operate the club facilities of the
Club, and (iii) the rights to develop and operate
the Subject Land and the rights to manage the
properties erected on the Subject Land for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of 2 to 50 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

Lease liabilities of HK$259,251,000 are
recognised with the related right-of-use assets of
HK$226,164,000 at 31 December 2019. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

B ()ERREESM2ENRIE 2
R 5 B (i) B B I AR TR R 2 BRI K%
REXBEETBHR ECEMEE
e HESWNREEFH2E505F7]
Mo HENRMERNEER  YEER
ZARRAR AR - REER K TG
TAREER2HRE  AKEEAS
HESR  WEETRHMTENZFH -

HEEE259,251,000 8 T R BEFEH
HEEE226,164,000 B TR =_F— N &F
+ZA=+-BERIA - -HEMELER
ERRE - HEHEAFRFTEZHES
EZRFEZRN HEEETELTE
REBRZIEE -
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es out certain office unlts in Hong
Kong under non-cancellable operating leases
with rentals receivables monthly. The leases run
for a period of three years and do not contain the
unilateral rights to extend the lease at the end of
the leases.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency
risk as a result of the lease arrangements, as
all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease

Y

EEER S

R
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EEurTEL A
ERI=F - RO SRS

FHERBENER o

HRABHAEYUNEEER 2 HEIRE
EBE HAKEYERZEHER
BmEE SRR  HESNEFES
FerEEERRAEAREBHEREGE

contracts do not contain residual value guarantee BEREYERIERE -
and lessee’s option to purchase the leased
properties at the end of lease term.
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair value A¥E
At 1 January w—A—H 175,600 810,019
Derecognised on disposal of HEM B A TR AL LR
subsidiaries (note 42) (K1aF42) - (571,107)
(Loss)/gain arising on change in fair RESREIZAFEEH
value recognised in profit or loss EEz(ER), Wi (16,400) 14,500
Transfers to property, plant and EREYE  BERRE
equipment (note 17) (Kizt 17) - (72,900)
Exchange alignment & 5 - (4,912)
At 31 December Rt+t=-—H=+—H 159,200 175,600
Unrealised (loss)/gain on change in SFAREERERAI EMs
fair value of investment properties REBEEZRE
included in the “Other gains and MELTFEEBEE 2R
losses” line item in the consolidated #I5 (&18) k&
statement of profit or loss (16,400) 14,500
On 22 June 2018, the Group disposed of its R-ZZE-NFEFRAZ+=ZH XKH

investment properties located in the PRC
through the disposal of the entire issued share
capital of Best Volume Investments Limited
(“Best Volume”). Please refer to note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements for details.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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an aggregate f value of HK$72,900,000 were 72,900, OOO%EZ$§§%¥EA7HEE
transferred to “property, plant and equipment” AETBAYE HOEREIVE K
as the investment properties became an owner ER&E ] &z F{E72,900,000% T
occupied property on that date. The fair value DERE-BBUEXEERMGEMTER
of HK$72,900,000 was determined on the basis EENGRERBERABD(TEZEAREE]
of a valuation carried out by an independent {HEEE -

professional firm of qualified valuers, APAC
Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“APAC”).

All of the Group’s properties’ interests held under AEEFEULLEHEFERIMBES KA
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital REANBEZMENERRZIERADF
appreciation purpose are measured using the fair EEXFTE  UHRERIESREDE -

value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties.

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Investment properties located in Hong R &8 LA EAAA
Kong held on medium-term lease EE2REME 159,200 175,600
All of the Group’s investment properties have NEB 22 EEYECIEBEEREF
been pledged to secure the Group’s bank SRITEF KR
borrowings.
Details of the Group’s investment properties are REBREYEZHBEHINAOT :
as follows:
Attributable
interest to
Location Existing use Tenure the Group
i Bh R AR F 5 AEEELER
Portion of Unit No.1202 Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
and the corridor and [HES AR A

whole of Unit Nos.1201

and 1212 on 12th Floor,

Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

&8 TFES 168-2005%
FEAPLEE12EIH 1202 TR EER
k&2 1201 K 1212 F
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(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available;
and

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
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(a) DFEZERGE)

Fair value measurement categorised into

Level 1
E1H
HK$’000
FET

AFEFEDEA
Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE2k FEIR st

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TET TBT THET

At 31 December 2019 RH-T—hE

+t=A=+-A8

Recurring fair value BEMAFETE
measurement
Investment properties NREEBZIRE

located in Hong Kong LES - 159,200 - 159,200
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—N\EF
+=HB=+—H
Recurring fair value BEM A FETE
measurement
Investment properties NREBZ2ERE
located in Hong Kong LY - 175,600 - 175,600

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and

2.

Transfers out of Level 2 and 3 during the
year ended 31 December 2018 were as
follows:

(i)

(if)

on 22 June 2018, the Group transferred
its investment properties located in
the PRC out of Level 3 as the Group
disposed of the investment properties
through the disposal of the entire
issued share capital of Best Volume;
and

on 3 July 2018, the Group transferred
the investment properties with an
aggregate fair value of HK$72,900,000
out of Level 2 as the investment
properties became an owner-occupied
property on that date.

BE-ZT-NAF+-A=t—-HL
FE F1RRF2REHHEE
B RNESRBEEARES -

BE-ZE-NF+ZA=1+—-HIL
g{g CEIRRE2RCEBES

BE-_Z-N\HE+ZA=+—HL
FEZE2RREIRELNT :

() R=ZF-NFRA=-+=H
MR A EEEB L EBest
Volume 2z 2B #ITRA
EREVHE AEBEHN

RPBEzREMEBEIRNE
H &

(i) R=ZZT—N\FLtA=H #HR
A {E 4 %872,900,000% T
ZREVMERARETBRY
¥ HMAKERZAEZME
HE2HER -

KEH R EBRAT
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Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the date of the events or change in
circumstance that caused the transfer.

The Group’s investment properties were
measured at fair value at 31 December 2019
and 2018. For the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018, the valuations were carried
out by APAC. APAC has among its staff
members with appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the locations and
categories of properties being valued. The
directors have discussion with APAC on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuations were performed at the
end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, the highest and best use of the
investment properties is their current use.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of investment properties
located in Hong Kong is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square foot basis using
market data which is publicly available.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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about Level 3 fair value
measurements
The movements during the year ended 31 BE-_Z-\F+=-A=+—HL
December 2018 in the balance of the Level FEEIRTTELHB2EBEII W
3 measurements are as follows: T
HK$°000
FBT
At 1 January 2018 R=-Z-NF—-—A—H 576,019
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A RRAILER
(note 42) (Hiat42) (571,107)
Exchange alignment fE 5 i % (4,912)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZFE-NF+=-A=+—8H -
Any gain or loss arising from change in fair REMEATESBHELE 21F{AK
value of investment properties is included in HRBIETAGESEERAIHA
the “Other gains and losses” line item in the WHEREE 1B -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
KIERBIREBRAR

“E-NFER
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rights in rights in Software
respect of the respect of and
Subject Land the Club licenses Total
EBIEHR BREM
LBER LR’ RERER @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$:000
FEn TEn F#En FEr
Cost KA
At 1 January 2018 R=E-NE-A-H 921,822 56,945 40 978,807
Exchange alignment EHA% (42,389) (2,619) ¥] (45,010)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NE+ZA=T-BEK
1 January 2019 —Z-N\E-B-H 879,433 54,326 38 933,797
Exchange alignment EHEZ (19,179) (1,185) (1) (20,365)
At 31 December 2019 R=B-AE+ZA=+-H 860,254 53,141 37 913,432
Accumulated amortisation and RHBERAERE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE-NE-A-H 43,901 3,445 40 47,386
Charge for the year REERH 19,367 1,520 - 20,887
Exchange alignment ERAE (2,675) (210) @ (2,887)
At 31 December 2018 and RZEB-\E+ZA=1-HR
1 January 2019 “E-n%-F-H 60,593 4,755 38 65,386
Charge for the year FEEXH 18,630 1,462 - 20,092
Exchange alignment ERAE (1,614) (127) (1) (1,742)
At 31 December 2019 BR=B-AE+ZA=1-H 77,609 6,090 37 83,736
Carrying amounts RE®
At 31 December 2019 R-E-AE+ZA=1-H 782,645 47,051 - 829,696
At 31 December 2018 R=E-NE+ZA=1-H 818,840 49,571 - 868,411

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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lives. Such intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Operating rights in respect of the 47 years
Subject Land

Operating rights in respect of the Club 37 years

Software and licenses 3 years

Operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land

The operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land were acquired through a business
combination completed on 6 October 2015. The
operating rights represent (i) the rights to develop
and operate the Subject Land, and (ii) the rights
to manage the properties erected on the Subject
Land up to 30 January 2062. The operating rights
in respect of the Subject Land were granted to it
AN REEBIEER A (Beijing Bayhood No.
9 Business Hotel Company Limited, “Bayhood
No.9 Co.”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, under the cooperation construction
and operating agreements. The cost of the
operating rights of HK$938,061,000 represents
the fair value of such assets valued by D&P
China (HK) Limited (“D&P”), an independent firm
of qualified professional valuers, as at 6 October
2015, being the completion date of the business
combination.

The operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation charge for the year is included in
the “Administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Particulars of the impairment testing on the
operating rights in respect of the Subject Land
are disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EREf e 37 E
RHRIER 3F
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BREBEHBBEEREIE R 2K
ER-_ZE—HBFTARHEBRTK  ZLE
BERZE-_FER-F—A=+HZH)
HRRSE TR ERN RiiE
BX Rl FCRMEZERN - 8t
MeRERCRESIFERREZEHE
BFARABZEM B QB =AM 5%
ﬁi’%iﬂﬁ*ﬁ‘[‘ﬁﬁi(ﬁb;ﬁﬂgﬁﬁjj) °

4% & fE 2 B 7~ 938,061,000 % It &
ﬁ%ﬁﬁéi"%ﬁ&i—ﬁﬁi BERE
¥ {4 {E F 7T D&P China (HK) Limited
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The operating rights in respect of the Club were
acquired through a business combination as
completed on 6 October 2015. The operating
rights represent the rights to construct and
operate the club facilities of the Club up to 31
December 2051. The operating rights in respect
of the Club were granted to Bayhood No. 9 Co.
under another cooperation construction and
operating agreements. The cost of the operating
rights of HK$57,948,000 represents the fair value
of such asset valued by D&P as at 6 October
2015, being the completion date of the business
combination.

The operating rights in respect of the Club are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation charge for the year is included in
the “Administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Particulars of the impairment testing on the
operating rights in respect of the Club are
disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Software and licenses

Software and licenses were acquired through a
business combination as completed on 6 October
2015.

Software and licenses are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses,
if any.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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HK$°000
FETT
Cost A
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\E—H—H 403,323
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries B A R R AR L TR
(note 42) (Kiat42) (61,246)
Exchange alignment R (16,232)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZB-NF+ZB=+—-BK
1 January 2019 —E-h&—HF—H 325,845
Exchange alignment B 5 (7,121)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hAE+=ZA=+—H 318,724
Accumulated impairment losses RitRERE
At 1 January 2018 R-—B—N\E—H—H 49,724
Exchange alignment IR (2,286)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-NF+ZA=+—-BK
1 January 2019 —E-NF—-A—H 47,438
Exchange alignment & XA (1,038)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NE+=ZA=+—H 46,400
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hE+=ZA=+—H 272,324
At 31 December 2018 R-EBE—-N\E+=ZH=+—H 278,407

Particulars regarding impairment testing
on goodwill are disclosed in note 23 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible AETREINR  SEMERRKE
assets and goodwill in respect of the operating QIR2HIBERAKERCBTLEER
rights set out in notes 21 and 22 to the BEE I BRE—EBYREELEENV
consolidated financial statements have been Smart Title Limited ([ Smart Title ] -
allocated to an individual CGU, namely Smart RPEREEREEYEREERK) -
Title Limited (“Smart Title”), engaged in property FRRERIBEEZREESCEUZE
investment business in Beijing, Mainland China. FEERBECRAEGIRESTRERS
The carrying amounts of intangible assets and BT :
goodwill in respect of the operating rights (net of
accumulated impairment losses) allocated to this
CGU are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Intangible assets BELEE
— operating rights in respect of the — BRI s KLk
Subject Land 782,645 818,840
— operating rights in respect of the —EREgMeREE
Club 47,051 49,571
Goodwill maE 272,324 278,407
1,102,020 1,146,818
The recoverable amount of the CGU engaged in ReE4XBEVRPE AL TREYE
property investment business in Beijing, Mainland REEXEK 2R C£ECRIEERFAEE
China has been determined based on the value in WG EREERE o FEREESEME
use calculations of the operating rights in respect E °

of the Subject Land and the Club.

206 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019



R R RN

s~
- T IR R LA R A

“"‘»c.»

e R B B B
LL (Continued)
P g s ) = A B -

(@) Operating rights in respect of the Subject

Land

The value in use calculation of the operating
rights in respect of the Subject Land has
been determined with reference to the
valuations prepared by APAC for both years.
Those valuations use cash flow projections
based on the financial budgets approved
by management covering a 42-year period
(2018: 43-year period), and discount rate of
15.49% (2018: 16.54%). The budget period
represents the remaining period of the
rights to develop and operate the Subject
Land, pursuant to the signed cooperation
construction and operating agreements.
The discount rate used reflects estimated
weighted average cost of capital, stage of
development, and specific risks relating to
the operations. Cash flow projections during
the budget period for the operating rights
in respect of the Subject Land are based
on the budgeted revenue, gross margin,
operating expenses, capital expenditures
incurred and expected inflation during
the budget period. Expected cash inflows
and outflows, which include the budgeted
revenue, gross margin, operating expenses,
capital expenditures incurred and expected
inflation, have been determined based on
the signed agreements and management’s
expectations for the market development
with reference to the industry and macro-
economic data.
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EFRERGEEE - 25 HEFE
AEEBEEBMECH KAE2R S
RIEE o BE4A2FHE(ZE—N
F I 43FHME)  BRIRE A 15.49%
(ZZB— N\ :16.54%) ° B & Hf
BMARECITIYEFEERREEH
BOHRREETEM BT
B ZHEF o FrEA 2B R E R
FTEARRAMEFEY - BRERR
KE TR BET B
KRERECEEHRNBESRTERIIE
BHEEHRABEKRA - ERE
EEEL  FFELEZERKIERTE
HERZ - FAEHBESRAARRH
(BEEERA - EFER . ELH
T FEAEZERNRERERBR
Z)IREBECIHUHMEREEEY
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(b) Operating rights in respect of the Club

The value in use calculation of the operating
rights in respect of the Club has been
determined with reference to the valuations
prepared by APAC for both years. Those
valuations use cash flow projection based
on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 32-year period
(2018: 33-year period), and discount rate
of 11.90% (2018: 11.00%). The budget
period represents the remaining period of
the rights to construct and operate the club
facilities of the Club, pursuant to the signed
cooperation construction and operating
agreements. The discount rate used is
based on the terminal capitalisation rate
of similar industry and the rental growth
rate of the signed club lease agreement.
Cash flow projection during the budget
period for the operating rights in respect of
the Club is based on the budgeted rental
income and operating expenses during the
budget period. Expected cash inflows and
outflows, which include the budgeted rental
income and operating expenses, have been
determined based on the signed agreements
and management’s expectations for the
lessee not to terminate the signed club
lease agreement and the renewal of club
lease agreement with the same terms and
conditions upon its expiry.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
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oos-ol-\\\\\\‘
..s\\h\‘
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(b) FEAEMzEERE

TR EHEIRE R EAERE
RS EGTAKEERMEFEEMR
BoHEEE ZEWEEAERE
B EHBEE 2R SRER
BERFHB(ZZE—-NHF:33
FHE) BMREERE11.90% (==
—N\F: 11.00%) - FEEHE AR
BELSEERREEH S &
HRREEM2ERE 2T 8
MR - FIERAZBRRETIER
METEZRERERLEREFT L
ﬂhﬁ%iﬁéﬁﬁt°ﬁ%%ﬁ
EREECTEERRABRERTERNT
*E?F?E%%qui‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂi)\&%é‘é
EHT - FEAHBRESRARRE(E
EEEHSWARKLERZ) IR
BETLYHBEREEBHAEAT
KIEERIT2EFHEREREE
WRERBUERERARRIREEER
HEHB2TBRMEE -

BE-_ZE-NF+-A=1T-HLF

E G EEEEHAHRNFERBILRZ
MEREEBETRE(CZT-N\F:
)  BBEMEE EUZERRZEM[A

directors determine that no impairment on the
property investment business in Beijing, Mainland
China is required (2018: Nil). The directors
believe that any reasonably possible change REEE BTFEBRRFTEARIERZ
in any of these assumptions would not cause MEREXK 2 REAEBRBHETKRE
the aggregate carrying amount of the property e o

investment business in Beijing, Mainland China to

exceed its aggregate recoverable amount.
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—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Listed shares in Hong Kong EELETRG
— China Healthwise —EERERE 61,610 -
— Global Mastermind Holdings —REKXBEEFRLT
Limited (“Global Mastermind”) (TBIRAE ) 179,146 194,656
Unlisted shares in Hong Kong EBELTRG
— China Hong Kong Money Limited —HBEERAB(HRE]D
(“China Hong Kong Money”) 593 596
— Elite Prosperous Investment Limited —Elite Prosperous
(“Elite Prosperous”) Investment Limited
(TElite Prosperous ) 30,802 56,131
— Spark Concept Group Limited —Spark Concept Group
(“Spark Concept”) Limited ([ Spark
Concept ) - -
272,151 251,383
Cost of investments in associates REEE N T 2 RE RN 237,207 183,792
Amount due from an associate B — BB E A RRIR 38,437 38,437
Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profit, FE{GKER (BE), &R
other comprehensive income, net Hitht2EBA - EWERE
dividends received and reserve FEREE (3,493) 29,154
272,151 251,383
Market value of listed shares tHRHHE
— China Healthwise —HhEERERE 53,414 -
— Global Mastermind —IRIR KB 68,076 113,873
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mterests in thefollowmg assomates:

Proportion of
ownership interest

Country/ place of Principal place and voting power held
Name of entity incorporation of business by the Group Principal activities
AV rEERERARER
EREH CEVS 1 TEEENE RRERLA TEER
2019 2018
“2-nF ZT-N\E§
China Healthwise (Note (i) Cayman Islands Hong Kong 18.86% N/A  Sales of toys and Chinese
REBRERE ) HEHE EB TER health products, money
lending business and
investment in financial
instruments
HEMARTERREER
HEXBRRESHIA
Global Mastermind (Note (ij)) Cayman Islands Hong Kong 29.04% 29.04%  Provision and operation
RRKBHE (1) MEES B# of travel business,
treasury management
business, money lending
business, and provision
of securities, futures,
assets management
and financial advisory
services
RERELHREXE - BE
BEEK - MEXEE U
REMES 48 EE
EERUBHEARYE
China Hong Kong Money ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 30% 30%  Dormant
(Note (i) E 5B Tmez
HEE (M (i)
Elite Prosperous (Note (iv))  British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 49% 49%  Investment Holding
Elite Prosperous (#izt(iv)) EBELZ#HS Bl REER
Spark Concept (Note (v))  British Virgin Islands Hong Kong N/A —  Catering
Spark Concept (#fz#(y)  HEBEZHE & TEA 28
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On 28 October 2019, the Group held 1,483,728,240
shares in China Healthwise, a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and the
issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Exchange (stock code: 348), representing
approximately 18.86% of the issued share capital
of China Healthwise. On 28 October 2019, Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, an executive director, has
been appointed as an executive director of China
Healthwise with immediate effect.

Following the appointment of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton as an executive director of China Healthwise,
the Group has two executive board seats in the
board of directors of China Healthwise and is
regarded as having a significant influence over China
Healthwise. As a result, the 1,483,728,240 shares in
China Healthwise held by the Group are accounted
for as an investment in associate in accordance
with HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures in the consolidated financial statements,
instead of financial assets at FVTPL in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, with effect from
28 October 2019.

The 1,483,728,240 shares in China Healthwise
with an aggregate fair value of HK$53,414,000
was transferred to “interests in associates” in the
consolidated statement of financial position in
applying equity method to account for the Group’s
investment in China Healthwise. On 28 October
2019, the fair value of net assets of China Healthwise
exceeded the aggregate fair value of the shares in
China Healthwise transferred by HK$14,044,000.
Accordingly, the Group recognised a gain on
bargaining purchase of HK$14,044,000 in the “Share
of results of associates” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The market value of the shares of China Healthwise
held by the Group as at 31 December 2019 is
HK$53,414,000.

In view of the volume of the shares of China
Healthwise traded in the Main Board of the Exchange
in each of the previous 12 months immediately prior
to the publication of the annual report, the directors
considered that the transactions for the shares of
China Healthwise taken place in the Main Board
of the Exchange did not have sufficient frequency
and volume to provide a pricing information on an
ongoing basis and there was no deep and liquid
market existed for the shares of China Healthwise.

RZZBE-NAFE+A=Z+N\B  AEEEZFE
1,483,728, 240 R B B REREEIR D © 15
FEERER 2D EITRAN18.86% °
ZATMA-—BERHASEHEIMRIZE
RAT HOeBTRORBIAERL
m(RBDAYE 348) c R=ZZE—NE+A
“+NB UTESREEFEALECERE
ATEEEBEIHITES  BEFENR -

EEREELEEZEATESERREZ
BITES®  FAEEARTHEEREES
SPEMERNTESERE > LWRBYF
BESEREAEEATED - Bt K&
B354 2 1,483,728,240 RP B B REfiE =
BHODBRESBEFTERE28RREE
ARAREELXEZREZHFEVIEHRRY
REBRBENTZRE  MERBEEEH
BMELEREIRLH T ARG ETIER
EHIRARAFEF A BERZ2EME
E BZZE-hAE+AZ+N\HEEN -

AP {E#A%E53,414,00058 7T 2 1,483,728,240
BAHESEEERMONEARZEIBAE
ERTEEERECREARBRERER
EUBERRARAINBEE AR 2R |-
RZBE-hhE+A=-+N\B HEEE
BRECEEFELATEBBCEEZF
Bl B HERER D A FE# % 14,044,000
BBl NEBRGEEZRAIE
hHENRAXE | EERREEBE NG
14,044,000 7T °

RZZE-AF+ZA=+t-R XK
EFREFEchEEEREROTER
53,414,000 8T ©

MEEFHRTIA12EA S ARBRAE
WRXENTEEERERD 2HEMS -
ESAANBIMERBRERETEEE
RERORZ ZBREHBBIN R LR
BEHERHEEEN  BERTEISHER
BROME WEEREZHERBEF
£ o
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(i)

(Continued)

Given that there was no deep and liquid market
existed for the shares of China Healthwise, the
directors considered that the market value of the
shares of China Healthwise was not relevant to
the measurement of the fair value of the Group’s
interest in China Healthwise. Instead, the directors
determined the fair value of the Group’s interest in
China Healthwise based on its audited consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019 as a majority of China Healthwise’s assets and
liabilities was measured at fair values in complying
with HKFRSs for financial reporting purposes.
As such, the directors considered the net assets
value of China Healthwise as at 31 December 2019
was closely approximate to its fair value as at 31
December 2019.

On 29 June 2018, the Group acquired 1,020,000,000
shares in Global Mastermind, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and the issued shares of which are listed on
GEM operated by the Exchange (stock code: 8063),
at a consideration of HK$153,000,000. Prior to the
acquisition, the Group already held 217,750,000
shares in Global Mastermind, which were accounted
for as “financial assets at FVTPL” in the consolidated
statement of financial position for financial reporting
purposes. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
Group was interested in 1,237,750,000 shares in
Global Mastermind, representing approximately
29.04% of the issued share capital of Global
Mastermind, and transferred the 217,750,000 shares
in Global Mastermind with an aggregate fair value
of HK$30,049,000 to “interests in associates” in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
applying equity method to account for the Group’s
investment in Global Mastermind.

On completion of the acquisition of the shares in
Global Mastermind, the fair value of net assets
acquired as of the acquisition date exceeded
the fair value of the consideration transferred by
HK$3,407,000. Accordingly, the Group recognised
a gain on bargaining purchase of HK$3,407,000 in
the “Share of results of associates” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The market value of the shares of Global Mastermind
held by the Group at 31 December 2019 is
HK$68,076,000 (2018: HK$113,873,000).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BERTEESEEECRALEERE 2T
SRBERHE  EBSRATEEHERER
s EEEAEERTESREREF
BHEZAFEZEL TR - LMK
2 BECORB-Z-NAFE+=ZA=1+-
A EEREEUERRREEAE@RRN
FEHSEEREZESCATE  BIIER
FEESEREZEEREBBNESTERY
BHRELEIR D FESE  EMBERER
2ol EERATEEEBRER=-Z
—hE+ZA=+-RZEEFEHHER
—E-hE+ZB=+—-HZ2AF¥{EMH
go

RZZBE-NEXNAZ+HAB > AEEAK
£ f£153,000,0008 Jt U B8 IR Bk K 8
1,020,000,000 2 iz 10 RERABE —
NESHEFMRIZ2ERLT  HE 3
TRONRBERZFAGEM EH(IRM KR :
8063) - WAl AEEBEERERRK
#$217,750,000 R I 190 BT KR E A
B AGEHBERRRABMZAFETA
BRRzemEE] RIBERE > K
EBREBERAE1,237,750,000 IR IR 4
FEEZ HERBRABCEIRAE
#129.04% > WHEAER LG AT EEALE
30,049,000% T 2 IRER KB 217,750,000
BROEREZHE M HMRRRPIAEE
DA ZER UG ABREBRRIRKE
ZRE -

RERKBRRABROE  BEWEBR
e WBEEFRATFERBECEES
AFERE3,407,00087T - At - BE
—ZE-NE+ZA=+-HLEELXEH
RGeEERAEEHEEQATEE|ER
TR BB B 25 3,407,000 8 7T ©

R-E—hE+-A=+—0  &&EEF
8 2 B3 A A IR 4 7 8 568,076,000
B (ZZF—N\% : 113,873,000 T) °



(iii)

(Continued)

In view of the volume of the shares of Global
Mastermind traded in GEM in each of the previous
12 months immediately prior to the publication of
the annual report, the directors considered that the
transactions for the shares of Global Mastermind
taken place in GEM did not have sufficient frequency
and volume to provide a pricing information on an
ongoing basis and there was no deep and liquid
market existed for the shares of Global Mastermind.

Given that there was no deep and liquid market
existed for the shares of Global Mastermind, the
directors considered that the market value of the
shares of Global Mastermind was not relevant to
the measurement of the fair value of the Group’s
interest in Global Mastermind. Instead, the
directors determined the fair value of the Group’s
interest in Global Mastermind based on its audited
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019 as a majority of Global Mastermind’s
assets and liabilities was measured at fair values
in complying with HKFRSs for financial reporting
purposes. As such, the directors considered the
net assets value of Global Mastermind as at 31
December 2019 was closely approximate to its fair
value as at 31 December 2019.

On 30 March 2016, China Hong Kong Money allotted
and issued 599,999 and 400,000 new shares at an
issue price of HK$1.00 per share to the Group and
an individual, who is an independent third party,
respectively. China Hong Kong Money became a
60% own subsidiary of the Company on that date.

On 21 December 2016, China Hong Kong Money
allotted and issued 1,000,000 new shares at an issue
price of HK$1.00 per share to the individual and Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, one of the two directors
of China Hong Kong Money appointed to the board
of directors by the Group, resigned as a director of
China Hong Kong Money. As a result of the allotment
and issue of the new shares and the resignation
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton as a director, the
Group’s shareholding interest in China Hong Kong
Money was diluted from 60% to 30% and the
Group was deemed to dispose of 30% shareholding
interest in China Hong Kong Money. The Group also
lost the control over China Hong Kong Money and
was regarded as having significant influence over
China Hong Kong Money. The Group reclassified the
investment in China Hong Kong Money to “interests
in associates”.

(iii)

(4&)

MEEFRTIEAM12ERZARGEMK
SHNRERNBRDZBEBNS - EFIAR
RGEMBLEBRRBRABRORZ 258
ERBEITEURBFELERHEEE
¥ BERBRBRABROME  YEARE
ZHERBEFE -

ERBRABROLELRE TSR
BEGE BEESRABRAERAZTES
BEEFAEERRRABREZ ZATFE
ZETEXTEE  c Mmiz > EEERIE
ZE-AE+ZA=+-AZEBREE
BN REEAEBNBRAB &
B2AVE WTHARBRRABZEER
EBENETEBMBREELROPER
B EUKBERE - EERABHAE
R-B-NF+ZA=1+—-B=ZEEZRE
HER-ZE-hE+ZA=+-HA2Z2¥F
R EE=

NRZB-XNE=ZA=1H hBELLER
TESR100BTEAEEAR —BBE L
F=F1EA D BB 3 K 517 599,999 & K
400,000 ¥ pR 10 - BEZ AL - PBEMK
BEREEFE60% 2MBRAT °

RZE-—R"FE+ZA=+—8 HEBEU
BITESRKRA1.00BTEZEAGRER T
1,000,000 B& IR0 - MREIE L4 (K&
EBZIHBEEEEMBES 2 )BT
FREES  ANEBRRBITHROUR
REEAEBIES  AEERTBEZ
REMO%BEETI30% » MAEERER
BHERPBEZ30% RIE - AEETF K
ERBEZEHE YHREAHPBES
BAFE - AEEBRFPBEZRESTH
PEAINBELAT 2 #ERE]-
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On 31 August 2017, the Group subscribed for 49
ordinary shares which represent 49% equity interests
in Elite Prosperous at a consideration of US$49. Elite
Prosperous is an investment holding company.

On 5 September 2017, the Group and the other
shareholder of Elite Prosperous, an independent
third party, as lenders entered into the shareholders’
loan agreement with Elite Prosperous as borrower.
Pursuant to the shareholders’ loan agreement,
the Group has agreed to provide a shareholder’s
loan in the amount of US$4,900,000, equivalent
to HK$38,421,000, to Elite Prosperous, being the
Group’s pro rata share of the shareholders’ loan in
the principal amount of US$10,000,000, equivalent
to HK$78,410,000, in aggregate to be provided
by all of the shareholders of Elite Prosperous.
The shareholders’ loan of US$10,000,000 is solely
for the purpose of financing Elite Prosperous’
operating and investment needs. The shareholders’
loan of US$10,000,000 is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. On the same
date, the Group made the shareholder’s loan of
US$4,900,000 to Elite Prosperous. The Group
classified the shareholder’s loan of US$4,900,000
to Elite Prosperous as “interests in associates”.
The maximum amount of the shareholder’s loan
outstanding to the Group during the year ended
31 December 2019 was HK$38,437,000 (2018:
HK$38,437,000).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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R=-Z—+tENB=+—HB '  2&£BU
X {493 Tt W B Elite Prosperous 249
BZER HERE49%RK FE - Elite
Prosperous & — R EZER AT ©

R-ZZ—+tFENABER  KNEEKElte
Prosperous 3 —ERR(—EB UL E=
7 )(fE B W & A ) EElite Prosperous
(EBBRATIRRERGZ - RiF
BRRERMZE AEEC B X [Elte

(#8214 38,421,000/8 ) 2B » BIH
A Elite Prosperous 28R FGIRM 2%
RERAE#% 510,000,000 % T (HE
778,410,000 % 7T ) 2 R LL I B R 25 ©
H%10,000,000E T2 BRRERETH
M2 Elite Prosperous 2 B2 RIREE
Z o t%10,000,000ET 2 REER S
E|IKF  REREREREE -BAR X
£ [ [@ Elite Prosperous 12 4,900,000
ERXTZ2BRRER . K&K @K @Elte
Prosperous 21 2 R R & 5% 4,900,000 &
RES R NBEELNRZER ] - BE-Z
—hE+ZA=1+—BLEFE » REHLE
SENRRERZ & AFKIEH 38,437,000
Bt (== — \F : 38,437,000/87T) °



(v  On 15 December 2011, the Group acquired 49%
of the issued share capital of Spark Concept at
a consideration of HK$49. Spark Concept is an
investment holding company and its principal
subsidiaries are principally engaged in catering.

On 9 August 2018, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement relating to the disposal
of 49% of issued share capital of Spark Concept
and the shareholder’s loan of HK$1,480,000 (net
of impairment loss) due by Spark Concept to an
individual who is a shareholder and director of Spark
Concept at a cash consideration of HK$3,000,000.
The disposal was completed on 9 August 2018
and the Group recognised a gain on disposal of an
associate of HK$1,520,000 in the “Other gains and
losses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

All of the associates are accounted for using
the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s material associates is set out below.
The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associates’
financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

(v R=ZT——F+=-A+HAB FEEURK
{84978 jt U #5 Spark Concept B 2 17
K 2 49% ° Spark Concepts — & E
ERAT MAZTZENBARETERSE
& o

RZE-NFENARLB AEBETLE
EnE HAREBEASEEURSKE
3,000,000 & jt [@ — & A& Spark Concept
BERRES 28 A & Spark Concept
B % 17T IR &R 249% K 1,480,00078 JT
Spark ConceptFEIBRERE R (HIRFEE
i)  HESEER=-ZE-N\ENAhH
B -  REBRGEEZRAIH AU
HREBIEERIALE—BHEQATANR
#= 1,520,00058 7T °

FEKE DA AGRE W B RREGE
PR

EEREQATRCMBERME

BREASEEZERE N U BERE
BEHEIRTX - LTHBERFRAE
REBBMBRELARR BELT
BRI EHE

China Healthwise BB £ A
2019
—E-hE
HK$’000
F#ET
Non-current assets IRBEE 53,852
Current assets REEE 544,575
Current liabilities REEE (263,578)
Non-current liabilities IR & (8,176)
KIERBIREBRAT
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China Healthwise (Continued) B T BE R (4E)
For the
period from
28 October
2019 to
31 December
2019
R=B-hF
+A=+NH
EZE-NF
+=A
=+—HHH
HK$’000
FET
Revenue for the period ZHE R = 37,156
Loss for the period AHEARE 18 (31,017)
Other comprehensive income for the period AE B E 2R E 10
Total comprehensive expense for the period AHBE2EARX (31,007)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial t@?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@éﬁﬂﬁiﬁ%ﬁqﬁﬁ
information to the carrying amount of the interest BRRZBE N E 2 BRREE 2R
in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
2019
—E-AF
HK$’000
FET
Net assets of China Healthwise FEESRERE2EEFE 326,673
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in  RNEBRATESEREESZ
China Healthwise FE S b 18.86%
The Group’s share of net assets of China AEERETEESERECEEFE
Healthwise 61,610
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REERTPEEERREZERZ
China Healthwise BREE 61,610
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Global Mastermind REAE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Non-current assets FRBEE 233,914 325,151
Current assets RBEE 684,626 506,608
Current liabilities RBAE (298,169) (84,326)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE (3,477) (77,128)
For the
period from
For the 29 June
year ended 2018 to
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE NZZ-N\EF
—ZE-h&E KRBAZT+hH
+=A EZZT-—)N\H
=+—H +=A
ItEE =+-—HHH
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue for the year/period REE HERE 75,640 36,341
Loss for the year/period REE HBEEER (54,593) (41,002)
Other comprehensive income for the — ZA&E[E HARIH 2 EUK
year/period 1,182 64,635
Total comprehensive (expense)/income ZAEE HEEZEHA (X)),
for the year/period g (53,411) 23,633
KERBRERRAT
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associates (Continued)

Global Mastermind (Continued) BRI ()
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial FB B ER M EELSS TR RE R
information to the carrying amount of the interest BRANZHE N 2 ERRABE 2R

in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net assets of Global Mastermind REKBzEEFE 616,894 670,305
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ AEBERBRRKBHEE 2
interest in Global Mastermind FE2S b 29.04% 29.04%
The Group’s share of net assets of AEBEERERBEZ
Global Mastermind EEFE 179,146 194,656
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRRBRABZESZZ
interest in Global Mastermind BREE 179,146 194,656
Aggregate information of associates that are WHBRAIEARZHE N TGEER

not individually material

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
The Group’s share of (loss)/profit and ZAEBELAEE (F51E),/
total comprehensive (expense)/income SHEFIRE2E(Bx), WA
for the year HEE] (25,332) 18,318
Aggregate carrying amounts of the AEERILEHE AR 2R
Group’s interests in these associates  Z#AEREE 31,395 56,727
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For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLLEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unrecognised share of loss of i RERELMFEAEE QT
associates for the year K518 - (2,184)
Cumulative unrecognised share of Rt B REREGEE A A
loss of associates 518 - (8,676)

Disposal of 49% ownership interest in Spark
Concept

On 9 August 2018, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement relating to the disposal
of 49% of issued share capital of Spark Concept
and the shareholder’s loan of HK$1,480,000 (net
of impairment loss) due by Spark Concept to an
individual who is a shareholder and a director
of Spark Concept at a cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000. The disposal was completed on
9 August 2018. This transaction resulted in the
recognition of a gain on disposal of an associate,
which is calculated as follows:

HE M Spark Concept 2 49% EHE#

EA NENBALB "EEFTX

Tﬁ CHABREBEAEEURE
ﬁ 1;2-‘;3,000,000,% 5T B — % 5 Spark
Concept RER KR EE 2 {8 A i & Spark
Concept B TR KX 249%E & &
1,480 000}%7_|:Spark Concept fE 1 B%
%ﬁ L(NBREEEE) HESEER
“E-N\ENARARER AR ZHE
%tﬂ%-FﬂHﬁ%@ﬂZﬂﬂ%‘ﬁ Hit&Em

For the
year ended
31 December
2018

BZE
—E-N\F
+=A
=+—H
IHFE
HK$’000
FET

Proceeds of disposal HEFTE
- J?EIMI F'ﬂﬂ““ PNCIES6| (1,480)
REEBH49% RE ZREE

Less: amount due from an associate
carrying amount of the 49% investment
on the date of disposal

3,000

Gain on disposal recognised 3

]

H & W i

1,620

KEH R EBRAT
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2019

—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loans to customers mEFRHEZER 991,718 1,174,998
Accrued interest receivables FEW FEST RIS 8,353 11,288
1,000,071 1,186,286
Less: accumulated allowance for B BEHEEEBRE
credit losses (22,021) (17,547)
978,050 1,168,739
All loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. FEEREUBAE BRERZE
The loan receivables carry effective interest BMERZNF 8% E15% (ZB—N\F :
ranging from 8% to 15% per annum (2018: 8% FRRB8H E15%) c RZE-—NERZ
to 15% per annum). A maturity profile of the loan E-NF+ZA=+—H &RIHBEE
receivables (net of accumulated allowance for PREBER(NBREGFEEHERSE)
credit losses) at 31 December 2019 and 2018, FIEAERIOT ¢

based on the maturity date is as follows:

2019 2018
—EF-NE ZF-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets REEE
Within one year —FR 497,516 815,718
Non-current assets FRBEE
More than one year but not exceeding —&F L E{ERBBME
two years 480,534 353,021
978,050 1,168,739
During the year ended 31 December 2019, an BE-Z-NAF+=ZAB=+—HL#F
allowance for credit losses on loan receivables E ERIAEKRERZCGEBER
of HK$4,474,000 was recognised (2018: & 54,474,000 (= T — N\ F:
HK$17,547,000). 17,547,000 JT) °
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: S wo loans in the
aggregate pr|nC|paI amounts of HK$125,000,000
are secured by corporate guarantees. At 31
December 2018, a loan in the principal amount
of HK$100,000,000 is secured by a corporate
guarantee.

Included in the carrying amount of loan
receivables at 31 December 2019 is an
accumulated allowance for credit losses of
HK$22,021,000 (2018: HK$17,547,000).

Details of impairment assessment of loan
receivables for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 are set out in note 50.

Movement in the accumulated allowance for
credit losses during the year is as follows:

-llcao-.oaosuat"a\"

ﬁé@%ﬁ%msoooooo,EEZE
DAEREEFB - RZE-—NE+= H
=+—H ' —%74£%%100,000,000

BT ZERA R REREES

E’\\‘:g nWNE+=ZB=+—-—H" E
WEXRREAERERFEEFER
1%3%22021000/% (== - N%F:

17,547,000 7T) °

BE-Z-NErR=-ZE-N\E+=A
=S+ —HALFE BRERZREFG
HEEMAKIEES0 ©

FREFCEEFEREBEZZBHNT ¢
For the year ended

31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
o S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEBT
At 1 January Wn—A—8 17,547 -
Allowance for credit losses recognised FREREEFIBRE
during the year 4,474 17,547
At 31 December R+t=—RA=+—H 22,021 17,547
INVENTORIES 26. &
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Raw materials R 10,139 11,465
Work-in-progress E®E 547 114
Finished goods SR m 25,829 25,892
36,515 37,471
Inventories are expected to be recovered within GFERBER—FRKE o
one year.
KIBREEREFRAT

“E-NFER
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HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FBT

Trade receivables B 5 EWFIE 40,009 33,063
Less: accumulated allowance for B B EEEERE

credit losses (145) (89)

39,864 32,974

The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables (net of accumulated allowance for
credit losses) at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice dates:

BZRZAMZIINBEHRR2EZ BN
REVRRFEEFERRB) 2RED
MWT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\EF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

0-30 days 0E30H 7,510 5,494
31-60 days 31Z60H 6,391 5,651
61-90 days 61£90H 6,852 5,669
91-120 days 91&120H 3,617 3,442
121-180 days 121 £180 H 9,084 5,757
Over 180 days 180 BEL E 6,410 6,961
39,864 32,974

The Group allows credit period ranging from 0 to
270 days to its customers. The directors assess
the credit status and impose credit limits for
customers in accordance with the Group’s credit
policy. The credit limits are closely monitored
and subject to periodic reviews.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an
allowance for credit losses on trade receivables
of HK$56,000 was recognised (2018: HK$89,000).

Included in the carrying amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2019 is an
accumulated allowance for credit losses of
HK$145,000 (2018: HK$89,000).

AEEAFOEEFRERBEZEEHMN T
0£270H - EERBEAKE ZFEHE
AEEFZEERRLBTEEMREA -
FERBEREEREFEIFERRE

BEZE—hIWE+ZA=+—HLE
E CERAEZFRRFEZCEEBEER
% 556,000 T (=& — JLHF : 89,000
BIT) o

R-ZFB-hNF+Z-A=+—RH BZE
WRERAESERFEEFEERESD
145,000% T (=& — /\ ¥ : 89,000%
JT) °
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fin assessment of trade
receivables for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 are set out in note 50.

Movement in the accumulated allowance for
credit losses during the year is as follows:

)

R H S A
ST i3 BB B R 50 -
FRRIEESAREZZHNT

Y

I ZEE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

At 1 January 89 -
Allowance for credit losses recognised FREREEEBRE

during the year 56 89

At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 145 89

. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

28. B#E ~ ANREREMERNKE

Prepayments
Other receivables

Hib WA

Less: accumulated allowance for credit & - E{hfEW1E > 25t
losses on other receivables

FEEERE

B DERFERBEEZ
FAFIE R H bR

Less: prepayments and other
receivables classified as
non-current assets

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

348 696
57,141 83,909
93,340 115,150
150,829 199,755
(23,890) (20,564)
126,939 179,191
(201) (50,104)
126,738 129,087
KIEREEIZREGRAR

“E-NFER
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At 31 December 2019, included in the other R-B—HAE+=-A=+—H8 st AEAth

e

Jiw
| ST =4

receivables are the loan to a director of certain EWREEEOARARE THE AR Z—
subsidiaries of the Company of RMB25,000,000 FEZFRMER AR 25,000,000 5T (18
(equivalent to HK$27,909,000) (2018: £ 27,909,000 B T)(ZE—NF : A
RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$28,532,000)), R 25,000,000 7t (18 % 428,532,000
for a term of 24 months commencing on 24 B)) BZE-NFENA=-+HTAMHE
August 2018 and the related interest receivable ML RE24EA REBEEWRRE SR A
of RMB798,000 (equivalent to HK$891,000) (2018: B % 798,000 7t (#8 2 7 891,000 7T )
RMB576,000 (equivalent to HK$658,000)). The (ZZ—N\F : AR%576,000 T (HER
key terms of the loan to a director are disclosed 658,000/ 7)) - MZEBRMENR 2E
in note 48. ERFAME 48 E
At 31 December 2019, an aggregate amount of RZB—-—hAE+=ZA=+—H ' &#
HK$201,000 (2018: HK$3,206,000) classified as 201,000% ;t (= & — J\ & : 3,206,000
non-current assets is prepayments relating to BRL)DERIRBDEE ZEBAY
property, plant and equipment. ¥ BERBEZEMNRK -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, an BE-_Z—hAE+=-BA=+—HIE
allowance for credit losses on other receivables E CREMERRERIAGEESE
of HK$3,842,000 (2018: HK$21,285,000) was B #%£3,842,000%8 (= & — N\ F:
recognised, of which HK$3,818,000 (2018: 21,285,000 7t ) + H #13,818,000 %
HK$21,120,000) is related to other receivables THEMERREEBR(ZZE—N\F:
and HK$24,000 (2018: HK$165,000) is related to 21,120,000 7t ) % 24,0008 T(=Z &
the loan to the director. — N\ 165,000 ) B O ZESIREM
EEE -
Details of impairment assessment of other BE-_Z-—NFR=ZFE-NF+=A
receivables for the years ended 31 December =E+—BLEFE  HitEWRIEZRE
2019 and 2018 are set out in note 50. FHEF B E N M EE 50 ©
Movement in the accumulated allowance for FREMEVREEFEEFBEREZ
credit losses on other receivables during the year EBEOT -

is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-ZA=+t—BHLHFE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\EF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January B—A—H 20,564 -
Allowance for credit losses recognised FRER 2 EEEFERE

during the year 3,842 21,285

Exchange alignment AR (516) (721)

At 31 December R+=B=+—H 23,890 20,564
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2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong  &iB EhRA®E 5 240,815 287,302

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong were
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The fair value of the listed equity
securities in Hong Kong were determined with
reference to quoted market closing price, except
for one of the listed equity securities, which have
been suspended from trading on the Exchange
since 27 November 2017, with a fair value of
HK$7,103,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$6,211,000). The fair value measurement
of the suspended listed equity securities was
classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
and was based on the valuation performed
by Graval Consulting Limited (“Graval”) an
independent firm of professional valuers, using
market approach.

NBERKR  BBLTRAFBHULQT
BffE - BEBLTREAZTHFZAFES
EZMEMIRUTERE HRZZE—H
F+=-A=+—HB2¥{EH7,103,000
BT(ZZE—N\F :6,211,000/87T) 2 &
F—ErFrTRAEHF(BEZZ—tF+—
BZ+tBERBXFEFEFT)RIM-
ESEASEIRLATESEHZ2EEF L
TRAEHFNAFEDNER-—BBILE
EGEMTHEECEBRAERAR(E
ENDERATSEETWEESE -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a BE-Z-NAF+ZHA=+—HBL#HF
loss arising on change in fair value of financial B BAFEFTABERZEMEED

assets at FVTPL of HK$80,487,000 (2018:
HK$296,211,000) was recognised in the “Other
gains and losses” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

%‘M{E@Ebéizgiaso 487,0007% 7T
— \ £ : 296,211,000 % 7T ) K &
é Ei‘aiwrﬁ{mu&%‘aﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁa R o

/\

KEH R EBRAT
—EREER
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HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 140,550 140,628

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States
dollar (“USD”) amounted to HK$4,910,000
(2018: HK$9,188,000) and HK$520,000 (2018:
HK$739,000) respectively.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Bank balances earn interests at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

For the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, the Group performed impairment
assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty
banks are insignificant and accordingly, no
allowance for credit losses is provided. Details of
impairment assessment of bank balances for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set
out in note 50.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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RBEERR AEEUAARBIAR
BOREXTERDFEZRERRE
ZEWD B 54,910,000 8 T(=F—N
% :9,188,00078 7t) & 520,000 & 7T (=
Z—J\F :739,00087T) °

ARBFAIEHAZBAHMER - R
i REPENIEERIRIREER
EERNEEERAE AEEEEER
ERERRIEXB 2BRTHARER
MAHMER -

RITEBFBRRBRITAFERANRTEZ
FEARETE - RITEREFRNEER
Y BTN B A RC 8% 2 SRAT o

BE-_Z-hWGFrR=-ZE-N\F+=ZA
=S+—BLEFE FNEEHETEHRE
TREFE ERAHFHRITELN
AREMI R ER AW EEHEEE
BERE BEZE-_Z-NERZZ-N\F
TZB=1+—HLEE  RITEHZR
B EE A M EE 50 ©
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s g ees e Number of shares S Char
B & HE (&N
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NFE ZEBE-NE ZE-hF ZE-NE
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FK T FET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 ~ SREE0.018 T
each (2018: HK$0.01 each) (ZZ—N\& : SREE
0.01BT)2ERR
Authorised: BEE
At 1 January and n—B—HRK
31 December +=A=+—H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBRITRHYE -
At 1 January and n—B—HRK
31 December +=A=+—H 3,819,606 3,819,606 38,196 38,196
TRADE PAYABLES 32. EZEMNRIE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade payables g5 ENRIE 5,510 3,593

The following is an aging analysis of trade

ERZAM2INBERR2ESZEN

payables at the end of the reporting period HEZEBRIFAOT :
presented based on the invoice dates:

2019 2018
—E-NE ZB-)\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FBT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 2,409 240
31 - 60 days 31£60H 336 344
61 - 90 days 61£90H 603 286
91 - 120 days 91£120H 750 484
Over 120 days 120 E 1,412 2,239
5,510 3,593

The average credit period on purchase of goods
and services is 120 days. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are settled within the credit time

frame.

BEEREBRBE2FEHEEEHAE120
Ho AEBEC B RE bR EEEEE
LERAMEEAZREREEREHEER

AE

KERBEIREFRAF
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2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deposits received eize 1,438 1,437
Accruals FEstE R 29,884 54,816
Other payables H b TR 120,787 167,515
152,109 223,768
Less: deposits received and other B DBRIERBEEZ
payables classified as 2R e R EMEN
non-current liabilities ;IE (53,561) (102,535)
98,548 121,233
34. BANK BORROWINGS 34. BITHEX
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Secured bank borrowings 2EARITER 155,720 157,201
Carrying amounts repayable: AEEZIREE
Within one year —FR 38,823 35,049
38,823 35,049
Carrying amounts that contain a EEREREEREKRN
repayable on demand clause (shown  {BAEEZREE
under current liabilities) but repayable: (;t ARBER) :
Within one year —F R 5,413 5,235
More than one year, but not —FLHEFBBME
exceeding two years 5,543 5,353
More than two years, but not MELLEEFTBBERE
exceeding five years 17,391 16,865
Over five years HEFEULE 88,550 94,699
116,897 122,152
155,720 157,201
Less: amounts shown under current B ETARBEEZFIE
liabilities (155,720) (157,201)

Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities

SFARRBREZFIR

208 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019



At 31_ Decembe

-
o ”ﬁ’-
I\ (Continuea
LB AETP S

r 2019, the Group had the

following bank borrowings:

(a)

a secured mortgage loan of HK$116,897,000
(2018: HK$122,152,000), which is interest
bearing at 1% per annum over one
month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) or 3% per annum below prime
rate quoted by the bank from time to time,
whichever is lower, secured by a first legal
charge over the Group’s buildings and
investment properties located in Hong
Kong with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$377,867,000 (2018: HK$402,177,000),
guaranteed by the Company and two wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, namely
K E Group Limited and Om Gem Limited,
and maturing on 18 September 2037;

a secured revolving term loan of
HK$20,000,000 (2018: HK$20,000,000),
which is interest bearing at HIBOR plus
2% per annum, secured by the first legal
charge over the Group’s buildings and
investment properties located in Hong
Kong with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$377,867,000 (2018: HK$402,177,000),
guaranteed by the Company and Om Gem
Limited, and maturing on 25 April 2020; and

a secured account payable financing of
HK$18,823,000 (2018: HK$15,049,000)
which is interest bearing at 2% per annum
over HIBOR, secured by the first legal
charge over the Group’s buildings and
investment properties located in Hong
Kong with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$377,867,000 (2018: HK$402,177,000),
guaranteed by the Company and Om Gem
Limited, and maturing within five months
commencing from January 2020 (2018: five
months commencing from January 2019).

As the secured mortgage loan contains a
repayable on demand clause, the entire
outstanding balance of the secured mortgage
loan was classified under current liabilities.

All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.
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BUTRITER

(a)

(c)

—%%116,897,00058 T (=& — N\
£ : 122,152,000 v ) 2 & & #
REBER DR—EBHEBRT
BXFE(EBBETEERED
MERR1%HBRITREFAR &
BEEANEFEFERNERI% (UBEE
BE)FE  UAEEREAEA
377,867,000 t(Z & — )\ & :
402,177,00058 ) 2 U R BB 22
FREBEVEZE—EZERITEIR
o mAAQAFRANTREEEM
BARMEBEEEER QTR OmM
Gem Limited) 2R » TR ZF
=tERA+TNBZE;

— %5 %20,000,0005& T(=ZZ — N\
£ :20,000,0008 L) 2 BIKIBE
BREHER  NRHBEBBRTEE
FWEMENME2%TE » UAEEF
BR T 418 A 377,867,000 8 T (=&
— N\ : 402,177,000 T) 2R
ERBZBTFRBREWMECE—ETE
R EEE  AAAT K Om Gem
Limited 2R R =BT
EMA-+HBIH; &

— % 518,823,000 8 T (=& — N\
£ :15,049,0008 T ) 2 B IK I IE
TRIBERBE > DRBEBRITEE
FEMERMR2%E - UEAEE
BRE 4218 4 377,867,000/8 T (=&
— N\ : 402,177,000 T ) 2R
EBC2BRFTFRBREYEZE—EE
HEREEE BAAFT K Om Gem
Limitedi2HiER - TR -ZEZZF
F-ARFREAR(ZZE—NEF:
?:E—ﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁéﬂiﬁlﬁ E
By o

HREERRBEREBSARERER
R AL EERARBEREZDRGE
BRIERBEE -

FRBRATIEFRII LB TEHE ©
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HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unsecured other borrowing IR E AR 200,000 200,000

At 31 December 2019, the unsecured other
borrowing of HK$200,000,000 is interest bearing
at 8% per annum, secured by (i) the post-dated
cheques drawn in favour of the finance company
for payment of the principal and the interests
stipulated under the loan agreement, and (i) a
personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
an executive director, and maturing on 29 May
2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement
with the finance company on 17 June 2019 to
extend the repayment date from 30 May 2019 to
29 May 2020. Save and except for the extension
of the repayment date, all terms and conditions
of loan agreement remain unchanged and
continue in full force and effect.

At 31 December 2018, the unsecured other
borrowing of HK$200,000,000 is interest bearing
at 8% per annum, secured by (i) the post-dated
cheques drawn in favour of the finance company
for the payment of the principal and the interests
stipulated under the loan agreement and (ii) a
personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
and maturing on 30 May 2019.

The unsecured other borrowing contains a
repayable on demand clause and is denominated
in Hong Kong dollar.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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R-ZZB-NAF+ZA=+—-HB WHE
% % 7 H {th 8 7 200,000,000 & T WL F
ME8%NE  MOXNERMBZHERET
RERMEMUZTHERARARRBEAZ
BE RNBRTESTFTHEELLEZ
BAEREERER AR _F_FFHA
“thBERE-

ZTE-AE+ZRAZ=Z+—-BLHF
 ARAR=F-AFXATLAR
BBABTL-—HHERHEERERA
BHRH_-_Z-NFEA=+HE-_ZT_%
FREA=1THE - RERENRA S
ERE 2B R RMEHERFTE
WHBABTRBAORER -

it

RZZ-NF+ZA=+—H8 EEKH
H i £ 5X 200,000,000 % 7T LA F F 2 8%
AR UONXNERBHEETAE RF
EMUZHBRARRBBBEAZHE
(HFEELEZBEARRERR - A
REZB-NFREA=+HEIH -

BRAHMERSAREREERAL
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Present value

Minimum  of minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BREHEE BREHE
B NRBRE
2019 2019
—E-hEF —ZE-hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEESRE
Within one year —FR 12,365 742
More than one year, but not —FU L ERBBRE
exceeding two years 12,512 932
More than two years, but not MENLERBBRF
exceeding five years 38,040 2,369
Over five years EELE 582,797 255,208
645,714 259,251
Less: future finance charge B RRBEER (386,463) -
Present value of lease liabilities HEEEHRE 259,251 259,251
Less: lease liabilities classified as B HERESEAERY
non-current liabilities =K (258,509)
Lease liabilities classified as current HEaEsEARBERE
liabilities 742
The lease liabilities are denominated in currencies HEEBUTHEBEIE :
set out below:
2019
—E-hE
HK$’000
FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 506
RMB AR 258,745
259,251

KERBERERRAT 231
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HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Secured notes EREE 299,841 299,611
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2018 R=-ZE—-NE—-A—H 299,398
Imputed interest on secured notes EREBZGHERNE 24,213
Interest paid and payable 2T REMSFE (24,000)
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-NF+ZHB=+—H
1 January 2019 kK_Z—h&F—HF—H 299,611
Imputed interest on secured notes EREBZMGERE 24,231
Interest paid and payable 2R REMRIR (24,001)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hFE+=ZA=+—H 299,841
On 25 August 2017, the Company issued the RZZB-—tFNAZ+EHB  KQFE
secured notes in the aggregate principal amount 178 & £ # %8 £300,000,0005%8 5T 2
of HK$300,000,000. The secured notes are EREE ZERZBUFFNERE% G
interest bearing at 8% per annum and payable B 8¥FIAHKEIS—R  UEAF
semi-annually in arrears, secured by a share 2EMBARTEHIEREEXEES
charge over 100% of the issued share capital in RAR(HXTZEEAEBEMRES
China Jiuhao Health Industry Group Limited, a iR 2 LERE)MN100% EBITRAZ
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the BB IERA IR _FFNA
principal assets of which are the operating rights “t+EHARHE-
in respect of the Club and the Subject Land, and
maturing on 25 August 2020.
The effective interest rate of the secured notes is BEREBZEBRFFNESR8.09% °
8.09% per annum.
The secured notes are denominated in Hong BREBUBITE-

Kong dollar.
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The Company has an option to repay the
outstanding principal amount of the secured
notes at any time before the maturity date. The
option is regarded as embedded derivatives in
the host contract. The directors assessed the
fair value of the option with reference to the
valuation performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited (“Grant Sherman”), an independent
firm of professional valuers, which assessed the
fair value of the option using the discounted
cash flow method and determined that the fair
value of the option was insignificant on initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the fair value of the option
was not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Under the secured notes, the Company
covenants with the noteholders that from the
issue date and for so long as any secured notes
are outstanding, (i) the Group will not create any
encumbrance upon the whole or any part of its
present or future undertaking, assets or revenue
of the Group to secure any present or future
indebtedness incurred or to secure any guarantee
or indemnity in respect of any guarantee or
indemnity in respect of (subject to the exceptions
as set out in the secured notes), and (ii) the
Company will ensure the consolidated tangible
net worth of the Group will not be less than
HK$1,300,000,000. The Company has complied
with the covenant throughout the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

Amount due to an associate is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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A& DETZEEFEEEE 2L
FE - 2t EmERBRERSRANMG
BERCLAVE UTETERERERDD
BARBEPRE 2 A FEMTEE -
Eit - WENGSHBHRRPERRR
BEEEEZAFE-

BREBERERE  AQFHEZEEEE AL
¥ BRTHERREMERZEDNE
EEHB \FEESETERERER
BRWEAE s EESIBRANZIREM
HArEREEESE  URESEMRER
HBREK RIS REFRA RELK 2R
FHERIF(ZEREEFEREER
) RN ARDAEBERAEBNGZEER
B EE T2 71,300,000,000% T °
KRB EREBEEZZE-NER=ZZT-N
F+-A=+—-BLHEBEFERETHE
B -

e — B E D RRA

A —EHEARAREREET 22
RABERERE -

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 39. Bt —BEENE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Mr. Lei Hong Wai THERE - 50,000

Amount due to a director is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

On 4 January 2019, the Group repaid the amount
due to a director of HK$50,000,000.

BN-—REFFRR/ERT RERE
BERMEE -

R-ZBE-NE—-—BANB  xEECZEE
FE{+— B EEFIE 50,000,00078 T °

KEHHREERAT
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; : : oTpresentatlon |n the
consolidated statement of financial position,
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances for financial reporting

BERRGAD % % 5
REERABG AR GH B
M= T BIELERIBREE S DA

purposes:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE 15,974 15,083
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBEEE (232,083) (239,843)
(216,109) (224,760)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets

UTATECRIBELHEEEREE

and liabilities recognised and movements RHEHZH
thereon:
Fair value  Amortisation
Revaluation adjustmenton  of operating Allowance
of investment acquisition of  lease/lease for credit
properties  subsidiaries contract losses Total
Bt WEWELR CEREEH EEEE
REME 2OVEHE /HEED B @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr TEr FEr TEr
At 1 January 2018 BW=E-N%-5-A (99,523) (254,485) 6,280 - (347,728)
Credited to consolidated REERERPHA
statement of profit or loss - 5,826 1,092 8,216 15,134
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42) ~ HEMBAT (Hi42) 98,675 - - - 98,675
Exchange alignment ERHE 848 8,816 (325) (180) 9,159
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1-H - (239,843) 7,047 8,036 (224,760)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated &GS BEESA /(1K)
statement of profit or loss - 5,605 (1,458) 744 4,891
Exchange alignment ERfEE - 2,155 1,717 (112) 3,760
At 31 December 2019 R=E2-nE+=A=1-HR - (232,083) 7,306 8,668 (216,109)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of HK$278,681,000 (2018:
HK$220,446,000) available for offsetting against
future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax
losses could be carried forward indefinitely
except for the tax losses arising in the PRC of
HK$105,367,000 (2018: HK$81,920,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits.
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R-ZE-NE+=ZA=+—H0 ' &~5H
BEARB B IEE E278,681,0008
(== — )\ : 220,446,000 7t ) 7]
HIKE R EAERBER - ANEEMLET
Elféz;i;ﬂ EM@%ME ;Eﬁﬁlﬁﬁ
P?ﬂ-rﬁ/‘q:'@?ﬁifﬁuﬁﬁ*m@%ﬁ/ﬁ
F =z %8 & 38 105,367,000 T (==
— J\H 181,920,000 7T ) AR K —
ZHERBHE -
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Statement of financial position of the (a) AT ZHMBEMRT
Company
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$7000 HK$'000
FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RIB AR 2= 2,831,433 2,806,069
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments B RIE 670 431
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEY 1,418 24,375
2,088 24,806
Total assets BEEHRE 2,833,521 2,830,875
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to KATAEE AEN
owners of the Company BRAR @
Share capital B 38,196 38,196
Reserves & 2,260,174 2,263,147
Total equity ESAE 2,298,370 2,301,343
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payable &R R H MRS RIE 21,313 15,924
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHT B A R RIE 13,997 13,997
Other borrowings HAibER 200,000 200,000
Secured notes EREE 299,841 -
535,151 229,921
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Secured notes EREE - 299,611
Total liabilities EEAE 535,151 529,532
Total equity and liabilities ERRaELE 2,833,521 2,830,875
Net current liabilities REBEETFE (533,063) (205,115)
Total assets less current liabilities EELABRABES 2,298,370 2,600,954
Signed on behalf of the board of directors REEFTEHE .
by:
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah Billy
ZIEE PR 2
Director Director
EE EE
KERBIREBRAT

B hEES
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(b) Reserve of the Company

(b) EATREE

Equity-
settled
share-
based
Share  Contributed payment Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
NREEE
2R
RiiaE BAER X ZitER @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEn FEn FEn FEn FEr
(Note a) (Note b)
(fita) (Hith)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-f-H 1,807,051 488,016 10,523 (38,616) 2,266,974
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AEEEER2EEX
expense for the year ek - - - (12,890) (12,890)
Recognition of equity-settied  BEARBLE 2 Rf
share-based payment TH# - - 9,063 - 9,063
Release on lapse of equity- NREEEZROEF
settled share-based ARERE
payment - - (10,523) 10,523 -
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-NE
1 January 2019 TZA=+-8kK
“Z-7E-f-H 1,807,051 488,016 9,063 (40,983) 2,263,147
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AEEEER2EEX
expense for the year ek - - - (2,973) (2,973)
Release on lapse of equity- NREEEZRAEF
settled share-based RYEEE
payment - - (9,063) 9,063 -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE
+=B=t-H 1,807,051 488,016 - (34,893) 2,260,174

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(b)

Reserve of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Contributed surplus represents the net amount
transferred from share capital and share
premium to retained profits pursuant to the
special resolutions passed at the special
general meetings held on 22 August 2003, 30
April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot
make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve
represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the
relevant share options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The
amount for each reporting period is determined
by spreading the fair value of the share options
over the relevant vesting periods (if any) and is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses
with a corresponding increase in equity-settled
share-based payment reserve.

(b) AT E)

wit :

(@)

(b)

ENBEBRERBR-Z2Z=F/NA
Zt+ZB-ZEENFWMA=TH
E—Z2-——5+ZA+-HETZ
RRFIAELBBZEHIRER
BRARBRODEEEREREEF
2 o

BEBRE-NAN-—FRXFE(EE
al) - BARERAHEDIK - A R
LR AAAFBEBARR
FAEHDIK : ()R 2B ERBRER
RN BREHEEINMEEEZE
B RMARRNEEZAEZRES
EmEREEE -

LIRS 2 IR1D R R 18 AR
B 55 B S 0 3R h AR R B IR A LUIR Y
RS EERB 2 AFE HEH
IREERERREABZAFE
AE - EREHEHNEBEE
RELAFEREBEEBH(WE)R
BoHEE UAWABEINARME
BRI  MURBEEE 2RO
G ERREIE D -

KERBEIREFRAF
“E-NFER
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Best Volume K& & [ /B 2 &

R-ZZE—tHE+-AFEB AEEHE
B8 & Best Volume 2 &2 2 1TIR A
F Best Volume& THB AR Z2EEH
EREETVERMEEEHRE B
{8 £ 405,000,000 - ZHESHEZ

Best Volume and its subsidiaries

On 5 December 2017, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement relating
to the disposal of the entire issued share capital
of Best Volume to Mr. Xie Zhaobin, a director of
certain subsidiaries of Best Volume, at a cash

238

consideration of HK$405,000,000. The disposal

was completed on 22 June 2018.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost

REZB-NFABZ+ZHZEMK°

KERFIRCEERBESH

HK$’000

FEBT

Investment properties (note 19) REMEBEE19) 571,107

Goodwill (note 22) EmE(hit22) 61,246

Trade receivables g 5 EWRIE 22,881

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% - 7B KR HAbFERFRIE 37,844

Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEZEEY 7,414
Deposits received, accruals and other gz E - EFTERARAEMEMARIR

payables (5,461)

Receipts in advance FE U IR (443)

Bank borrowings RITIERK (190,571)

Deferred tax liabilities (note 40) ELEBIBEE (M 40) (98,675)

Net assets disposed of EHEZERRE 405,342
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEME L Bl 2 EE

HK$’000

FET

Cash consideration received 2WRENRE 405,000

Net assets disposed of EHEEETFE (405,342)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal & Best Volume R E KB A B

of Best Volume and its subsidiaries B R ERE (10,651)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZEE (10,993)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELZRERAFE

HK$°000

FET

Cash consideration received 2WRENRE 405,000

Less: deposit received in December 2017 B ER=ZB—tF+-AlBEzEE (235,300)

cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHECRHERREEEY (7,414)

Net cash inflow BHERAFEH 162,286

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments

R R RN

04 3 s 8% 8 8 NNNIND »
3 0 0 8 48 SANYT

P
= /H E ~ ™
L T Sl -
N -
LS &
2 aw ™

[ L

= 7 Al

RBERR > AEB AU HELEEHE
EfAEz R RREEAENR 2B

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall MU -
due as follows:

2018
—2-N\#F
HK$’000
FHET
Within one year —FR 15,425
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERLF (BREEEWMSE) 54,394
Over five years "AEHE 631,630
701,449

Operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for its office premises and
the operating rights in respect of the Club and
the Subject Land. Leases in respect of the office
premises are mainly negotiated for an average
term of three years and rentals are fixed for an
average of three years. The Group does not have
an option to purchase the leased premises, the
Club and the Subject Land at the expiry of the
lease period.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from investment properties earned
during the year amounted to HK$5,095,000 (2018:
HK$15,023,000). All of the Group’s investment
properties are held for rental purposes. The
investment properties are expected to generate
rental yields of 3.20% (2018: 2.00%) on an
ongoing basis. The investment properties have
committed tenants for the next two years (2018:
three years).

KEHEYREARERERLIEYE
REBEMREIBMRICEEENGZ
HE - MAEWECHNTERE MR
BEHRH=F MESFHYB=F7]
TE o A 55 B 30 S 4% 50 A 20 I o B ) BB
BEHEEEREMR TR ZREE -

FEEESHBEA

FAREYERDRN 2B 2 WA
£5,095,000/8 (= & — N\ £F:
15,023,000/8 L) - fTEAEBZIRE
MEDRERERSZ - BHREWET
BEEE3.20% (ZF—/\F :2.00%)
ZHEWER REVERARWES
EEAFERF(ZE—N\E . =F) -

KEH R EBRAT
—EREER

239



' :
J P3P e 00N
’ S I T IR SR T N S
!”;;s-ﬁﬂl!lll_:... ” w ™ e
'_"l' ) 8 we % =S| L (4E)

3 (Contir ' P
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RI|EHR > AEERTAHELEHE
contracted with tenants for the following future ETHMm T BERREBAE (T FREREA
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AR BEEESERAOT
operating leases which fall due as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —Z2-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 5,095 5,095
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_RERF
(BIEEREME) 1,600 6,695
6,695 11,790
44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, EREISE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REBEHR AEEEUTETHNEL
the following capital commitments which were R 2 B ATRIE o
contracted but not provided for.
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Capital expenditures for the Subject Land Tl > EAH X 26,854 25,283
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders on 12 December 2011, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Option Scheme”) to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 21 January 2002. The
Option Scheme will expire on 11 December 2021.
The purpose of the Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Under the Option Scheme, eligible participants
are full time or part time employees of the Group
(including any directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not,
of the Company or any subsidiary); any holder
of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers,
licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any
sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group.

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the above
overall limit, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”).
Share options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Option Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The Company may refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit subject to approval of the
shareholders in general meeting, provided that
the Scheme Mandate Limit as refreshed must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the refreshed limit.

BRERRNR=-ZE——F+=-B+=HBHE
BrEBRER XQABARMH—EHFE
REFTE(BRESTS D) URRAR=
EE_F-A-+-BEMNZBEREST
o -BREFISHR=-ZE=-_—%F1+=A
+—HER - BREFEEESEAAT
AREECEERSHEHERHBRE -
EEBSEHAEB EMBEEE/MZ
BRI o

RIBBRETE  SERSRER/ARE
BBy RBES (BERQXAHEM
MEBRARZEMES  TWIATHEY
T RIBREBYL) ;. AEB#HT
FAEZ2EMFEA RAKE 2
AEBREERHF - ABH - REHIRK
* > EER - HEA HEF RAEBH
REA-FFP EREABEEMER
EREAN)HBRITH  XEREF(BHE
FAOEEF)  RESSEEMBRE
SR AREHAEEFELRERMZEFMA
+ o

ROFERBEEREFTERAQIAEME
R ETEREMERTEZREE
BREZAFHT2ROBEEE LR
TEBBRAREHEITRM230% - £ L
MEEBRIEAERT RITERBER
FERT BN AR D BT o] E b B AR AE ST E1S
FRECFEERERAFHITZRG
M SHAESEBBERETEELE
ERECRITRHZ210% ([sHEZER
) o NETEFTEIRERER  CHRIE
BRETECBGRARZBRES T
EERN - HERREASLERRAER
AKANB O EHHEREREE  HEHE
ZETEIREREISEBEHIREREHR
HEEHEBITRMAZ10% °

KEHHREERAT
B hEES
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Unless approved by the shareholders in the
manner set out below, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant
(including both exercised and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue. Where any further grant
of share options to an eligible participant would
result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all share options granted
and to be granted to such eligible participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the shares
in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders in general meeting
with such eligible participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or an independent non-executive director, or
their respective associates, would result in the
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all share options already granted and to be
granted (including share options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant: (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options must be approved by the shareholders
at a general meeting, with voting to be taken by
way of a poll.

An offer for the grant of share options shall
remain open for acceptance for a period of 30
days from the date upon which it is made. A
non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00
is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of
an offer for the grant of share options. Share
options may be exercised in whole or in part at
any time during the period to be determined and
identified by the board of directors, but in any
event no later than 10 years from the date of
grant but subject to the early termination of the
Option Scheme.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

BRIELLT G N ERRALE - BRIEM
12EAHMER  BEAERSEENT
EERTcBREBECSTERERTT
EzBERB)REBITRETERITZRG
R THEBESRTRGZ1% ° fd
MEERSEEE-IRHBRELS
FNBEE-IRHUBREER (BFZ
A)E12@BHEA > RITEERTR
BRTZEERSREEBRE(E
FEOATE - EERERITEZBRE)R
BBROTEBTFRTZRONGHABBE #
TR Z1% > AE-—SREZEBRE
AEBRRRBRRRS LR E  ZEER
SHRERABBAARRRE -

WMEAABDEERR(ERRE LMHRL)
RBUFHTESIHESEZHEA
TREFMBERESERNBERLEE
RESERA(BFEZA)E12@ABER
ROTEERERSFREZMEBRE
(BECTE - FTHERERTEZEBR
B)BEBITRETFRITZRG  ()&H
BBERTROVLH Z201% ;0 K(i)&
BOREREBRZBHETE  £E
# 385,000,000 T » A& — SR HZ
ZEEREAERRIRRBRASLURE
RARF AR -

HEBREZENANMELHEN A B
SOR MMM AT BT M- AR
ARBERFRREBREZZNFAEN
1.00B T2 AR RERRNE - BRE
TRESSEEREE 2 HEAMER2
WA DT - BERNMTNEERER
HAEMES 5 EXBRESIRER
AL PRARER ©



S 5
4 r - 23

=

board of directors at its sole discretion, provided
that it shall be not less than the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the shares as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Exchange on the offer
date; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares on the offer date.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company
has not adopted any share option scheme other
than the Option Scheme.

Details of specific categories of share options are
as follows:

Oceataamw‘-"-"""
3 86 8 848 % %NY
S e 0 88 s e 8 8 WA BN

THRERESSUHABE-HERESE
BRABERUT=ZEZESE : ()RHD
RENAHEBIMEARERFTZ
WHE: ()RORBEZLHN A AE
EXAEBMXSARERARZFS
WHE K (i) RORENBHZHE -

RZE-HhhERZE-NE+ =8
=+—8 AQAFLERMKBRBRES
ZISN AT BB AR AR T o

BEERBREZFBOT

Share
option type  Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
BREERN RHBES T8 1B
2017 27 April 2017 27 April 2017 to 26 April 2018 HK$0.202
“E-tFMNAZTtEH ZE-tFONAZTtHZE 0.202 7T
—E-NFNA=+RAH
2018 27 April 2018 27 April 2018 to 26 April 2019 HK$0.185
ZE-N\FONAZtEH ZE-NFONAZtLHZE 0.185/8 7T
ZE-NFMAZ+KH
KIERKIRERRAT

“E-NFER

243



[ A SO B R T

P PP

B = i —— 3 : -
The foIIowmg table dlscloses movements of TRFEEZEE - {EE&EEFﬁEAﬂEWFﬁﬁ
the Company’s share options held by directors, RATEREZEZE :

employees and consultants during the year:

Number of share options

EREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Share 1 January during during during 31 December
option type 2019 the year the year the year 2019
RZE-NF RZB-0E
—A—H ) t=A=t-H
BREER R AT R RERRH RERTE REREXR i RAT 6
2018 316,920,000 - - (316,920,000) -
Exercisable at the end of the reporting
period
iﬁ HRATFTE -
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.185 - - HK$0.185 -
MEFITEE 0.185 7 - - 0.18538 7 -
Number of share options
EREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Share 1 January during during during 31 December
option type 201 8 the year the year the year 2018
R=% )\ﬁF RZB-N\F
‘ —-H-H ~ . TZA=t —fA
BREER hﬂiﬁﬁ REREH RERTR REREN e RATEE
2017 321,600,000 - - (321,600,000) -
2018 - 316,920,000 - - 316,920,000
321,600,000 316,920,000 - (321,600,000) 316,920,000
Exercisable at the end of the reporting
period
RBERRTFITE 316,920,000
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.202 HK$0.185 - HK$0.202 HK$0.185
MEFITEE 02027 01857 - 0.202 87T 0.185%8 7
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
share options were granted.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
316,920,000 share options were granted on
27 April 2018. The estimated fair value of the
share options granted on the date of grant was
HK$9,063,000, which had been expensed as
equity-settled share-based payment expenses.

The fair values of the share options for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were calculated by
Grant Sherman using a binomial option pricing
model. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

\\\‘ \\\\""\

BE-®-hE+-A=+-ALE
B LIS B B

BZEZ-Z-\F+ZA=+—HLHF
E BERZIZE-—NEFENAZ+LtARH
316,920,00017 BB BR # - IR B B HIR
o2 B2 A5 A F{E 59,063,000
giyaﬂwu&%%§2&ﬁ§%ﬁ

BE-—Z-N\E+t-F=t+—-RALEE
BB AT E T E R RA - ER
REERERGE - FRBIERFAS
ABE -

Share option type

R EER
2018 2017
—E-)\F —E-tF
Share option life 1 year 1 year
R 14 16
Grant date share price HK$0.185 HK$0.202
R BEHRE 0.18578 7T 0.202& 7T
Exercise price HK$0.185 HK$0.202
TEE 0.1858 T 0.202 % 7T
Expected volatility (%) 40.65% 44.47%
TE R 0 (%)
Expected life of share options 1 year 1 year
BB IR R < T8 HA 5 1P 145 16
Dividend yield (%) 0% 0%
B B 2R (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.945% 1.104%

EREBFR (%)

Expected volatility was determined by using
historical volatility of the Company’s share prices
over the previous one year.

BHMEBEBLDANARRABE-—F2RE
ZELRIBEE °

KERBEIREFRAF
“E-NFER
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46.

The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are
based on the directors’ best estimate. The value
of a share option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

For equity-settled share-based payments with
parties other than employees, the Group has
rebutted the presumption that the fair values of
the services received can be estimated reliably
as in the opinion of the directors, the fair value
of the services received cannot be reliably
measured. Accordingly, the Group measured
the services received from these parties, with
reference to the fair values of the share options
granted using the binomial option pricing model,
at the date of grant.

At 31 December 2019, the Company had no
share options outstanding.

At 31 December 2018, the Company had
316,920,000 share options outstanding,
representing 8.30% of the issued share capital of
the Company at that date.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
set up a defined contribution retirement scheme,
the MPF Scheme for all the eligible employees of
the Group. The Group did not provide retirement
benefits for its employees prior to set up of the
MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contribution”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the Mandatory
Contribution upon their retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government is made the
specified contributions under the schemes. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.
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FTEEREZATEMAZCEHRRK
DUBEEsRERATEEE - BREZ
BEEERTFETIERR 2B EMTE
HAREZEE -
MEEUN BB 2BERURELE
ZBERHBZTRME  BRESIRAEFER
B AFELKRETSEHITE  NEE
CHEBFTERE 2 A FERET S5
ZBRE B AEBRRHBEH 2
BEA_BAHAECEEXNSHZER
m%k%26$ﬁ’ﬁ§m%%ﬁﬁﬁ
BB 2R -
RZIE-NE+ZB=+—H  &x2F
b 5 B IR R 1S R AT
RZB-—NFE+=ZA=+—B ' &2 T
316,920,000 17 [# K 17 {5 = B AR #E
AR TE BB EITRAS.30%

46. EIRBRIGTE
H-ZEZEF+-HA—BE xEEA
FEAEREERY —EBERATHITENK
T8 — BELFE c NRYBESE
%-$%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁéhf&ﬂ EIKE
|| o
RERBESTE EEHERERAEFZ
5% (LS EEERZ1,5008TER)/E
B W REEHBEMR - EE
BRAZHAREEERHF 25% (UK
1,500 8 T BR)FTE(M@EHEHIK])
BEURGSmENR it FTE2RET

YERE N By 2 BUEBUGRFIMEHERK -

AEER P ENE AT 2B B S E
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BAZES - BIEZZEKER B
HEEER AR EEY S B2 —
B o RRREER BRI o



vas AN
PRV S T T T T -
3 B T T R T T
LS % ALY /
’"u.oaao-.oaootal".\:“‘
Il”'

£ oo e o8 00!

ubsidiaries at 31

December 2019 are set out as follows:

S 5

S EZﬁFﬁﬂWT

Class of Proportion of
Country/place of  shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ML KERG/ ARRBEZRERER CRORMERE/
MEARERE feEvEAR /4% AREAEH RBREELA ERE TEXH
2019 2018
ZE-nE ZB-N\E
% %
Adelio Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
EBRZEES &E 1%7 RERR
Angel Wish Group Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ERRZES LE 1£% REER
Bayhood No. 9 Co* The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB50,000,000 Provision of recreational
LA HE i AR®50,000,0007  and wellness
services through the
management of a
membership-based
_ golf club and resort
BRERERHREAR
SRR AR
ERRRERS
Best Season Holdings Corp.  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 75 75 US$100 Dormant
EBRZES LE 100% 7 TEEx
Bluelagoon Investment British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 USS$1 Dormant
Holdings Limited RBRLEE Gl 1% mEX
China Jiuhao Health Industry Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Group Limited 5B il 1B REER
PRI REEXEE
BRAR
Eternity Finance Group British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 HK$100,000,000 Investment holding
Limited ABRLHE e 100,000,000  RELR
KEMBEEBRAR
Gainful Fortune Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 99.99 99.99 HK$160,000,100 Dormant
ABRLES i 160,000,100  EfEgx
Golden Stone Management  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited EBRLHS LE (EY REZR
Hong Kong Builders Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$2 Money lending
Finance Limited % Gl 2B BE&
BEBBERLA
K E G Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
EBRZES LR 1%7 REER
K E Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000 Design and sale of
BEESEERAF HE L@ 10,0008 7T jewelry products
Rt REEREER
KIERKIRERRAT

—s-hEFy oV
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Class of Proportion of
Country/place of  shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operqtion capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
B3P BERR/ RRAREZRERRER ERTRBERE/
MEAR LR ggzER /%  IRREER REFELA LTS IERH
2019 2018
ZE-nE ZB-N\F
% %
Legend Rich Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 USS1 Investment holding
ABRZEE LE S REZR
Max Winner Investments Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Property holdings
Limited B 2B 187 SLRIES
AEREBRAR
New Cove Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLES L& (E REER
Om Gem Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000 Design and sale of
BA e 10,0007 jewelry products
Rt RHEREER
One Synergy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
&8 LE 187 REZR
Open Heart Investments British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited EBELRS &8 1%% REER
Rexdale Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000,000 Property holdings
3 5B 100000007 BAENE
Riche Advertising Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
ABRLES LB 1%% HESRER
Riche (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1,000 Investment holding
ABRLES L& 1,000%7 REER
Riche Distribution Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000 Dormant
EXBTERAT B i 1,000,000 &7t ES 3
Riche Multi-Media Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$2 Dormant
EXSERERAT B HE 28T gEeX
Riche Pictures Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
EBRZES LE 1%% REER
Simple View Investment British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
Limited ABRLES ZE 1%% HESHER
Smart Field Management Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Limited B LB 187 REER
Smart Sphinx Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRAES LE (E RERR

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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Class of Proportion of

Country/place of  shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
R BERG/  KDARAZEARRER ERARBRERE/
MEARER feEvER/H%  AREAEH RBREELS R A TEXH
2019 2018
ZB-NF ZEB-N\F
% %
Smart Title British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
EBELRS 5E EF REER
Stable Income Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000 Dormant
BHEERAR ) LB 1,000,000 & 1T gmes
Victory Peace Holdings British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
Limited ABRLES LE 3 HESRER
Yuan Shun Investments British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
_ Limited ABRLHE £E 1X7 RALR
TEREBRAT
MgaesE () B8OULER  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMBS,657,085 Investment holding
ATl HE atfft AR®6,657,0851 RERR
BOBERULBER(XR)ER The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB100,000 Investment holding
NEe P a1t AR¥1000007  REZR
LTRERBENEERER  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB10,000,000  Provision of property
AR HE i AR#10,000,0007  management
services
RENTERRYE
TR HEEERERAFA  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB10,000,000  Leasing of properties
HE af ARH10,0000007 MERE
EREHEBRERAF  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
HE i AR¥10,000,000c REZR
ERBRERERAT  The PRC Registered 70 70 RMB10,000,000  Managing and operating
("B )e HE Bl AK#10,000,0007c  cultural forum and
related cultural
activities ~
ERREE UL HERAE
LEE

KB ERAERAT
B
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2 ‘Iiited Iiability company :(‘s‘olely invested by Taiwan,

Hong Kong or Macao legal person) established in the
PRC.
W limited liability company (solely invested by legal

person) established in the PRC.

B limited liability company (solely invested by foreign
owned enterprise) established in the PRC.

@ other limited liability company established in the
PRC.

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche
(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year or during the
year.

The directors consider that Best Season Holdings
Corp., Gainful Fortune Limited and #t B, the
non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests, are not material to the
Group. Accordingly, the financial information of
Best Season Holdings Corp., Gainful Fortune
Limited and ##5t is not separately presented in
the consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

BE) °

P RPBERIZBEREEARCEABE) °

& RPBERI2EREEARNOINERER
EBE) -

@ RAPBERL 2HMEREEAT -

AN T EHEFERiche (BVI) Limited 2
EE%FEﬁEMWEQEEEZFGEE

BEMBARNCRFERIFRETEM
BEHES -

F =R 5 Best Season Holdings Corp. *
Gainful Fortune Limited ] 15t (5 #
BEERERZIFTEMNB LR )HA
SEMELIFEK - EtBest Season
Holdings Corp. > Gainful Fortune
Limited & 125t 2 Bt 5 E R W BN AERE
BB RPDEZ5 -
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During the yéars ended 31 December 2019 REBE=-ZF— J'LEIEBZ g—)\fﬁ-l- A

and 2018, the Group entered into the following ET—BLEE > REBEHEEEALT
transactions with related parties: SUTRS -
(a) Transactions with associates (a) EBMEQARAZRS
Loans to/(from) associates EIBE LGRS (KREBENT)
ZE&
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Amount due from an associate W — B EE A R FIE
(note 24) (H1aF24) 38,437 38,437
Amount due to an associate Bt — B E A RRIE
(note 38) (H1a#38) (1,967) —
The loans to/(from) associates do not AEBFHKSATEM(REE
constitute connected transactions as defined EBANF)ERIAEBR ETHEA
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. %14A§-FEE§ZB§@£% °
Expenses paid/payable to and income Eft ENBELAGTHREK "
received/receivable from associates FEWHE L Gk A

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-ZA=+t—BHLHFE

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Brokerage and related expenses e — R A F
paid/payable to an associate KL kiEERX 149 10
Rental income received/receivable B UK FEUREEE A T
from associates HEWA 3,335 1,492
The above transactions do not constitute EMR G B LR A 14A
connected transactions as defined in EEEZEERLS

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

KERBERERRAT 251
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(b) ‘ompenstion for ey management (b) IE’E“EAEEH

personnel

The remuneration of executive directors
and the chief executive officer, who are
key management, during the year was as

FR BTEERTHRARRE
EEBAR)ZMEWT :

follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+=-B=1+—HLEE
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZE-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Short-term benefits SEHAE A 26,260 45,890
Post-employment benefits BB EEA 72 72
Equity-settled share-based payments AR 45 & 2 IR X % - 1,419
26,332 47,381

Total remuneration is included in “staff
costs” (see note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements).

The remuneration of executive directors and
the chief executive officer is approved by the
board of directors on the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee having
regard to the duties and responsibilities of
individuals and market trends.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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(c) BARRZEERIERRZRS

(c) Transactions with the directors and
substantial shareholders of the Company

() On 11 July 2018, a cash advance of i) R=FE—NELtA+—8"

HK$60,000,000 was made by Twin
Success International Limited (“Twin
Success”), a substantial shareholder
of the Company which is beneficially
owned as to 50% by Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
as to 25% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton and as to 25% by Mr. Cheung
Kwok Fan, to the Group for financing
its short-term funding needs. Each of
Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan
is an executive director. The cash
advance was non-interest bearing and
unsecured. On 6 August 2018, the
Group repaid the cash advance to Twin
Success.

On 19 July 2018, Twin Success made
a cash advance of HK$48,000,000 to
the Group for financing its short-term
funding needs. The cash advance was
non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 24 July 2018, the Group repaid the
cash advance to Twin Success.

On 19 October 2018, Twin
Success made a cash advance of
HK$25,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 5 December
2018, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Twin Success.

On 14 November 2018, Mr. Lei
Hong Wai made a cash advance
of HK$10,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 5 December
2018, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

Twin Success International
Limited ([ Twin Success ]’
ARABEERRE  HETHEEL
4 REEEEREREE L
DTHRHEBEZEBES0% 25% K
B ER)FHEH2ERESE
ERHAESMEAEEFESH
60,000,0008 T & B K -
FHELE  RERELERE
EEtEEEAHMTES - B
SERARERERIT - R=
ESE-NENAARH ZXEEE
@ Twin Successf&iEZR &R

=
Ko

RZZE-NFtLtA+AHBE-
Twin Successii 4~ &£ B =
EHESEERMESMMO
H & 1H48,000,0008 Tt ;]
EHH -BELERARER
EEF - R=_2F—-N\F+LA
Z+MAE AEBECE [ Twin
SuccessfBEBE S °

RZE-NE+A+hNA
Twin Successit & &£ B =
EHESEERMESMO
H {£ H25,000,000%8 T &
SHFR -BEELBRARER
EEF - RZB-NF+=
BREH A&EBEE @Twin
SuccessBBE S o

R-ZB-NF+-A+@HA -
FHELERAEEH Z2EHE
cEBRRHEESMOEHEER
10,000,000 ;TR & B K -
REBRAREREBER - R
—ZE-N\F+-AAR XK
BERFHELLEEERES

=
Koo

KEHHREERAT
B hEES
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(c) Transactions with the directors and
substantial shareholders of the Company
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

On 29 November 2018, Mr. Lei Hong
Wai provided a personal guarantee
to secure the Company’s repayment
obligations under the loan of
HK$200,000,000 granted by the finance
company to the Company maturing
on 30 May 2019. No consideration
was paid by the Company to Mr. Lei
Hong Wai for the provision of personal
guarantee. No security over the assets
of the Group was provided for the
personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei
Hong Wai.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
provision of personal guarantee by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai remains in full force and
effect.

On 24 December 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
made a cash advance of HK$50,000,000
to the Group for financing its short-term
funding needs. The cash advance was
non-interest bearing and unsecured. On 4
January 2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding
balance of the cash advance is
HK$50,000,000, which is presented in
the “Amount due to a director” line item
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

On 30 January 2019, Mr. Lei Hong
Wai made a cash advance of
HK$25,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 7 March
2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

(c) BARAFAZEERIERRZRS

(&)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

L

RZE-NE+—-B=+h
B ZHELERDEQTG
XA AR 2 200,000,000 58
TR-ZZE-NEHREA=1+HE
HeERZERETRERBEA
EBR - AATHEREHEA
BEROZHELESILSKRE
THBUNEBEE(EASTH
f%i%ﬁ%@k%ﬁ%ﬁ
$ o

RZE-NERZZE-NEF
+ZA=+—8 THELE
REZEAERESTERN
RIER -

RZE-NF+ZA=+M@
B ZHELEAEREAEEZ
EHESEERMESMO
H 4F #50,000,000% T I &
BH - HMEBR AR REK
e RZE—NFE—HFWNA -
AEBCRZHELEEER
S8 o

R-ZE-NFE+ZA=+—
B kEERSBREHRSB
50,000,000 7T+ HE R A
FEMBMRARAIENS—B
EENE|ER -

RZZE-NF—B=+H8 =%
BREAERAEEZRBES
%= Zm @ H E 25,000,000
BLESBR BHEBRAR
EREEE RIE-—NE=
BtH AEBECRZTHEEL
EEBRESBR -
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(c) Transactions with the directors and
substantial shareholders of the Company
(Continued)

(d)

(viii) On 15 February 2019, Twin Success

(ix)

made a cash advance of HK$7,200,000
to the Group for financing its short-term
funding needs. The cash advance was
non-interest bearing and unsecured. On
28 February 2019, the Group repaid the
cash advance to Twin Success.

On 17 October 2019, Mr. Lei Hong
Wai made a cash advance of
HK$20,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 29 October
2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

All of the above transactions also constitute
connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
these transactions are fully exempt from
the connected transaction requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules under Rule
14A.90.

Transactions with the directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company

(i)

On 5 December 2017, Golden Stone
Management Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company,
as vendor entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with
Mr. Xie Zhaobin, a director of certain
subsidiaries of Best Volume, as
purchaser relating to the sale and
purchase of 100% of the issued
share capital of Best Volume. The
consideration was determined after
arm’s length negotiations between
the parties to the conditional sale and
purchase agreement with reference
to the unaudited consolidated net
asset value of Best Volume and its
subsidiaries, the carrying amount
of goodwill on acquisition of Best
Volume and the fair value of the
investment properties located in the
PRC at 30 June 2017. Upon signing
the conditional sale and purchase
agreement, Mr. Xie Zhaobin paid a
refundable deposit of HK$235,300,000
to Golden Stone Management Limited.

n == J_F

(c)

(d)

%’A‘EZE$&IEB§§Z?&%

(vii) A= ZE—-—NAF=-B+EHAB >
Twin Successi 4~ & B =
EHESEEmMOEMAER
7,200,000 8 TR SEF - B
SBRAEREREIRT - K=
Z-AFE-ZBA=+N\H K&
B [ Twin SuccessfEER
S8 o

(ix) R=F—HAE+A+tH ZF
BEAERAKEZEHES
%= Z m @ H 4F H 20,000,000
BTHESAR -BREBRAR
EREERF -R-_T—NF+
AZ+hA AEBE@ZE
BEEEBRSB -

FrELMRGIER ETHHELE
UAZEFIERZCHERS - R
ZERGEZEHREBET LHRA
E14AZFE14A0MKE T 2B E
RFZIETE °

BEAQFAMBARZESEZRS

i) MR=-ZZE—+tHE+=-HEHH:
Golden Stone Management
Limited (R AR 22 &K B
AFEERAEF)HEFER T
4 (Best Volume®& T Ht B 2
AZESE EFAER)EIVE
RHEEEHZE ARBEREE
Best Volume 2 100% & 31T
B RELEHREEEH
BANADFLEFREE It
£ %% Best Volume R EHHK B
NEIR=ZE—+tFEXA=1TH
CABEZRGEEEFEH WK
B# Best Volume 2 & 2 RE
BRUNRFPEZERENEZA
THE RITLEKRHEEHZ
% B EEE % £ T [ Golden
Stone Management Limited
3 14 235,300,00038 7T 2 A F
BEBES -

KEHHREERAT
B hEES
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(d) Transactions with the directors of the

subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

As two of the relevant applicable
percentage ratios (calculated in
accordance with the Listing Rules) in
respect of the sale and purchase of
100% issued share capital of Best
Volume are more than 25% but all
ratios were less than 75%, the sale and
purchase of 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Volume constituted a
major transaction for the Company
and was subject to the announcement,
circular and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

As Mr. Xie Zhaobin was a director of
several subsidiaries of Best Volume,
Mr. Xie was a connected person at
the subsidiary level of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Therefore, the sale and purchase of
100% of the issued share capital
of Best Volume also constituted a
connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Board had approved the conditional
sale and purchase agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.
In addition, the directors (including
all the independent non-executive
directors) had confirmed that the terms
of the conditional sale and purchase
agreement were fair and reasonable,
the transactions contemplated
thereunder were on normal commercial
terms and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as
a whole. Accordingly, the sale and
purchase of 100% issued share
capital of Best Volume was exempt
from independent financial advice and
independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the
Listing Rules.

The sale and purchase of 100% issued
share capital of Best Volume was
approved by the shareholders on 27
February 2018 and completed on 22
June 2018.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(d) REAFMBLARAZEEZRS

(&)

AR B E = Best Volume 2
100% 2 #ITRA 2 E P RIE
HEERAR SRR LT
HAGTESE) BB 25% B1K
R75% B & Best Volume
2 100% B #ITRABREALD
AEERS  BABFLEHH
BSE4ZEBEBT 2 BH
RBRERHAEZRE -

B RS 2R % £ ABest
VolumeZ B i B & 8 2 &
ERBELTRAEI4AE
HTIHEERERRBNEB QA
BEEz2BEEALT - At R
BLEHRAFEMAZEETE
& Best Volume 2 100% &
BITHRATEBRADNR ZHEE
x5 EESCHERKREE
EMEREBETERETZR
Sk EB(BEMER
VHEHATESR)CEIABGY
EEMBEZ2ERBLATSE
HETHRETZRBREER
EERFEILURFEARRAR
BRzEEMNZ - At B
E Best Volume 2 100% & 2
TRAEHREET EHRBE
14A 10T IRIE T 2B LK E
BRBIRERMEZHETE °

B & Best Volume Z2100% &
BITRAER=_Z—-NEZA
“t+tEtHERRHLERRKRZ-ZE
—NERAZ+ZHERK °
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(d) Transactions with the directors of the (d) BEXATMBRARAZEEZEZRS
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued) (#&)

(i) On 20 August 2018, Bayhood No. 9 Co. (i) A=ZFE—-NENA=1+H 1

as lender entered into a loan agreement
with Mr. Guan Jialin, a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group, as
borrower, and Ms. Hao Yuhui, the
spouse of Mr. Guan Jialin, as guarantor
relating to grant a loan in the principal
amount of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$28,532,000) to Mr. Guan Jialin
for a term of 24 months commencing
from 24 August 2018. The loan is
interest bearing at 9.00% per annum,
secured by a real estate mortgage over
a residential property located in Beijing,
the PRC owned by Ms. Hao Yuhui (the
“Property”) and maturing on 23 August
2020. The terms of the loan agreement
were negotiated on an arm’s length
basis between Bayhood No. 9 Co. and
Mr. Guan Jialin with reference to terms
and conditions of the loan agreements
entered into between the Group and its
money lending customers.

On 20 September 2018, Bayhood No.
9 Co., Mr. Guan Jialin and Ms. Hao
Yuhui entered into a supplemental
agreement relating to the amendment
of the condition precedent of the loan
agreement dated 20 August 2018.
Pursuant to which, the loan agreement
is conditional upon the real estate
mortgage over the Property having
been duly registered withdt = 7 J&
ZEEREEE®ERB (Real Estate Bureau
of Beijing Shunyi District) (the “Real
Estate Bureau”) by Mr. Yuan Huixia, a
then director and legal representative
of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, (as agent of Bayhood No. 9
Co.) and Ms. Hao Yuhui.

MO ANTA(EBERA)EK
EEETHEBRARCESER
BrE(EAERA)RBERE
GSECZEEMEELL(HES
ERACITLERDE K
REBERNBERBLERHAS
%A AR 25,000,000 7T (18
% 328,532,000 T ) 2 &
HoBEZZE-N\ENA=1+DO
HEEFTASH=-+TEAR - B
BREFMRI%ITE  UMEE
ZrtHEBEZNRFRIERT 2
FEME(VE ) 2EHER
BEEBERAZZSE-ZF)N\A
“+=HEH  ERBE 2K
T4 098 N B BB R
RERAFEFEBE  LsE
AEEREEEEFIIIZE
P 2GR AR -

R=ZZB-—N\EAA=F+H 1%
MO NTE - BARMBTAE R
FERTTURARmE AR
BEBITRBE-Z-N\FN
B+ HzZ BRI &2 KIRIF
fro Bt BERBRASERR
A-BA2EMBARZEER
FERRRBELREWERL
HMIOBARKREAN)RMES
ZrtEERTIEEEREERE
BRIEEREER ) EXZMY
EeEMERBELAIESE -

KEHHREERAT
B hEES



(d) EXAFHEARNZEZEZRS
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued) (#)

(d) Transactions with the directors of the

258

Concurrently, on 20 September
2018, Mr. Yuan Huixia executed an
irrevocable undertaking in favour of
Bayhood No. 9 Co., pursuant to which:

1. Mr. Yuan Huixia shall, on behalf of

B RZZE—-N\FEAA=F
H > RESxXEUIHIKEL
7%1§A§4 R NCIE
A#HE o B

1. RIEEBLRERKRIEBIF

Bayhood No. 9 Co. and together AAIERMEEZEZ LM
with Ms. Hao Yuhui, register the EEEERIMUWEZ
real estate mortgage over the EiER\

Property with the Real Estate
Bureau;

2. in the event that Mr. Guan
Jialin does not repay the loan
in accordance with the loan
agreement, Mr. Yuan Huixia shall
sell the Property on the instruction
of Bayhood No. 9 Co. and transfer
the proceeds in full to Bayhood
No. 9 Co.;

3. in the event that Bayhood No.

2. WEBEAFRBETERERE
R EEEER RE
EaEARIHIO AT
ZETHEME A&
FFEREZHEZE T
HMOSE AT

3. MR AREREN

9 Co. proposes to change the YIERIB 2 AR AR
mortgagee of the mortgage over R\ REELXELER
the Property or terminate the Eitlﬁﬂgﬁﬁﬂjziamﬁ
mortgage, Mr. Yuan Huixia shall THEXEXH  UE
execute all necessary documents EZERSAL

on the instruction of Bayhood No.
9 Co. to effect such change or
termination; and

4. unless on the instruction of
Bayhood No. 9 Co., Mr. Yuan
Huixia shall not change the
mortgagee of the mortgage
over the Property, terminate the
mortgage, or sell the Property.

As each of Mr. Guan Jialin, Ms. Hao
Yuhui and Mr. Yuan Huixia was a
connected person at the subsidiary
level of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules as at the date
of the loan agreement, the entering into
of the loan agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement with the
undertaking) constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(d) Transactions with the directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Given that (i) the Board had approved
the loan agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement with
the undertaking) and the transactions
contemplated thereunder, and (ii) the
directors (including all the independent
non-executive directors) had confirmed
that the terms of the loan agreement
(as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement with the undertaking) were
fair and reasonable, the transaction
contemplated thereunder were on
normal commercial terms and in the
interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
the entering into of the loan agreement
(as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement with the undertaking) was
exempt from the circular, independent
financial advice and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules. The granting of loan under the
loan agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement with
the undertaking) was only subject to
the announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The loan agreement became unconditional
on 26 September 2018 and the drawdown
of the loan was made on 29 September
2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding
balance of the loan is RMB25,000,000
(equivalent to HK$27,909,000) (2018:
RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$28,532,000)),
which is included in the “Other receivables”
line item in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The related interest
income for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to RMB2,248,000
(equivalent to HK$2,554,000) (2018:
RMB576,000 (equivalent to HK$680,000)),
which is included in the “Investment
and other income” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The directors confirm that the above
transactions have complied with the
connected transaction requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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BERZREBELEBAARYE
25,000,000 7t (155 74 27,909,000
BRUNZE-NE: AR
25,000,000 7T (4825 74 28,532,000
BIT)) Bt AGZEBEARR
KATHMEWRKEIER -
BE_Z—NWGF+=-BA=1+-—
HEFEZHEBEINEWRAS
A R #2 248,000 7T (18 & R
2,554,000 70) (=8 —\F :
AR # 576,000 7t (F8Z574 680,000
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hary objectives of the Group s capltal

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and maintain
healthy ratios in order to support its business
and enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue of new shares or
redemption of existing shares as well as raise
or repay debts. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The Group’s policy is
to maintain the gearing ratio between 20% and
40%. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, amount due to a director and
secured notes, less cash and cash equivalents.
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
includes share capital, retained profits and other
reserves. The gearing ratio as at the end of the
reporting periods was as follows:

I%E?@M ZEEN jfzﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁittﬁ
XPFHEBREARREE -

AEBEERHERAGBLRBELERR
SFHBARE - BEFAABRELE
B AEESRHEARRRBZRE
ARRBEBEAS RTHRIAEEESR
BOUREBESEEEE - B LFE
AEBZRERBESTE -

AEBFRAEEEBLRERER %
b RIZEEFERURQATHEE AEN
EETE AEENBXRRERFEES
BEENF20% E40% ° B FEDIE
STERTERREMER BN—RE
EREREREE  BERERRESE
Yo KATEEABLEZEFERA
REBEFREMEE RBEHRZE
EEBLENT

2019 2018

=E-NE  ZF-N\EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Total debt BEREEE 655,561 706,812

Less: cash and cash equivalents B HeERESEEY (140,550) (140,628)

Net debt B F5E 515,011 566,184
Equity attributable to owners of the RNTEE ANEEEE

Company 2,423,931 2,655,704

Gearing ratio EEAELE 27.05% 26.61%
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August 2017, the Group issued secured
notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$300,000,000. Under the secured notes,
the Company covenants with the noteholders
that from the issue date and for so long as any
secured notes are outstanding, the Group will
ensure the consolidated tangible net worth of the
Group will not be less than HK$1,300,000,000.
Consolidated tangible net worth of the Group
means, by reference to an annual audited
consolidated financial statement or a semiannual
unaudited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, the aggregate of the amounts
paid up or credited as paid up on the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company and the
amount standing to the credit of the reserves of
the Group, but deducting any amount shown in
respect of goodwill or other intangible assets of
the Group.

The Company has complied with the covenant
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
At 31 December 2019, the consolidated tangible
net worth of the Group was HK$1,316,436,000
(2018: HK$1,506,260,000). At 30 June 2019, the
consolidated tangible net worth of the Group was
HK$1,406,104,000 (2018: HK$1,851,511,000).
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17 7 & #2 %8 % 300,000,000 =
REE - REZZSEREE  AQFM

EEFEAEEEE BRTHEHERE
EEIMEAREREZE  AEEBER
AEBNGEEREEFESTOR
1,300,000,0008 7T - Z"EBMNGZEEETE
EEFEEELZZAERNFEELER
GAMKEBRERIEFEEREEXRGEY
BHE AP TACBRTEEREANEE
FARIIEBEHLE  URKEERFE
FERSHE IR TMNERAEAER
EESHMETLEE2VNESE -

AR AREeREBEzE-_ZE—-NEFE+=A
S+-HLEEEFERBETEBERE -
R-ZEBE-NE+=ZBA=+—H0 ' 4~5£H
NiZEEaBFEEA1,316,436,0008 T
(Z=F — \F :1,506,260,0003% 7T ) °
R-E—NEXA=1H A&EBZH
SHFFEER1,406,104,000/8 T(=&
— N\ :1,851,511,00087T) °

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 50. €@ TR
Categories of financial instruments SRMIAZER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Financial assets SHEE
Amortised cost 12 85 R AN 1,227,914 1,436,927
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABERZ
— listed equity securities in Hong — BBLTRAEAES
Kong 240,815 287,302
Financial liabilities £ 3-Ri
Amortised cost #EE R A 1,074,398 934,173
KEREBRERRAR

B hEES
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The Group’s major financial instruments include
loan receivables, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables, deposits received, accruals
and other payables, bank borrowings, other
borrowings, amount due to an associate, amount
due to a director, lease liabilities, and secured
notes.

At the end of the reporting period:

(a) loan receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
are categorised as “amortised cost” under
financial assets; and

(b) trade payables, deposits received, accruals
and other payables, bank borrowings, other
borrowings, amount due to an associate,
amount due to a director, lease liabilities,
and secured notes are categorised as
“amortised cost” under financial liabilities.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
listed equity securities in Hong Kong classified
under financial assets at FVTPL, loan receivables,
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
deposits received, accruals and other payables,
bank borrowings, other borrowings, amount
due to an associate, amount due to a director,
lease liabilities, and secured notes. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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ancial risl management objectlves and
policies (Continued)

5 E kg

Market risk

(a) SMEmEEE

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong
Kong and the PRC. An entity within the
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
from commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

The Group engages in property investment
business in the PRC through its local
subsidiaries with RMB as their functional
currency. These PRC subsidiaries are not
exposed to foreign currency risk as their
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB.

Several subsidiaries of the Group with Hong
Kong dollar as their functional currency
have commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in
USD, Pound Sterling and Euro.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. It manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
financial position and cash flow exchange
risk exposures and where considered
appropriate using financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge the foreign currency
risk.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s
entities with functional currency of Hong
Kong dollar had the aggregate net monetary
assets denominated in USD amounted to
HK$4,585,000 (2018: HK$4,280,000). Given
that Hong Kong dollar are pegged to USD,
the directors consider that there is no
significant foreign currency risk exposure
with respect to USD.

AEFBZRKEFTENREBRD
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policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s
entities with functional currency of Hong
Kong dollar had the aggregate net monetary
assets denominated in Pound Sterling
and Euro amounted to HK$700,000 (2018:
HK$420,000). Given that the aggregate
net monetary assets denominated in these
foreign currencies is less than 1.00% (2018:
less than 1.00%) of the Group’s net assets
at 31 December 2019, the directors consider
that the net monetary assets of these
currencies are not significant to the Group at
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is prepared and
disclosed.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to its bank borrowings
with variable rates. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is concentrated on
fluctuation of HIBOR arising from its Hong
Kong dollar denominated bank borrowings.
The Group’s other borrowings and secured
notes carry fixed interest rates, which are
not exposed to interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. It manages
its interest rate risk by closely monitoring
the interest rate movements and where
considered appropriate using financial
instruments to hedge the interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates
of bank borrowings had been 50 (2018: 50
basis points) higher/lower, with all other
variables remain constant, the Group’s loss
and total comprehensive expense for the
year ended 31 December 2019 would have
increased/decreased by HK$650,000 (2018:
HK$786,000).
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policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to a
change in interest rates for bank borrowings
with variable rates at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
the Group’s bank borrowings with variable
rates which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The impact on the Group’s loss and
total comprehensive expense for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such change in interest rates. The sensitivity
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2018.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from listed equity securities in
Hong Kong held by it classified as financial
assets at FVTPL. The Group’s listed equity
securities in Hong Kong are listed on the
Exchange.

The Group manages its equity price risk
by regularly monitoring equity portfolio to
address any portfolio issues promptly and
spreading price risk exposure by investing
a number of listed equity securities in Hong
Kong.

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2019, if the prices of the
listed equity securities in Hong Kong with
quoted market price held by the Group had
been 15% (2018: 15%) higher/lower, with all
other variables remain constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 December
2019 would have increased/decreased by
HK$30,162,000 (2018: HK$35,985,000).
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policies (Continued)
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objectives and

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from bank balances, trade receivables, loan
receivables and other receivables. The exposures
to these credit risks are regularly monitored on
an ongoing basis by established credit policies in
each of the Group’s core businesses.

(@)

(b)

Bank balances

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are high-credit-quality banks
and/or financial institutions, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables arise from the Group’s
sale of jewelry products business. The
Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. The Group allows
credit period ranging from 0 to 270 days to
its customers. Before accepting any new
customer, credit evaluation is performed by
the responsible executive director to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and
define its credit limit. Credit evaluations
are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group performs impairment assessment
by applying the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach, which uses lifetime ECL
allowance as basis for all trade receivables
with reference to an ECL valuation prepared
by Grant Sherman. The ECL of trade
receivables is calculated as the product of
the three factors: gross credit exposure,
probability of default, and recovery rate
in case of insolvency in Hong Kong. The
probability of default is derived through the
application of a linear multiple regression
model, which estimates the statistical
relationship between a dependent variable
and multiple independent variables. To
reflect any current or forward-looking
information affecting the customers’ abilities
to settle the trade receivables, certain
adjustments have been made in the process
of deriving the appropriate probability
of default. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the end of the
reporting period about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= B /7 B R Bt E 77 15 (&)
(Continued)
(b) Trade receivables (Continued) (b) EZEWE(E)
The following table provides information TREMHEBEAEER=-Z—HLF
about the Group’s exposure to credit R—ZE2—-N\FE+ZA=+—HHE
risk and ECL for trade receivables at 31 ZREZREZEERRKEREES
December 2019 and 2018: Brig
2019 —E-hEF
Allowance
Gross for credit Net
carrying losses carrying
ECL rate amount recognised amounts
BHEE ERAGE
Past due status BEMRR | p-ES BEREEE BRRAE HREFE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Current (not past due) B ER (Y B ER ) 0.29% 39,295 (114) 39,181
1-30 days past due BE1Z308 2.96% 540 (16) 524
31-90 days past due BH31Z90H 6.67% 15 (1) 14
More than 90 days past due EHIEB90H 8.80% 159 (14) 145
40,009 (145) 39,864
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Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= B /7 B R Bt E 7718 (&)
(Continued)
(b) Trade receivables (Continued) (b) EZEWIE (&)
2018 —EB-N\F
Allowance
Gross for credit Net
carrying losses carrying
ECL rate amount recognised amounts
BHEE EHREE
Past due status BEAR BiEx ARREE gty REFE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Current (not past due) BER (I Mm@ ER ) 0.10% 31,381 (30) 31,351
1-30 days past due AE1Z30H 0.20% 494 1) 493
31-90 days past due BE31Z90 A 1.00% 801 (8) 793
More than 90 days past due @I 90 R 12.92% 387 (50) 337
33,063 (89) 32,974
Trade receivables are written off when there ERERNETREFEREV RS
is information indicating that the customer is RARIEERKSWEEBR
in severe financial difficulty and there is no B fIEFERBRPHECET
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the WEREF  AEZEKRIFERSR
customer has been placed under liquidation B270R (LR BRHEERE) A
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, WIEEBE S EWFIER

or the trade receivables are over 270 days
past due, whichever occurs earlier.

KB ERAERAT
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Financial risk ma'nag;ﬁ!eht objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c)

Loan receivables

Loan receivables arise from the Group’s
money lending business. The Group has
developed a credit policy and procedures
manual for its money lending business.
The credit policy and procedures manual
specifies the Group’s credit policy towards
its money lending business, the risk
management of the Group’s money lending
business, and the credit procedures for the
Group’s money lending business, which
include, among others, the loan application,
credit approval, loan closing, and monitoring
ongoing credit risk procedures. All new
customers of the Group are subject to
loan application procedures, which include
customer due diligence, reference check
for credit and character, and financial
background check. Granting of loan and
extension of final repayment date of loan is
approved by the two responsible executive
directors based on customer’s financial
position, past experience, credit assessment
and other factors. Monitoring the ongoing
credit risk of each individual customer is
carried out by the two responsible executive
directors twice a year, which includes
meeting with the customer and reviewing
of its/his/her periodic financial position. In
addition to monitoring on credit risk of each
customer twice a year as mentioned above,
review of patterns of repayment of principal
and/or interest of each individual customer
is carried out by the two responsible
executive directors monthly in order to
ensure potential problem loan is timely
identified. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c)

Loan receivables (Continued)

The board of directors of the Company
is responsible to ensure the credit policy
and procedures manual is appropriate to
the market need and the procedures as
set out in the manual are strictly followed
and carried out by the staff. The board of
directors has appointed Infinity Concept
Ripple Limited, an independent firm of
professional accountants, to conduct
independent review on adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group’s
money lending business.

For the purpose of internal credit risk
management, the Group considers a loan
receivable as underperforming if (i) the
repayment of principal and/or interest has
been overdue for more than three months,
and (ii) the principal, accrued interest and/or
future interest of the loan may not be fully
secured by the fair value of collateral at its
prevailing market price. The Group considers
a loan receivable as non-performing if (i) the
repayment of principal and/or interest has
been overdue for more than six months, and
(i) the collection of principal and/or interest
in full is improbable after taking into account
the fair values of the collateral at prevailing
market price.

AR RN
s # 4 % 5 888 ANNNNY

=B B2 R Bl e 5P 1 (A8 )

(c) EREN(E)

ARNRESERERREERER
EFFREAHSEE  URET
BIRETRATFRAEEF - F
EECEE—HBYEESEIT
RESAERQAABIMIAEEH
BEXEBNRREERABEZR
R EMERBERE -

MABCEERRSENS  AEE
ETEBRATRAERERBIR :
IV ERER FANEEHRCBHPBE
=@A R()ERAE  EBtFE
R/ RAREFREARSAIEFRIZE
BITHEFENAFEREER -
AEBETHBERTRAERRERE
TEH: () Xxek RFNEERE
BHEBANEA o K (i) BFH R IKF
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Financial risk ma'nag;ﬁ!eht objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c)

Loan receivables (Continued)

The Group performs impairment assessment
by applying the HKFRS 9 general approach
for all loan receivables on the basis of
allowance of 12-month ECL for items without
a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”)
and lifetime ECL for items with a SICR with
reference to another ECL valuation prepared
by Grant Sherman. As no loan receivables
have been classified as underperforming nor
non-performing according to the Group’s
credit rating system, none of the loan
receivables are classified to have a SICR
at 31 December 2019 and 2018. The ECL
of loan receivables is calculated as the
product of the three factors: gross credit
exposure, probability of default over 12
months following the reporting date, and
recovery rate in case of insolvency in Hong
Kong. The probability of default is derived
through the application of a linear multiple
regression model, which estimates the
statistical relationship between a dependent
variable and multiple independent variables.
To reflect any current or forward-looking
information affecting the customers’ ability
to settle the loans, certain adjustments
have been made in the process of deriving
the appropriate probability of default. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money, and
reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the end of the reporting
period about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= B /7 fz 2 ot (8 5P 12 (48 )
(Continued)
(c) Loan receivables (Continued) (c) EWEZ(E
The following table provides information TRIEHREBLAEEBR =S —N&F
about the Group’s exposure to credit FE=E-NE+ZB=+—HRE
risk and ECL for loan receivables at 31 WERzEFERBREHEES
December 2019 and 2018: =
2019 —E-RE
Allowance
Gross for credit Net
carrying losses carrying
ECL rate amount recognised amounts
Internal credit quality RHEE EEREE
classification NBEEERSE BEE BEREE EERE REFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Performing B 2.20% 1,000,071 (22,021) 978,050
Underperforming TR 0.00% - - -
Non-performing TEN 0.00% - - -
1,000,071 (22,021) 978,050
2018 —E-N\F
Allowance
Gross for credit Net
carrying losses carrying
ECL rate amount recognised amounts
Internal credit quality ‘ BHEE ERRAEE
classification NBEEERSE [ ES BEREE EERE BREFE
HK$’009 HK$’009 HK$'009
FET FET FET
Performing ‘Y 1.48% 1,186,286 (17,547) 1,168,739
Underperforming R 0.00% - - -
Non-performing TEA 0.00% - - -
1,186,286 (17,547) 1,168,739
The Group writes off a loan receivable EEWERNEEEZI2EATE
when its credit quality is classified as non- N AEEMEZERENR - B
performing. Since the commencement of the ARER=T——F— ARMEME
Group’s money lending business in January EXEBE SEERKERNEEE
2012, no credit quality of loan receivables Z25BEATRIATELN  BXLEM
has been classified as underperforming or SHEEWESR °

non-performing and no loan receivables has
been written off.

KRR EERAT
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policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment =B B e R e B 7715 (48)
(Continued)
(d) Other receivables (d) EffEW=E

274

Other receivables arise from transactions
outside the principal activities of the Group
and mainly represent cash advances to
various construction contractors and
services providers in relation to the
development of the Subject Land prior to the
acquisition of the operating rights in respect
of the Subject Land. Other receivables
also include the loan to a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company of
HK$27,909,000 (2018: HK$28,532,000)
for a term of 24 months commencing
from 24 August 2018 and the related
interest receivable of HK$891,000 (2018:
HK$658,000). The key terms of the loan to a
director are disclosed in note 48.

The Group performs impairment assessment
on other receivables of HK$64,540,000
(2018: HK$85,960,000) (excluding the
loan to a director of HK$27,909,000
(2018: HK$28,532,000) and the related
interest receivable of HK$891,000 (2018:
HK$658,000)) at the end of the reporting
period by assessing whether a receivable
becomes a credit-impaired financial
asset. In assessing whether a receivable
becomes a credit-impaired financial asset,
the Group has taken observable data into
account, such as the current financial
conditions of a debtor, the probability of
default of a debtor, and the aging of a cash
advance. The impairment assessment was
performed by the directors of the Company.
No independent valuer was engaged
for preparing an ECL valuation. Having
performed the impairment assessment,
an allowance for credit losses on other
receivables of HK$3,818,000 (2018:
HK$21,120,000) was recognised in the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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AEBFTEEBLUIINRIEEH
EKRFRE REEARKESH
TR KREEA TER
BEMOZRERREERRIEMHE
EEHBESBR - HbEWFIE
TEERAAAETFHBELARZ
— ZREE1E#27,909,00058 T (=
E—)\F 128,532,000 )28
FoBEBZE-NENAZ+HNHEH
MRABET B EI 2418 B & 48 B3 FE UK A
B A891,0008 t(=Z & — )\ F :
658,000 L) c MZESRMHEEN
ZEEBRIAMFE48IE o

AREBRBEHREBILERR
BHRERACERESREE B
H b FE WL TR 18 64,540,000 T (=
ZE— N\ :85,960,00087T) (&
FEMZBEEIRM 27,909,000 T
(=ZZ— )\ : 28,532,00087T) =2
ER R AEEEEWR B £891,000%
(=% — \ £ :658,000% 7T ))
EITRAEL - R EERFER
ERAECEERESREER  &N&
EEZE T EEEE  FNEHEAN
W AR - EEANENERLL
NRESBAWERE - AQAAESE
TREFG - MEB L EEMES
ELURRTBHEEEEMLE - £1T
BETGLE  HEKRFENEE
B85 3,818,000 B T(=ZF— N
£ :21,120,000/8 T ) RBE=Z
—NWE+ZB=+—BLEE®R
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Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B B fe R el B 7715 (48)
(Continued)
(d) Other receivables (Continued) (d) EEREE)
For impairment assessment on the B 3% E = 1R 27,909,000 T

loan to a director of HK$27,909,000
(2018: HK$28,532,000) and the related
interest receivable of HK$891,000
(2018: HK$658,000), the Group performs
impairment assessment by applying the
HKFRS 9 general approach on the basis
of allowance of 12-month ECL for item
without SICR and lifetime ECL for item with
SICR with reference to the ECL valuation
prepared by Grant Sherman. The loan to a
director is not classified to have a SICR at
31 December 2019 and 2018. The ECL of
the loan to a director is calculated as the
product of the three factors: gross credit
exposure, probability of default over 12
months following the reporting date, and
recovery rate in case of insolvency in Hong
Kong. The probability of default is derived
through the application of a linear multiple
regression model, which estimates the
statistical relationship between a dependent
variable and multiple independent variables.
To reflect any current or forward-looking
information affecting the director’s ability
to settle the receivable, certain adjustments
have been made in the process of deriving
the appropriate probability of default. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money, and
reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Having
performed the impairment assessment, an
allowance for credit losses on the loan to a
director of HK$24,000 (2018: HK$165,000)
was recognised in the year ended 31
December 2019.

(ZZE—N\F :28,532,00087T)=
EX R EWF E 891,000 T
(ZZ— N\ : 658,000 7T) 1A
EFEms  AEEERET UK
WMEERFEIRN—MRAEETH
BT Y EEERMBEZIEMN
MEBRICEAFEHEEEBEN
HEETIE MAEEERKRE
ERMNEE R HBHEES
BHEEETTMGE HE2EPE
ENBHEEFEMLGE - N2
—hERZE-NFE+ZA=1+—
HOZESRBERUESFARE
EREMBEBEEEN  ZESEM
BERCBEHEERRR=ZEREN
BEE  CERRRERTE R
LEHHE1I2EABNENERMESR
BEHIEBNKRE R - ENRER
ERGMERRENTESE &
BRGHRASHEZEABIEH 2
BBt ER ANMEEZES
S FEWFR B BE D MR IR B SR AT
EMER RIESHEEENE
HBETEEEETHE - BE
ERMBERMELR SRS
BERRBESEHITEEEBEE
5~ RS AROR R R R AT AR S TR
BNEERTXFER - BETHE
FEE RBEZZE-hhFE+=A
=t+—BLEECHEIAOZESIE
HERZEEFIEEE 24,0008 T
(ZZF—)\F 1 165,000 T) °
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pollcles (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests MBELRBcERETHEETZ R
with the board of directors, which has built an S EERCORIUZESZRBESRER
appropriate liquidity risk management framework EEER FEerEEESH - FHER
to meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term HRMENTRHESLEERE AEEE
funding and liquidity management requirements. BEERBESRAM AR B THE AR
The Group manages its liquidity risk by regularly HELSRVBRRL  REBERBHES
monitoring liquidity and financial position, HERH BRERENTERZHL
maintaining appropriate liquidity to cover TERSRERBESRRUREAERE
commitments, limiting liquidity risk exposure HEZARREESSETEZREE
by investing only in securities listed on major B o
stock exchanges, and ensuring acceptable and
appropriate finance in place, or believed to be
available before committing investment projects.
The following tables detail the Group’s TRENBEZ2EFTPFHIANEBNFE
remaining contractual maturity for its non- TMTEEMEBEZHRTEHNEHBR - Z
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed KRBEXAEBANINEEEH 2SR
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn EERMERESREMER - ZREE
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of the FMERETEHESRE -
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.
Weighted
average Within Total Total
effective 1 year or 1105 Over5  undiscounted carrying
rate on demand years years cash flows amounts
MELY 15h AER
ERAE ARER 125% SENLE anshE FHARE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK8'000 HK$'000
FET 2 FAT FET FET
2019 ZB-nE
Non-derivative financial FELRER
liabilities
Trade payables EAEAFE - 5,510 - - 5,510 5,510
Deposits received, accruals and ~ BUES B ERREL
other payables 3R - 98,548 53,561 - 152,109 152,109
Secured notes FRRE 8.09% 315,715 - - 315,115 299,841
Other borrowings ez 8.00% 200,000 - - 200,000 200,000
Bank borrowings BrEs 2.712% 156,484 - - 156,484 155,720
Amount due to an associate Ef-BEE 008 - 1,967 - - 1,967 1,967
Lease liabilities HEEE 4.90% 12,365 50,552 582,797 645,714 259,251
Total @ 790,589 104,113 582,797 1,477,499 1,074,398
2018 =
Non-derivative financial IS T
liabilities
Trade payables BSEMRE - 3,598 - - 3,503 3,503
Deposits received, accruals and ~ BUHES - B BRREL
other payables JEfi5E - 121,283 102,535 - 223,768 223,768
Secured notes EREZ 8.09% - 323,850 - 323,850 299,611
Other borrowings Efbigsh 8.00% 200,000 - - 200,000 200,000
Amount due to a director Bfi-52223E - 50,000 - - 50,000 50,000
Bank borrowings RITER 2.81% 157,609 - - 157,609 157,201
Total a3t 532,435 426,385 - 958,820 934,173
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ancial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings and other borrowings with a
repayable on demand clause are included in
the “within 1 year or on demand” time band in
the above maturity analysis. At 31 December
2019, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank borrowings and other
borrowings amounted to HK$141,922,000
(2018: HK$151,508,000) and HK$207,847,000
(2018: HK$207,934,000) respectively. Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that
the counterparties will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank borrowings and
other borrowings will be repaid after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements, details of which are set out in the
table below:

L )

EERERR]
.
T IR R LA R A

N S O,

mEBELEE(E)

BEEEEKRARZBTERREIMMER
EULEFBHIMHPINA—FARARZE
ERXRIBEEHR - R=ZFE—-hhF+=A
=+—H8 ' ZERTERREMERZ
KREWANESHEED B A141,922,0008
T(= & — N\ £ :151,508,00058 7T )
} 207,847,000 (= & — )]\ & :
207,934,000870) - KEZEXREBE 2 &
BkR BEERAZSYHHITKATET
FHHEEERINER BERE
ZERTERREMETEREER T
BZECERBPRBEHREESE
HBERTREY :

Maturity Analysis — Borrowings with a repayable BRETELZTHZEH I - AEHE
on demand clause based on scheduled EREERAZEHS
repayments
Within Total Total
1 year or 1t05 Over undiscounted carrying
on demand years 5years  cash flows amounts
15/ KR
FEEX 1E5% 56hE #RENE BEEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr A FEn FEr T#n
2019 “B-NE
Non-derivative financial liabilities #¥fT£¢REE
Bank borrowings RITE 7,994 31,978 101,950 141,922 116,897
Other borrowings Hitfe s 207,847 - - 207,847 200,000
215,841 31,978 101,950 349,769 316,897
2018 —E-)\E
Non-derivative financial liabilities F{7E & RMEAE
Bank borrowings RITER 8,079 32,316 111,113 151,508 122,152
Other borrowings AR 207,934 - - 207,934 200,000
216,013 32,316 111,113 359,442 322,152
KIERBIREBRAR

B hEES
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Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

(a

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. Observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available;
and

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Board has appointed the Finance and
Accounting Department, which is headed up
by an executive director, to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses market observable
data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent third party qualified
valuers to perform valuation. The Finance
and Accounting Department works closely
with the independent third party qualified
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The
executive director who is responsible
for the Group’s finance and accounting
function reports the Finance and Accounting
Department’s findings to the Board twice a
year to explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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instruments (Continued)

BEEMEELLFEISEZEIEAE

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a BEEREEZLFEE)
recurring basis (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) RFEZFHRE)
Fair value measurements catagorised into
AVEFESEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F18 £28 #34 st
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-0E BN\ ZR-AF ZE-N\E ZR-0F BN\ ZR-0F BN
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Fér  tEr  TEx  FEr  FEr tEr TEr FEn
Financial assets tHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ #ATEFAEHR
LEREE
- listed equity securities in ~ — BB LHRAES
Hong Kong 28372 281,091 - - 7,103 6211 240815 287,302
Valuation
Fair value at  Fair value at techniques
31 December 31 December Fair value and
2019 2018 hierarchy key inputs
RZB-NF RIZ-N\F
T=A T=A
=t+-H =t-H fEERHTR
ZDVE ZDYE  DYESR FERARE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABRERZ
— listed equity securities in - BBLMREES 233,712 281,091 Level 1 Quoted
Hong Kong $18  closing prices
in active
markets
RE BT I%
HeWmE
— listed equity securities in - BRLTREES 7,103 6,211 Level 3 Significant
Hong Kong %34 unobservable
inputs
BEATTER
BARE
KIERBIREBRAR
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instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3.

On 28 October 2019, the Group
transferred 1,483,728,240 shares of China
Healthwise with an aggregate fair value of
HK$53,414,000 out of Level 1 as the Group
has applied equity method to account for its
investment in China Healthwise.

On 29 June 2018, the Group transferred
217,750,000 shares of Global Mastermind
with an aggregate fair value of
HK$30,049,000 out of Level 1 as the Group
has applied equity method to account for its
investment in Global Mastermind.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as
of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that cause the transfer.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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AEERBMEZ 2 FEGE)
RFEER(E)
RBE-Z-NFR-F-N\F
TZRA=+—-—HLEFE  F1&R

FoRoEWEER  RAEEA
HEHEIR -

R-ZE-hE+B=+tN\HB ' H
RAEBCEAESEABHERS
HEERECREANERE ~X&H8
# A B 42 %5853,414,0008 T 2
1,483,728,240 1% # Bl &5 #E 42 == AR
HEE1REY -

RZE-N\EXAZ+hHB #BHR
AEBCEAERSFEEREBRA
BoREANER AEEELAFER
30,049,000 Jjt 2 217,750,000
BRERABROBE1REL -
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Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 fair value

BEEMEELLFEISEZEIEAE
AEERBMEZ 2 FEGE)

(b) BRESHATEIEZEN

measurements
Relation of
significant
Significant unobservable
Valuation unobservable inputs to
technique input fair value
EXTUBE
EXTUEE BAHEER
HERN BARE ATEZEBR
At 31 December 2019 RIB-HE
+=A=t+-A
Financial assets at FVTPL RATEFABRRZ Market approach Holding return basis  The holding retum basis
SHEE n&& of negative 42.44% s positively correlated
BREFEES 42.44% to the fair value
— listed equity securities in - BB LTREES measurement
Hong Kong BREHEER
NVEFEMENR

Price-to-earning
basis of 48.12
mRERE48.12

Discount rate of
negative 74.29%
BRZE74.29%

The price-to-earning
basis is positively
correlated to the fair
value measurement
TREZEATE
FEMIEL

The discount rate is
negatively correlated
to the fair value
measurement
ERZEATHE
HE1 1

KERBEIREFRAF

“E-NFER
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Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BEEMBEELL FETEZAETE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a BEEREEZL-FEE)
recurring basis (Continued)
(b) Information about Level 3 fair value (b) BERFEIRLFEGTEZEF (E)
measurements (Continued)
Relation of
significant
Significant unobservable
Valuation unobservable inputs to
technique input fair value
EXFUHE
EXTUEE BAER
HER BAHE NVHEZEE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF
+ZA=1-H
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFABRERZ Market approach Holding return basis  The holding retum basis
tHEE miE of negative 53.15% s positively correlated
BREFEES53.15% to the fair value
— listed equity securities in - BELHREES measurement
Hong Kong BREREEEATE
SHEMIEL

Price-to-earning The price-to-earning
basis of 27.14 basis is positively
TREE2714  correlated to the fair

value measurement
mREEENTE
SHERER

Discount rate of The discount rate is
negative 78.01% negatively correlated
BREE78.01% to the fair value

measurement
BREENTE
STERRE
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Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

(b)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

One of the Group’s listed equity securities
in Hong Kong classified as financial assets
at FVTPL has been suspended from trading
since 27 November 2017 and no unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets are
available. The fair value of the suspended
listed equity securities in Hong Kong at 31
December 2019 and 2018 was measured
by Graval using a valuation technique with
significant unobservable inputs and hence
was classified under Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The movements during the year in
the balance of this Level 3 fair value
measurement are as follows:

BEEMEELLFEISEZEIEAE
AEERBMEZ 2 FEGE)

(b) BEREIRIFETEZEL (E)

AEBHP-E/EARDNFE
ANEBBRRZEREEZEBLTR
AEHH-E—tF+—BA=Z++t
AREEFEES WA ETRTESEILE
AMAREABRRE - R=ZF—HLEF
F—ZE-NE+ZB=+—H " &
HEEERBLTRAZESAFE
DNEEFERER T TEER AZE
ZEERME  BEHoELASE
SWAFEELR -

AEEEIRMAFHFEL 2 E
BT

Listed equity

securities

EHRAE S

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2018 R=-Z2-NF—-—H—H 9,100
Loss arising on change in fair value of BRAFEFABERZEMEEY

financial assets at FVTPL AT EEBEEZER (2,889)

At 31 December 2018 and R=ZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H

at 1 January 2019 K—_ZF—-NF—H—H 6,211
Gain arising on change in fair value of BRAFEFABERZEMEEY

financial assets at FVTPL AT EEBEE WG 892

At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hE+=ZA=+—H 7,103

KRR EERAT
—E-nEFEH 200
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instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair values
at 31 December 2019 and 2018, except for the
secured notes, which had a carrying amount
and fair value of HK$299,841,000 (31 December
2018: HK$299,611,000) and HK$309,473,000
(31 December 2018: HK$301,862,000) at 31
December 2019 respectively.

The fair value measurement of the secured notes
was classified under Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value of the secured notes
was determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant
input being the discount rate that reflects the
return required by the noteholders for investing in
similar financial instruments.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

WHBEEMBEEL L FHETBZFE
BezHEERREZ L FE

BERARBERATE2AEESH
TEAREEHEER-ZE-AER=
E-NEF+ZA=Z+—-HBHZAFELT
BEAREZEE MR- NF+=A
=t+—-HEREZEBEZ2RAERL2TE
2 Bl £5299,841,0008 T(Z & — N\ &
+ =B =+—H8 :299,611,0008 T )
% 309,473,000 (= —NF+=A
=+4+—8 :301,862,00087T) °

EREBZAFEAEEDERBEIR
DFESER - EREBZ2LFERES
BEICENBAREREDNAEZ
EEEAEE  REAZBAHBEAR
AR, IRMREBLUEHIAZEE
BFEARER 2B -
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The table below detalls changes in the Group S
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

T%%#LZK%mﬂﬁEEJFﬁEEZEF

LY EERERFREEH)  BMEFE

PRELEEBEZREREIRRRER

ECRABENAEEGRERERER
RO EARMETHRENRE -

Amount Amount Amount

Iterest Bank Other Lease Secured  duetoan dugtoa duetoa
payable  borrowings  borrowings liabilities notes  associate  shargholder director Total
E-8 Ef-% B4
Effa  B0RT  HbER HERE ERRE REMIME RRME EE it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKk§ 000 HKS 000 HKk§ 000 HKS 000 HK§000
i -4 4 - i -2 i fér i
At1 January 2018 HE-NE-B-R 10919 31454 300,000 - 299,39 - - - 91,771
Non-cash changes $5489
Interest expenses on bank RiTEAMAARS
borrowings 9,266 - - - - - - - 9,266
Interest expenses on other HEamAaRS
borrowings 9797 - - - - - - - 9797
Inerest expenses on secured notes~ EREBHAEER 24,000 - - - 23 - - - U213
Derecognised on isposal of HENEL TR
subsidares (ote 42) ArRIze) - [1905M) - - - - - - [1905M)
Forelgn exchange transafion JERS - (1466 - - - - - - (1466)
Cash flows CEi |
Inlow from financing activites EREEERA - 68,723 200,000 - - - 133,000 0,000 461723
Outlow fom fivncing actvies ~ BREREEH (44,109 108%9) (300,000 - - - (13000 fooo)  (55809)
At 31 December 2018 HoE-N%
t2R=1-8 981 157,201 200,000 - 209,611 - - 50000 716,685
Applicaton of HKFRS 16 EREANERLEY
0t B 7 - - N T - - . - W

KB ERAERAT
s hEEE 200
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Amount Amount Amount

Interest Bank Other lease  Secured  duetoan  duetoa  duetoa
payable borrowings  borrowings liabilities notes  associate shareholder director Total

Eft-8  BH-2 Ef-%
EREE  RORR  EBER  BEEE  BRRE BEMEME  RRME EENE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 - HKS'000
-2 A1 -2 i - - - - -

At1 January 2019 W-E-1%-5-H 9,873 157,201 200,000 264,967 299,611 - - 50,000 981,652
Non-cash changes E3k £
Interest expenses onbank ~ FTERNASHR

borrowings 4,321 - - - - - - - 4,31
Interest expenses on other ~ ERERNASHT

borrowings 16,000 - - - - - - - 16,000
Interest expenses on secured ~ ERZENFISHE

notes 24,001 - - - 20 - - - 24,231
Iterest expenses on lease ~~ EEENASER

liabilities 12,47 - - - - - - - 12,97
Forelgn exchange translation ~ \E#E (19 - - (5789) - - - - (580
New leases entered RENI ) - - - 51 - - - - 511
Cash flows RenE
Inflow from financing activities ~ EREEERA - 81,766 - - - 1,967 7200 45,000 135,933
Qutflow from financing activiies  EREEHR L (6,195 (@3,247) - (510) - - (T200 (5000 (42,15

At 31 December 2019 RZE-E
tZB=1-8 10,928 155,720 200,000 250,251 200,844 1,967 - - 921,701
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Group had no

material contingent liabilities.

IMPACT OF THE NOVEL CORONAVIRUS
ON THE GROUP’S BUSINESS
OPERATIONS

It has been mentioned that the novel coronavirus
pandemic has already caused the delay in the
construction of the second and third phases of
the Subject Land and the temporary suspension
of the business development of the first phase
of the Subject Land. Due to the severe travel
restrictions and/or lockdowns recently imposed
by countries around the world, the Group’s sale
of jewelry products business has been inevitably
affected.

If the novel coronavirus pandemic continues
for a prolonged period of time, it will definitely
have consequences for the Group’s business
operations, the extent of which could not be
estimated as at the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. The directors
will cautiously monitor the development of the
novel coronavirus pandemic and react proactively
to its impact on the Group’s business operations.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 6 May 2020.
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2018

2019 2017 2016 2015
“E-NF ZE-N\F T+t ZE-RE =—T-IF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results ES |
Revenue Wz 198,796 188,037 53,989 161,042 184,780
(Loss)/profit from e (FE) B
operations . (161,491)  (556,540)  (181,042)  (201,278) 132,451
Finance costs HEER (48,891) (43,276) (23,627) (9,529) (1,609)
(Loss)/profit before BRBLAT (B518) A
taxation (210,382)  (599,816)  (204,669)  (210,807) 130,842
Income tax (expense)/ Frewi (X)) K&
credit (1,724) 11,091 9,052 2,903 (8,253)
(Loss)/profit for the REBALERE 2
year from continuing FEE(BR)/
operations w (212,106)  (588,725)  (195,617)  (207,904) 122,589
Loss for the year from RECHILEERT
discontinued operation ZEEERR - - (3) - (22,988)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ REE (F18) /37 (212,106)  (588,725)  (195,620)  (207,904) 99,601
Dividends 35 - - - - -
At 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-RE ZE-N\F CZE—tF TR CEZ-IF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets EEAR 3,834,656 3,971,193  5223,905 4,241,538 4,430,846
Total liabilties & &0 (1,416,200) (1,318,115) (1,957,600)  (992,399) (1,078,541)
Net assets BEFE 2,418,456 2,653,078 3,266,305 3,249,139 3,352,305
Capital and reserves BAR #E
Equity attributable to RDAEHA
owners of the Company /i@ 2,423,931 2,655,704 3,266,389 3,249,145 3,352,310
Non-controlling interest ~ FFiZREz (5,475) (2,626) (84) (6) (5)
2,418,456 2,653,078 3,266,305 3,249,139 3,352,305

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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